
 
 

Castle House 
Great North Road 

Newark 
NG24 1BY 

 
Tel: 01636 650000 

www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 
 

Tuesday, 17 November 2020 

Chairman: Councillor Mrs S Michael 
 
Members of the Committee: 
 
Councillor Mrs B Brooks 
Councillor M Brown 
Councillor R Crowe 
Councillor D Cumberlidge 
Councillor Mrs M Dobson 

 

 

 
MEETING: Audit & Accounts Committee 

  

DATE: Wednesday, 25 November 2020 at 10.00 am 

  

VENUE: Broadcast from Castle House, Great North Road, 
Newark, Notts, NG24 1BY 

 

You are hereby requested to attend the above for the purpose of transacting the  
business on the Agenda as overleaf. 

 
Attendance at this meeting and public access will be by remote means due to the Covid-19 Pandemic. 

Further details to enable remote access will be forwarded to all parties prior to the  
commencement of the meeting. 

 
If you have any queries please contact Karen Langford on Karen.Langford@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk. 

Any questions relating to the agenda items should be submitted to Nick Wilson- Business Manager - 
Financial Services, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting in order that a full response can be provided. 

 

http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/


 



AGENDA 
 

  Page Nos. 
Remote Meeting Details 
 
This meeting will be held in a remote manner in accordance with the Local Authorities and Police 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.   
 
The meeting will be live streamed on the Council’s social media platforms to enable access for 
the Press and Public.  
 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest by Members and Officers and as to the Party Whip 
 

 

3.   Declaration of any Intentions to Record the Meeting 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2020 
 

4 - 8 

5.   External Auditors' Supplementary Letter to Annual Audit Completion Report 
 

9 - 40 

6.   Going Concern Status of the Council 
 

41 - 45 

7.   Approval of the Statement of Accounts 
 

46 - 138 

8.   Strategic Risk Management 
 

139 - 173 

9.   Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

174 - 197 

10.   Treasury Management 2020-21 Mid Year Report 
 

198 - 212 

11.   Redmond Review 
 

213 - 217 

12.   Audit Committee Work Plan 
 

218 - 220 

13.   Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

 

 To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

14.   Date of Next Meeting 
 
Wednesday 3 February 2021 
 

 



NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of Audit & Accounts Committee Broadcast from Castle House, Great 
North Road, Newark, Notts, NG24 1BY on Wednesday, 30 September 2020 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs S Michael (Chairman) 
 
 
Councillor Mrs B Brooks, Councillor R Crowe, Councillor D Cumberlidge 
and Councillor Mrs M Dobson 

  
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

 
Councillor M Brown (Committee Member) 

 
 

38 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS AND AS TO THE PARTY 
WHIP 
 

 That no Member or Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory 
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting.   
 
The meeting was held remotely, in accordance with the Local Authorities and Police 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

39 DECLARATION OF ANY INTENTIONS TO RECORD THE MEETING 
 

 There were no declarations of intention to record the meeting. 
 

40 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

 That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2020 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

41 ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 With the agreement of the Committee, the Chairman changed the order of business.  
Agenda Item 9 was taken after Item 7.  The agenda resumed its stated order 
thereafter. 
 

42 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

 The Committee considered the Annual Internal Audit Report from Assurance 
Lincolnshire providing a summary of Internal Audit work undertaken during 
2019/2020 to support the Annual Governance Statement by providing an opinion on 
the organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control environment. 
 
The report ending 31 March 2020 was issued in June having taken into account Covid-
19 although there would be greater impact in the next financial year. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the Audit & Accounts Committee considered the Annual 
Internal Audit report and that it be noted. Agenda Page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
43 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2019/20 

 
 The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Business Manager, Financial 

Services giving Members the opportunity to review the annual Treasury Outturn 
report to be presented to Council on 13 October 2020. 
 
The Committee noted that there were no breaches to the approved prudential 
indicators during the period 2019/20. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the Treasury Outturn position for 2019/20 be noted. 
 

44 ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM 2019/20 
 

 The Committee considered the External Audit Strategy Memorandum for the 2019/20 
Statement of Accounts work and Value for Money Conclusion provided by Mazars. 
 
The Mazars representative informed the Committee that the report included the 
reintegration of Newark and Sherwood Homes back to the Council. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the Committee noted the External Audit Strategy 
Memorandum. 
 

45 EXTERNAL AUDITORS' ANNUAL AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT 
 

 The Committee considered the External Auditors Annual Audit Completion report 
from the Business Manager for Financial Services. 
 
The report informed Members that due to Covid-19 the national deadlines for 
submission of the draft and audited financial statements had been pushed back to 31 
August and 30 November respectively. 
 
The Committee were made aware that although the accounts had been audited, final 
confirmation of an unqualified opinion cannot be concluded until the final report has 
been commissioned from the external auditors of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund 
due to the materiality of the Council’s pension liability.  Therefore, the conclusions on 
the Statement of Accounts and Value for Money would be anticipated conclusions 
and to be finalised in a further report to the November Committee. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

a) the Committee received the External Auditors Annual Audit Completion 
Report for 2019/20; and  

b) the Committee noted the adjustments to the audited draft financial 
statements set out in the report. 

 
46 AUDITED DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

 
 The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager and Assistant 

Business Manager for Financial Services to review the Council’s audited draft 
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Statutory Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
The report informed the Committee that the audit had identified only one significant 
misstatement due to an allowance for 2020/21 financial years’ provision against 
revaluation of the business rates debt being held at 31 March 2020. This debt was not 
held on the balance sheet at that date therefore the provision would not be held and 
the Committee were aware that all relevant notes were adjusted for the 
misstatement. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

a) Members noted the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2020; and  
 

b) Members noted the draft audited Statement of Accounts for the financial 
year ended 31 March 2020. 

 
47 AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 

 
 The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial 

Services informing Members of the activity undertaken by the Audit and Accounts 
committee during the 2019/20 financial year. 
 
The report informed the Members that having seen the account for the year, the 
Committee had discharged its responsibilities as per the Constitution.  Having also 
assessed itself against the CIPFA Practical Guidance for Audit Committees 
questionnaire, having drawn up an action plan for areas that did not conform to best 
practice. 
 
The report also explained how the Committee had added value to the organisation, 
having requested the Internal Audit Process report be clearly set out to inform when 
Officers are attending the Committee to then gain assurance that areas of identified 
weakness are being resolved. 
 
A Committee Member questioned a decision previously taken by the Committee not 
to have an independent member appointed to the Committee.  The Deputy Chief 
Executive, Director of Resources and S151 Officer then referred to the Redmond 
Review, Sir Tony Redmond’s long awaited report on local authority financial reporting 
and external audit in England which had made a number of robust recommendations, 
including the creation of a new audit regulator and supports independent members. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

a) the Committee noted the Audit and Accounts Committee Annual Report’s 
activity within the year and referred on to the Council for noting. 

 
48 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

 
 The Committee considered the report from Assurance Lincolnshire providing the 

Internal Audit Progress report with a summary of Internal Audit work undertaken 
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during 2020/21 against the agreed audit plan and any remaining reports from 
2019/20.   
 
The report provided the latest progress report covering the period up to 31 August 
2020 having agreed the Audit Plan for 2020/21 at the February Audit and Accounts 
Committee, reporting throughout the year on the progress made and if any changes 
to the plan are requested. 
 
Representatives were available at the meeting to take any questions with regard to 
Building Control, ICT and Health and Safety. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that: 
 

a) the Audit and Accounts Committee considered and commented upon the 
latest Internal Audit Progress report and approved the extensions to the 
implementation dates. 

 
49 FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT 

 
 The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial 

Services informing Members of the update of the Fraud Risk Register which had been 
undertaken during February 2020. 
 
The report had reviewed all of the services provided by the Council, highlighting any 
new areas where fraud might occur as well as the types of fraud in determining if 
there were any new risks to the Council. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the update to the Fraud Risk Register be noted. 
 

50 COUNTER-FRAUD ACTIVITIES FROM 1 NOVEMBER 2019 TO 31 AUGUST 2020 
 

 The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial 
Services informing Members of counter-fraud activity undertaken since the last 
update reported on 27 November 2019.  The report to Members would have been a 
bi-annual report, this had changed due to Covid-19.   
 
The report advised the Committee that discussions had taken place with Assurance 
Lincolnshire in relation to producing a virtual training session, to highlight areas of 
fraud that Officers should be aware of. This will remind Officers of the “red flags” that 
they should be mindful of and what action should be taken where these flags are 
noticed. It was anticipated that this would be deployed to Officers in Q3 of this 
financial year. 
 
AGREED (unanimously) that the content of the report be noted. 
 

51 URGENCY ITEM TAKEN DURING COVID-19 
 

 The report provided the Committee with the urgency decision that had been taken in 
light of the Covid-19 Pandemic with respect to the Homes England Compliance Audit 
Report 2019/20 – HRA 5 Year Development Programme. 
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NOTED the Urgency Item – Minute of Decision taken during the Covid-19 

Pandemic. 
 

52 AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
 

 The Committee noted the Work Plan, to include a future item with reference to the 
Redmond Review discussed earlier in the meeting. 
 

53 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

54 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 The next meeting would be held on Wednesday 25 November 2020. 
 

 
Meeting closed at 11.30 am. 
 
 
 
Chairman 
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AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ SUPPLEMENTARY LETTER TO ANNUAL AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT 
 
1.0  Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present Members with the External Auditors Supplementary Letter to the Annual Audit 

Completion Report, this is attached at Appendix A.  
 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 The external auditor issues an Annual Audit Completion Report in compliance with the 

International Standards on Auditing.  The significant findings from the audit are reported in 
the Annual Audit Completion Report, together with the action taken in respect of these 
findings.  The report also gives the auditor’s opinion on the Statement of Accounts and the 
Value for Money conclusion.   

 
2.2 The Annual Audit Completion Report was brought to the last committee along with the draft 

audited statement of accounts and it was noted that a supplementary letter would be 
issued to the committee to communicate the conclusion of those matters that were marked 
as outstanding within the Audit Completion Report.  Attached at appendix A is the letter 
from Mazars and also attached at appendix B is the full Audit Completion Report for ease of 
reference. 

 
3.0 Statement of Accounts 
 
3.1 The Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 is considered elsewhere on this agenda.   
 
3.2 The Audit Completion report – follow up letter identifies that 3 out of the 4 outstanding 

audit items have been completed with no matters to report.  However, at the time of 
writing this report, the audit area for Pensions is currently still ongoing.  This is due to the 
external auditors of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund not yet replying to our auditors 
request for supplementary procedures, on their behalf, for additional verification and 
therefore our external auditors are unable to gain satisfactory assurance over the net 
pension liability figure within our accounts. 

 
3.3 Due to the above, which is out of the Councils control, the letter also indicates there may be 

a requirement to insert an ‘emphasis of matter’ paragraph in their report and the report 
also states that the auditors are uncertain as to whether or not they will be able to issue 
their audit report prior to the statutory deadline of 30 November.  These matters are 
discussed further on agenda item ‘Statement of Accounts and AGS’ section 4. 

 
3.4 The management of representation letter requires to be authorised, this isn’t anticipated to 

change as there is already a paragraph in their regarding estimation of uncertainty and this 
report seeks the committee to approve the letter of representation on behalf of the Council. 
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4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that:- 
 

(a)  the Committee receives the External Auditors Annual Audit Completion Report 
Supplementary Letter for 2019/20; 

 
(b) the letter of representation signed by the Director of Resources – S151 Officer and 

the Chair of the Committee, be approved. 
 

Background Papers 
 

Nil 
 
For further information please contact Nick Wilson, Business Manager - Financial Services on 
extension 5317. 
 
Nick Wilson 
Business Manager - Financial Services 
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Audit and Accounts Committee Members 

Newark and Sherwood District Council 

Castle House 

Great North Road 

Newark 

Nottinghamshire 

NG24 1BY 

  

  

Direct line  

Email david.hoose@mazars.co.uk 

  11 November 2020 

 

Dear Audit and Accounts Committee Members 

Audit Completion Report – follow-up letter 

Following on from our recent meeting and as required by International Standards on Auditing (UK and 

Ireland), I am writing to communicate the conclusion of those matters that were marked as outstanding 

within the Audit completion report dated 4 September 2020. 

The outstanding matters and the conclusions reached are detailed below: 

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters 

Property, plant and 

equipment 
Complete 

We have received the residual audit evidence and our work is 

compete, with no matters to report. 

Investments Complete 
We have received the residual audit evidence and our work is 

compete, with no matters to report. 

Loans Complete 
We have received the residual audit evidence and our work is 

compete, with no matters to report.  

 Pensions Ongoing 

Part of our assurance over the net pensions liability is derived 

from specified procedures commissioned from the external 

auditors of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund. We are yet to 

receive their final report over the procedures we are seeking 

assurance over for our consideration.  
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    2/2 

 

We expect that there will be ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 

disclosed on the Pension Fund’s holding of property assets, which 

will need to be disclosed in the Council’s financial statements 

because the Council’s share in those assets as recorded on the 

balance sheet is material. This will lead to the ‘emphasis of 

matters’ paragraph in our Audit Report extending to cover those 

pension assets as described below: 

Emphasis of Matter –Effect of the Covid-19 pandemic on the 
valuation of land, buildings and investment properties 

We draw attention to Note X of the financial statements, which describes 

the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Council’s 

land, buildings and investment properties and the valuation of the 

Council’s share of Nottinghamshire Pension Fund’s property assets. As 

disclosed in Note X of the financial statements, the Council’s and 

Pension Fund’s valuers included a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 

declaration within their reports as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic 

creating a shortage of relevant market evidence on which to base their 

judgements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

However, we cannot conclude on the full extent of this matter 

until we receive the pension fund assurance letter.  

Any modification to our Audit Report must undergo a 

consultation process, which cannot commence until we have the 

audit evidence we require. We are therefore uncertain whether we 

will be able to issue our Audit Report prior to 30 November. 

 

If you wish to discuss these or any other points discussed at the meeting then please do not hesitate to 

contact me. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

David Hoose 

Mazars LLP 
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Audit Completion Report
Newark and Sherwood District Council
Year ending 31 March 2020
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CONTENTS

1. Executive summary

2. Significant findings

3. Internal control recommendations

4. Summary of misstatements

5. Value for Money conclusion

Appendix A – Draft management representation letter

Appendix B – Draft auditor’s report

Appendix C – Independence

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ and the ‘Appointing Person Terms of Appointment’ 

issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. 

Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to the Council are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any 

member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 

England and Wales.

1
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Mazars LLP

Park View House

58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham

NG1 5DW

Audit and Accounts Committee Members

Newark and Sherwood District Council

Castle House

Great North Road

Newark

Nottinghamshire

NG24 1BY

4 September 2020

Dear Members

Audit Completion Report – Year ended 31 March 2020

We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2020. The purpose of this document is to

summarise our audit conclusions.

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in

our Audit Strategy Memorandum dated 25 March 2020 which we presented on 30 September 2020. Since we issued our Audit

Strategy Memorandum the UK has been subject to the challenges and restrictions of COVID-19. We have reviewed our Audit

Strategy Memorandum and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement

remain appropriate.

One implication of COVID-19 for the Council was that the deadlines for submission of the draft and audited financial

statements were pushed back to 31 August and 30 November respectively. Despite the revised deadlines we acknowledge

the difficulties encountered by your team during accounts preparation and audit, and would like to express our thanks for the

assistance of your team during our audit.

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact me on 0115 964 4779.

Yours faithfully

David Hoose

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 
registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 
E1W 1DD.

We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can 
be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861.
VAT number: 839 8356 73

Mazars LLP – Park View House, 58 The Ropewalk, Nottingham, NG1 5DW
Tel: +44 (0) 115 964 4744 – Fax: +44 (0) 115 964 4755 – www.mazars.co.uk

Agenda Page 15



Purpose of this report and principal conclusions

The Audit Completion Report sets out the findings from our audit of Newark and Sherwood District Council (‘the Council’) for the year

ended 31 March 2020, and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit and Accounts Committee meeting on 30 September 2020.

The detailed scope of our work as your appointed auditor for 2019/20 is set out in the National Audit Office’s (NAO) Code of Audit

Practice. Our responsibilities and powers are derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and, as outlined in our Audit

Strategy Memorandum, our audit has been conducted in accordance with International Standards of Auditing (UK) and means we focus

on audit risks that we have assessed as resulting in a higher risk of material misstatement.

Sections 2 and 5 of this report outline the detailed findings from our work on the financial statements and our conclusion on the Council’s

arrangements to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Section 2 also includes our conclusions on the

audit risks and areas of management judgement in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, which include:

• Management override of control

• Valuation of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale

• Valuation of net pensions liability

• Transfer of Newark and Sherwood Homes’ activities

Status of our work

As we outline on the following page, our work is substantially complete. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding work, at

the time of issuing this report we have the following conclusions:

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

3

We anticipate completing our work on your WGA submission, in line with the group instructions issued by 

the NAO, by the required deadline.

Whole of 

Government 

Accounts 

(WGA)

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements. Our 

proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in Appendix B.

Opinion on 

the financial 

statements

We anticipate concluding that the Council had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our draft auditor’s report, including proposed 

conclusion, is provided in Appendix B.

Value for 

Money 

conclusion

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to 

question us about the accounting records of the Council and to consider any objection made to the 

accounts. We have received no such objections or questions. Further details on the exercise of our wider 

powers are provided in section 2.

Wider 

powers

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices
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Status of our audit work

We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and Value for Money conclusion for the year ended 31 March

2020. At the time of preparing this report the following matters remain outstanding:

We will provide the Audit and Accounts Committee with an update in relation to these outstanding matters in a follow-up letter, prior to

signing the auditor’s report.

Our audit approach

We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in March 2020. We have not made any changes

to our audit approach since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Materiality

We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £2,181k for the Group and £2,100k for the Council’s single entity financial

statements using a benchmark of 2% of Gross Operating Expenditure. Our final assessment of materiality, based on the final financial

statements and qualitative factors is £2,329k for the Group and £2,250k for the Council’s single entity financial statements, using the

same benchmark. We set our trivial threshold (the level under which individual errors are not communicated to the Audit and Accounts

Committee), at £70k for the Group and £68k for the Council’s single entity financial statements based on 3% of overall materiality.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters

Property, plant and 

equipment

We are awaiting evidence from management’s expert to support the detailed 

valuation for 4 items that we have selected for sample testing 

Investments We are awaiting an external confirmation for one investment balance

Pensions

Part of our assurance over the net pensions liability is derived from specified 

procedures commissioned from the external auditors of the Nottinghamshire 

Pension Fund. We are yet to receive their final report over the procedures we are 

seeking assurance over for our consideration.

Status
� Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements
� Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements
� Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the financial statements
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2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

5

Overview of our group audit approach

Our Audit Strategy memorandum provided details of our intended group audit approach, including our initial assessment of group

materiality. The table below confirms the approach we have taken to auditing the Council’s consolidated financial statements.

Misstatements and internal control recommendations

Section 3 sets out the internal control recommendations that we make, together with an update on any prior year recommendations.

Section 4 outlines the misstatements noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this report. If any additional misstatements are

noted on completion of the outstanding work, these will be reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee in a follow-up letter.

Entity
Nature of 

entity audit
Auditor

Description of audit procedures undertaken on 

the component

Changes to audit 

approach

Newark and 

Sherwood District 

Council (parent)

NAO Code 

audit
Mazars LLP

A full audit of the consolidated financial 

information using component materiality
None

Active4Today Ltd 

(subsidiary)

Statutory 

audit

Wright Vigar

Limited

Non-significant component, with assurance gained 

from analytical procedures supported by a review 

of the Council’s consolidation processes

None

Arkwood

Development 

Company Ltd 

(subsidiary)

Statutory 

audit

Wright Vigar

Limited

Non-significant component, with assurance gained 

from analytical procedures supported by a review 

of the Council’s consolidation processes

None

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices
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2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:

• our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in the Audit Strategy
Memorandum;

• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial statements. On
page 11 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework and commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the year;

• any further significant matters discussed with management; and

• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit.

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement
As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the Council’s financial statements that required
special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and
how we intend to respond to these risks. No new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum.

6

Significant risk

Management override of 

controls

Description of the risk

In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique position to 

perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent 

financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to 

the unpredictable way in which such override could occur, we consider there to be a risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing audit work over:

• Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included in the financial statements;

• Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal course of business; and

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in preparation of the 

financial statements.

Audit conclusion

Our audit procedures have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention in relation to management 

override of controls.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices
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Significant risk Valuation of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sale

The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures relating to its holding of property, plant 

and equipment and assets held for sale, with the majority of land and building assets required to be carried 

at valuation. Due to high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with those held at valuation, we 

determined there is a significant risk in this area.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing the following audit work:

• Assessing the Council’s valuers scope of work, qualifications, objectivity and independence to carry out 

the required programme of revaluations;

• Considering whether the overall revaluation methodology used by the Council’s valuer is in line with 

industry practice, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s accounting policies;

• Assessing whether valuation movements are in line with market expectations by reference to 

alternative sources of valuation data to provide information on regional valuation trends;

• Assessing the treatment of the upward and downward revaluations in the Council’s financial statements 

with regards to the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice; and

• Assessing the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that assets not subject to revaluation in 

2019/20 are materially correct, including considering the robustness of that approach in light of the 

valuation information reported by the Council’s valuer.

Audit conclusion

The procedures we have undertaken have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention.

7

2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices
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Significant risk Valuation of net pensions liability

The Council’s accounts contain material liabilities relating to the local government pension scheme. The 

Council uses an actuary to provide an annual valuation of these liabilities in line with the requirements of 

IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with this valuation, 

we determined there is a significant risk in this area.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing the following audit work:

• Assessing the competency, objectivity and independence of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund’s 

Actuary, Barnett Waddingham LLP;

• Liaising with the auditors of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund to gain assurance that the controls in 

place at the Pension Fund are operating effectively. This included the processes and controls in place 

to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund for the purposes of the IAS 19 valuation is 

complete and accurate;

• Reviewing the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation methodologies applied by 

the Pension Fund Actuary, and the key assumptions included within the valuation. This included 

comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information provided by PwC, the consulting actuary 

engaged by the National Audit Office; and

• Agreeing the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the Fund Actuary for accounting purposes 

to the pension accounting entries and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

Audit conclusion

The procedures we have undertaken have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention. However we note that at the time 

of writing this report the assurance required from the auditors of the Nottinghamshire pension fund is still 

awaited.
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Significant risk Transfer of Newark and Sherwood Homes’ activities

During the year the Council transferred the housing functions provided by Newark and Sherwood Homes 

(an arms length management organisation) back into direct management by the Council. This transfer and 

the associated integration of these activities into the Council’s operations represented a significant change 

management agenda. The changes involved will impact on the values detailed in the Council’s accounts for 

2019/20 and we determined there is a significant risk in this area.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing the following audit work:

• Considering whether appropriate methodologies have been used by the Council to ensure the relevant 

transactions and valuations are reflected in the Council’s 2019/20 accounts;

• Testing related transactions at the Council to provide assurance over the transfer values included in the 

Council’s 2019/20 accounts; and

• Ensuring that the Council has made appropriate disclosures to reflect the transfer of Newark and 

Sherwood Homes’ activities.

Audit conclusion

The procedures we have undertaken have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention.
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Management

judgement

Debt impairment

Description of the management judgement

Uncertainty exists that, in the current economic climate, the Council’s provision for the impairment of 

doubtful debts would be sufficient.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement

We addressed this area of management judgement through performing the following audit work:

• Reviewing the level of reported debt as at the 31 March and considering the implications for any 

material change;

• Ensuring that managements methodology for calculating the provision has been consistently applied 

and is in line with the requirements of the Code;

• Testing the collectability of both significant and a sample of other non-significant debtor balances; and

• Re-performing the basis of the calculation for the impairment of debtors.

Audit conclusion

The procedures we have undertaken have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements, or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention.
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2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Management

judgement

Provision for 

business rate 

appeals against the 

rating list

Description of the management judgement

Management need to make an assumption over the likely level of appeals that will be successful based on 

their rating knowledge.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement

We addressed this area of management judgement through performing the following audit work:

• Reviewing the basis of the Council's calculation of its provision by recalculating the provision, 

evaluating the key assumptions of the provision, vouching movements in the provision and confirming 

completeness of entries;

• Assessing whether the provision has been calculated and recorded in accordance with the Council's 

accounting policy;

• Assessing whether the amount provided at the period end is appropriate, taking into account the 

Council's anticipated actual liability; and

• Assessing whether the reconciliation of movements during the period and description of the nature of 

the provision have been adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

Audit conclusion

The procedures we have undertaken have not identified any material errors or uncertainties in the financial 

statements or other matters that we wish to bring to Members’ attention.

We have however identified an error exceeding our reporting threshold affected by this significant risk, 

these are set out in Section 4.
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Qualitative aspects of the Council’s accounting practices

We have reviewed the Council’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with the requirements of the Code of

Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code), appropriately tailored to the Council’s circumstances.

Draft accounts were received from the Council in advance of the 31 August deadline and were of a good quality. These were supported

by working papers of a god standard and represents a significant achievement by the finance team.

Significant matters discussed with management

Due to the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s business the following additional financial reporting challenges requiring additional audit

procedures and testing have been noted and discussed with management:

• Valuation Uncertainty
RICS guidance has been issued which indicates that valuers are likely to conclude that that there is “material uncertainty”
over the valuation of land and buildings and investment properties at the balance sheet date.

• Going Concern
The Council’s going concern status is confirmed through the 2019/20 local government accounting code, and must also
follow International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1: Presentation of financial statements. We must comply with a revised ISA
(UK) 570 Going Concern, effective for periods commencing on or after 15 December 2019. The above, combined with the
impact of Covid-19, means an additional level of scrutiny is required over the going concern assertion in 2019/20. In
particular management’s explicit considerations of whether the financial statement disclosure for going concern should
more explicitly describe the impact of Covid-19.

This is also a matter for consideration as part of our work on the value for money conclusion.

• Financial Instruments

Whilst the Government has introduced a number of measures to ease financial hardship, the Council will need to consider
the impact on expected credit losses or the impairment of financial assets.

• Sources of estimation uncertainty, including pension fund assets and liabilities

The Council is required to provide disclosures regarding the key sources of estimation uncertainty that management has
made in preparing the financial statements, specifically those with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the ensuing financial year.

• Pensions: McCloud and Goodwin

In July 2019, MHCLG consulted on the proposed remedy for the ‘McCloud’ and ‘Sargeant’ cases. This indicates that the
approach adopted for 2018/19 and 2019/20 is likely to have led to an overstatement of the pension fund liability as at 31
March 2020.

The Goodwin case brought against the Secretary of State for Education earlier this year regarding discrimination owing to
sexual orientation in the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. MHCLG have commissioned Government Actuary Department to
undertake a review of the potential impact and at a local level, there is an additional risk to evaluate as to whether the
scheme is materially misstated

The Council is required to provide disclosures regarding the key sources of estimation uncertainty that management has
made in preparing the financial statements, specifically those with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the ensuing financial year.

We have therefore needed to consider the implications arising from the above issues as part of our testing, conclusions and reporting.

Significant difficulties during the audit

During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management and

staff.
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Wider responsibilities

Our powers and responsibilities under the 2014 Act are broad and include the ability to:

• issue a report in the public interest;

• make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

• apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

• issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act.

We have not exercised any of these powers as part of our 2019/20 audit.

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the auditor and the right to make

an objection to an item of account.

We have not received any questions or objections.
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The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part of our audit we have considered the internal

controls in place relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. We do this in order to design audit procedures to allow us to

express an opinion on the financial statement and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control,

nor to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation.

The matters reported are limited to those deficiencies and other control recommendations that we have identified during our normal audit

procedures and that we consider to be of sufficient importance to merit being reported. If we had performed more extensive procedures

on internal control we might have identified more deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the reported deficiencies need

not in fact have been reported. Our comments should not be regarded as a comprehensive record of all deficiencies that may exist or

improvements that could be made.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Follow up of previous internal control points

We set out below an update on internal control points raised in the prior year.
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Description of deficiency 

Fixed asset additions

Our testing of fixed asset additions identified capital expenditure of £42k against one asset that had been recognised in both 

2017/18 and 2018/19. This was due to an address duplication of the information provided by Newark and Sherwood Homes in 

2018/19, as the second amount of £42k should have been allocated to a different property address. While this is a control 

deficiency, there is no financial impact as the works have been included in the asset register and then revalued down to nil.

Potential effects

Assets could be overstated where assets are not revalued to nil.

Recommendation

The Council should ensure that fixed asset additions are recognised in the correct year.

2019/20 update

The Council has updated its procedures around capitalisation to ensure that this issue cannot be repeated. Our testing of asset 

additions in the current year has not identified any areas of concern.
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We set out below the misstatements identified for adjustment during the course of the audit, above the level of trivial threshold of £68k.

The first table outlines the misstatements that were identified during the course of our audit which management has assessed as not

being material, either individually or in aggregate, to the financial statements and does not currently plan to adjust.

The second table outlines the misstatements that have been adjusted by management during the course of the audit.

Unadjusted misstatements 2019/20

We have not identified any misstatements that management has decided not to adjust.

Adjusted misstatements 2019/20

We identified six misstatements above our trivial threshold, one of which exceeds our audit materiality, that management has agreed to

amend. For completeness we report all of these in the table below:
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Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Provisions – Non domestic rate appeals

Cr: Taxation and non-specific grant income and 

expenditure - Non-domestic rates income and 

expenditure

Dr: MiRS – Adjustments between accounting basis and 

funding basis under regulation

Cr: Unusable reserves - Collection fund adjustment 

account

Dr: Creditors – Other payables

620

(310)

620

(620)

(310)

Inclusion of estimated appeals losses in respect of the 2020/21 rating year in error. This error also has consequential 

impacts for the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and Notes 9, 10, 11, 12, 16, 31, 32, 34 and 36A

Total adjusted misstatements 620 (310) 620 (930)

Disclosure amendments
In addition to the above numerical errors that relate directly to the primary statements or their related notes, our audit also identified a

small number of errors and adjustments in relation to other disclosures. These have been discussed with management who have agreed

to the amendments and includes:

• Cash flow statement and related notes 36A ,36B and 36D;

• Note13 Transfers to/from(-) earmarked reserves;

• Note 23 Leases – Disclosure as lessee;

• Note 34 Unusable reserves – Pensions reserve; and

• Notes 40, 41, 42 and 43 Financial instruments.
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Introduction

We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order

to form our conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider.

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’ To assist auditors in reaching a

conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Our approach

Our overall approach is set out in our Audit Strategy Memorandum and involves a detailed risk assessment at the planning stage to

identify whether or not a Value for Money (VFM) risk exists. Risk, in the context of our VFM work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect

conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place at the Council being inadequate. As set out in our Audit Strategy

Memorandum, for the 2018/19 financial year, we identified no significant audit risks.

Based on the work performed, we are satisfied that the Council’s arrangements are adequate.

Matters kept under review

Before drawing our conclusion, we have:

• Updated our risk assessment for any new or emerging issues through discussions with management and updating our review

of committee reports;

• Reviewed the Council’s Annual Governance Statement for any significant issues; and

• Considered the Council’s financial outturn position as presented in the financial statements.

From the work performed, no new significant VFM risks were identified and we have no matters to report.

Our overall Value for Money conclusion

We have completed our procedures and, as set out in our draft auditor’s report included at Appendix B, we intend to issue an unqualified 

Value for Money conclusion for the 2019/20 financial year.
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Mazars LLP

Park View House

58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham

NG1 5DW

[Date]

Dear Sirs

Newark and Sherwood District Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2020

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Newark and Sherwood District Council (the Council and

Group) for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in

accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (the Code) and applicable law.

I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and,

where appropriate, inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that I can properly make each of the following representations

to you.

My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information

I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Code

and applicable law.

My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information

I have provided you with:

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and

other material;

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council and Group you determined it was necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence.

I confirm as Director of Resources that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that

you, as auditors, are aware of this information.

As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware.

Accounting records

I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in

the financial statements. All other records and related information, including minutes of all Council and committee meetings, have been made available to

you.

Accounting policies

I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and

consider these policies to faithfully represent the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Council and Group’s financial position,

financial performance and cash flows.

Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value

I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council and Group in making accounting estimates, including those measured at current or fair

value, are reasonable.
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Contingencies

There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be accrued where:

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; 

and

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the conditions specified above are not met, there is a 

reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date.

There are no contingent gains which should be disclosed.

All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council and Group have been brought to your attention. All 

known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you 

and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable law.

Laws and regulations

I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, 

together with the actual or contingent consequences which may arise therefrom.

The Council and Group has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-

compliance.

Fraud and error

I acknowledge my responsibility as Director of Resources for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud 

and error. 

I have disclosed to you:

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council and Group involving:

o management and those charged with governance;

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; and

o others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements 

communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Related party transactions

I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the to 

you the requirements of the Code and applicable law.

I have disclosed  identity of the Council and Group’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware.

Impairment review

To the best of my knowledge, there is nothing to indicate that there is a permanent reduction in the recoverable amount of the property, plant and 

equipment and intangible assets below their carrying value at the balance sheet date. An impairment review is therefore not considered necessary.

Charges on assets

All the Council’s assets are free from any charges exercisable by third parties except as disclosed within the financial statements.

Future commitments

I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise 

to additional liabilities.
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Subsequent events

I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code and applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have 

been adjusted or disclosed.

Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision of the figures included in the financial statements or 

inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you accordingly.

Covid-19

We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 Virus pandemic on the Council, including the impact of 

mitigation measures and uncertainties, and that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that assessment.

Brexit

We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential 

outcomes at the end of the Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that assessment

Going concern

To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council and Group will not continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The 

period to which I have paid particular attention in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date 

of approval of the accounts.

Ultimate parent company

I confirm that the ultimate parent company for the Council is Newark and Sherwood District Council.

Yours faithfully

Director of Resources
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Newark and Sherwood District

Council

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Newark and Sherwood District Council (‘the Council’) and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’) for the year ended 31

March 2020, which comprise the Council and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements, the Council and Group Movement in

Reserves Statements, the Council and Group Balance Sheets, the Council and Group Cash Flow Statements and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and

the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Newark and Sherwood District Council and the Group as at 31st March 2019 and of the Council’s

and the Group’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

2019/20.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Council and Group in accordance with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

• the Director of Resources’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

• the Director of Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the

Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The Director of Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of

Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Director of Resources for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer, the Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Statement

of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Director of Resources is also

responsible for such internal control as the Director of Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Director of Resources is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20

and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Council is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services

or function to another entity. The Director of Resources is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the Council and Group

to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

• we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

• we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Conclusion on Newark and Sherwood District Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency

and effectiveness in the use of resources

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are

satisfied that, in all significant respects, Newark and Sherwood District Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Basis for conclusion

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General, having regard to the

guidance on the specified criterion issued in April 2020, as to whether the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined

this criterion as that necessary for us to consider in satisfying ourselves whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered

necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure

proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you our

conclusion relating to proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the members of Newark and Sherwood District Council, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and

Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector

Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Council those matters we are required to

state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone

other than the members of the Council, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of Newark and Sherwood District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

David Hoose

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Park View House

58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham

NG1 5DW

November 2020
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As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new actual or perceived threats to our

independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore

we remain independent.
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David Hoose

Partner

Phone: +44 (0) 115 964 4779

Mobile: +44 (0) 755 200 7708

Email: david.hoose@mazars.co.uk

Jon Machej

Manager

Phone: +44 (0) 115 964 4782

Mobile: +44 (0) 776 654 0252

Email: jon.machej@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT
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Castle House 
Great North Road 

Newark 
Nottinghamshire 

NG24 1BY 

www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 
 

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 
 

 

Mazars LLP 
Park View House 
58 The Ropewalk 
Nottingham 
NG1 5DW 
 

Telephone: 01636 655303 
Email: Sanjiv.Kohli@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 

 
 

 Date 25th November 2020 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Newark and Sherwood District Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2020 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
Newark and Sherwood District Council (the Council and Group) for the year ended 31 March 
2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true 
and fair view in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (the Code) and applicable law. 
 
I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management 
and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, inspection of 
supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that I can properly make each of the 
following representations to you. 
 
My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information 
 
I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation 
of the financial statements in accordance with the Code and applicable law. 
 
My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information 
 
I have provided you with: 
 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other material; 

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 
• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council (and Group) you determined it was 

necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence. 
 

I confirm as Director of Resources that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of 
any relevant audit information and to establish that you, as auditors, are aware of this 
information. 
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As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are 
unaware. 
 
Accounting records 
 
I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been 
recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. All other 
records and related information, including minutes of all Council and committee meetings, have 
been made available to you. 
 
Accounting policies 
 
I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with 
Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent 
the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Council and Group’s financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows. 
 
Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value 
 
I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council (and Group) in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured at current or fair value, are reasonable. 
 
Contingencies 
 
There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be 
accrued where: 
 

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been 
impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; and 

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
 
There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both 
the conditions specified above are not met, there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss 
greater than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date. 
 
There are no contingent gains which should be disclosed. 
 
All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council 
(and Group) have been brought to your attention. All known actual or possible litigation and 
claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been 
disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable 
law. 
 
Laws and regulations 
 
I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known 
or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, together with the actual or contingent 
consequences which may arise therefrom. 
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The Council (and Group) has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would 
have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance. 
 
Fraud and error 
 
I acknowledge my responsibility as Director of Resources for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 
 
I have disclosed to you: 
 

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud; 

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council and Group involving: 
o management and those charged with governance; 
o employees who have significant roles in internal control; and 
o others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators or others. 
 
Related party transactions 
 
I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable law. 
 
I have disclosed identity of the Council’s and Group’s related parties and all related party 
relationships and transactions of which I am aware.  
 
Impairment review 
 
To the best of my knowledge, there is nothing to indicate that there is a permanent reduction in 
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets below their 
carrying value at the balance sheet date. An impairment review is therefore not considered 
necessary. 
 
Charges on assets 
 
All the Council’s assets are free from any charges exercisable by third parties except as disclosed 
within the financial statements. 
 
Future commitments 
 
I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying 
value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise to additional liabilities. 
 
Subsequent events 
 
I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code 
and applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
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Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision 
of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you 
accordingly. 
 
Covid-19 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 Virus 
pandemic on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, and 
that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that assessment. 
 
Brexit 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United 
Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the end of the 
Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that 
assessment. 
 
Going concern 
 
To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council and Group will not 
continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which I have paid particular 
attention in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve 
months from the date of approval of the accounts. 
 
Ultimate parent company 
 
I confirm that the ultimate parent company for the Council is Newark and Sherwood District 
Council. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Sanjiv Kohli 
Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director of Resources 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Sylvia Michael 
Chair – Audit and Accounts Committee 
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AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report sets out the Council’s assessment by the Council’s Section 151 officer of the 

Council’s Going Concern status. 
 
2.0 Background Information  
 
2.1 The concept of a ‘going concern’ assumes that an authority, its functions and services will 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This assumption underpins 
the accounts drawn up under the Local Authority Code of Accounting Practice and is made 
because local authorities carry out functions essential to the local community and are 
themselves revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their revenue-raising powers arising only 
at the discretion of central government). If an authority were in financial difficulty, the 
prospects are thus that alternative arrangements might be made by central government 
either for the continuation of the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of 
a deficit over more than one financial year. 

 
2.2 Where the ‘going concern’ concept is not the case, particular care would be needed in the 

valuation of assets, as inventories and property, plant and equipment may not be realisable 
at their book values and provisions may be needed for closure costs or redundancies. An 
inability to apply the going concern concept would potentially have a fundamental impact 
on the financial statements. 

 
2.3 Given the significant reduction in funding for local government in recent years and the 

potential threat that COVID-19 poses to the ongoing viability of one or more councils as a 
consequence, External Auditors are placing a greater emphasis on local authorities 
undertaking an assessment of the ‘going concern’ basis on which they prepare their 
financial statements. In response the position at Newark and Sherwood District Council is 
set out within this report. 

 
3.0 Assessment of Going Concern  
 
3.1 As with all principal local authorities, the Council is required to compile its Statement of 

Accounts in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting for 
2019/20 (hereafter referred to as the Code). The Code is published by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). In accordance with the Code the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts is prepared assuming that the Council will continue to 
operate in the foreseeable future and that it is able to do so within the current and 
anticipated resources available. By this, it is meant that the Council will realise its assets 
and settle its obligations in the normal course of business. 

 
The main factors which underpin the going concern assessment are: 

 

 The Council’s current financial position 

 The Council’s projected financial position 
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 The Council’s governance arrangements 

 The regulatory and control environment applicable to the Council as a local authority 
 

These are considered in more detail below. 
 
4.0 The Council’s current financial position 
 
4.1 The financial outturn position for the General Fund for 2019/20 shows a favourable 

variance against revised budget of £1.133m. There was a revision of -£0.126m compared 
with the outturn report presented to Policy and Finance Committee on 25th June 2020 
based on the amendment to the Statement of Accounts relating to the Business Rates 
provision for appeals as reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee 30th September 
2020. As at the 31st March 2020 the Council held general fund revenue reserves of 
£24.022m. Of this, £1.357m relates to funds that are ringfenced to specific activity (for 
instance Building Control/Homelessness), £7.831m is earmarked for future known 
pressures (for instance Repairs and Renewals, Medium Term Financial Plan Reserve) and 
£14.834m was un-ringfenced. This balance includes the statutory general reserve which 
has been assessed as a prudent level of £1.500m. The rest of the un-ringfenced reserves 
relate to the Change Management Fund which provides resource in order to support 
business transformation and large scale infrastructure projects. Commitments against the 
Change Management Fund have already been made to support delivery of infrastructure 
projects meaning that actually only £5.035m remains uncommitted within this fund. 

 
4.2 General reserves reflect the ability of the Council to deal with unforeseen events and 

unexpected financial pressures in any particular year and are a key indicator of the 
financial resilience of the organisation.  As part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy the 
Chief Finance Officer has assessed that the optimum level of the general reserve to be held 
by the Council to be at least £1.5m as per the above paragraph.  

 
4.3 At 31st March 2020 the Council held £30.459m in the form of either cash or short term 

investments maturing within the next financial year. During 2019/20 the Council also 
invested £7.500m in longer term investments which would mature at a date post 31st 
March 2021. The Council’s cash flow forecast for the future 12 months takes into account 
the anticipated inflows and outflows of cash. The forecast shows that over this 12 month 
period, there will not be a point in which the Council does not have liquid funds available in 
order to service its liabilities. 

 
4.4 Where the Council makes long term financing decisions (through the Capital programme) 

these can include decisions on forecast borrowing the Council may need to take. Where 
the Council does decide that borrowing is required, it has access through the PWLB (or 
other market instruments when appropriate) to funds in order to meet the requirement. 

 
4.5 Regarding capital; £15.120m of expenditure was approved within the General Fund capital 

programme for the 2019/20 financial year (including Revenue Expenditure funded from 
Capital under Statute).  The outturn performance was £9.179m which represents an 
underspend of £5.941m. The main reasons for this shortfall in planned expenditure were 
£2.833m in relation to a planned contribution to the Southern Link Road, £0.941m planned 
contribution to the Robin Hood Hotel, £0.530m slippage in the delivery of the new 
swimming pool at the Dukeries Leisure Centre and a £0.240m loan to the Magnus Academy 
to refurbish the hockey pitch at the school. £7.698m of capital spending was re-profiled 
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into 2020/21 based on the capital outturn position, for which the projects above were 
included. The Council funds its capital programme from borrowing, capital receipts, direct 
financing from revenue, government grants and partnership funding eg contributions from 
developers through S106 agreement. 

 
5.0  The Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020 
 
5.1 The balance sheet shows a net worth of £234.988m which includes a liability worth 

£71.489m in relation to the future costs of Pensions liabilities. There are statutory 
arrangements for funding the pension deficit through increasing contribution over the 
remaining working life of the employees, as assessed by an independent actuary – Barnett 
Waddington in the case of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund.  Therefore, the financial 
position of the Council remains healthy.  Other factors giving rise to this assessment 
include: 

 

 The adequacy of risk assessed provisions for doubtful debts 

 The range of reserves set aside to help manage expenditure 

 An adequate risk assessed general reserve to meet unforeseen expenditure 
 
6.0 The Council’s projected financial position 
 
6.1 In March 2020, the Council approved a balanced budget for 2020/21. This allows for net 

spending of £13.504m and required a council tax increase of £5 (at a Band D level) 
compared with the 2019/20 financial year, this included a transfer to reserves of £3.082m 
which included £1.741m of New Homes Bonus, which is split 50% contributing towards 
short life fixed assets (such as refuse freighters and ICT hardware) and 50% to the Change 
Management reserve. Of the remaining £1.341m, £1.684m was to contribute towards the 
MTFP reserve with a draw-down of £0.343m from other reserves. 

 
6.2 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is updated annually and reflects a 

four year assessment of the Council’s spending plans and associated funding. It includes 
the ongoing implications of approved budgets and service levels and the revenue costs of 
the council’s capital programme, as well as the management of debt and investments. An 
update on the Council’s medium-term financial position covering the four year period 
2020/21 to 2023/24 was reported to Council during October 2020 and reported a shortfall 
of £1.268m on the MTFP reserve balance by the end of the MTFP window. 

 
6.3 The projected outturn position for the 2020/21 financial year was included within the 

update to the MTFP that was presented to Council in October 2020. This is forecast to be 
an unfavourable variance of circa £0.600m. The Council continues to monitor this position 
and will report to the Policy and Finance Committee throughout the year with forecast 
performance against budget. 

 
6.4 The Council continues to monitor its forecast cash flow going forward in order to ensure 

that the inflows and outflows of cash is managed by prudent invest and borrowing 
decisions placed in accordance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy. The 
forecast for the next 12 months does not indicate that there will be a position where the 
Council does not have access to funds to meet its obligations. 
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6.5 In addition to this, the Council has access to funds through the PWLB (or alternative 
lenders) in order to support borrowing requirements arising as a consequence of capital 
decision making. 

 
7.0 The Council’s governance arrangements 
 
7.1  The Council has a well-established and robust corporate governance framework. This 

includes the statutory elements like the post of Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Section 151 Officer in addition to the current political arrangements.   

 
7.2 An overview of this governance framework is provided within the Annual Governance 

Statement which is included within the Statement of Accounts and was presented to the 
Audit and Accounts Committee on 30th September 2020. This includes a detailed review of 
the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements.  

 
8.0 The external regulatory and control environment 
 
8.1 As a local authority the Council has to operate within a highly legislated and controlled 

environment. An example of this is the requirement for a balanced budget each year 
combined with the legal requirement for councils to have regard to consideration of such 
matters as the robustness of budget estimates and the adequacy of reserves. In addition to 
the legal framework and central government control there are other factors such as the 
role undertaken by External Audit as well as the statutory requirement in some cases for 
compliance with best practice and guidance published by CIPFA and other relevant bodies. 

 
8.2 Against this backdrop it is considered unlikely that a local authority would be ‘allowed to 

fail’ with the likelihood being, when faced with such a scenario, that central government 
would intervene supported by organisations such as the Local Government Association to 
bring about the required improvements or help maintain service delivery. This has been 
evidenced with the case of Northamptonshire County Council and the interventions that 
have been introduced as a result of the situation that arose. 

 
8.3 However, given the severity of this pandemic on the Country’s finances, it would be 

complacent to sit back and wait for Government intervention.  MHCLG have conceded that 
councils could still be left with unmanageable pressures and may continue to be concerned 
about their future financial position, urging any authority that found itself in that position 
to contact the department with immediate effect. 

 
9.0 Impact of Covid-19  
 
9.1 The Council has received £1.483m in support from Central Government to mitigate against 

additional costs and income pressures as a result of Covid-19. This funding has been 
allocated to priority spend, which in the main is one-off, in order to maintain service 
delivery, safeguard staff and support vulnerable residents. A breakdown of the current 
budgets was presented to the Policy and Finance Committee on 24th September 2020. 

 
9.2 The Government announced a scheme whereby Councils that see a reduction in budgeted 

sales, fees and charges will be eligible for reimbursement of 75% after a 5% deductible 
amount. MHCLG said the 5% figure accounted for “an acceptable level of volatility while 
shielding authorities from the worst losses” while covering three-quarters of every pound 
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lost would encourage councils to “manage and minimise loss where they can”. This 
therefore is equivalent to 71.25% reimbursement of the lost income. 

 
10.0 Conclusion 
 
10.1 It is considered that having regard to the Council’s arrangements and such factors as 

highlighted in this report, that the Council remains a going concern. 
 
11.0 Equalities Implications 
 
11.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 Financial Implications (FIN20-21/2683) 
 
12.1 The report contains all relevant financial implications. 
 
13.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Members note the conclusion of the assessment made of the Council’s status as a 
going concern for the purposes of the Statement of Accounts 2019/20. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 
 
In order to support the approval of the Statement of Accounts for the 2019/20 financial year 
where this has been produced on a going concern basis.  
 
Background Papers 
 
Statement of Accounts 2019/20 
Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
General Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital Outturn report to 31st March 2021 as at 31st July 2020 
 
For further information please contact Nick Wilson, Business Manager - Financial Services on Ext 
5317 
 
Nick Wilson 
Business Manager - Financial Services 
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AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE 
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
APPROVAL OF THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To obtain approval by an appropriate Committee of the Council’s Statutory Accounts for 

the financial year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
2.0 Introduction 
  
2.1 In accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 there is a legal requirement 

that the Statement of Accounts for the Council receive approval by an appropriate 
Committee by the 31 July following the end of the financial year to which the Accounts 
relate.  However due to disruption caused by the COVID 19 virus, legislation was passed to 
delay the statutory publication date of the audit opinion until the 30 November 2020. In 
accordance with the Council’s Constitution and the remit of this Committee, the Statement 
of Accounts is brought to this Committee for approval.   Any changes arising after the 
distribution of the agenda will be advised at the meeting.  If these are significant they will 
be notified to Members as soon as they become apparent in order to allow Members to 
consider them prior to the meeting. 

 
3.0 Approval of the Accounts 
 
3.1 Although the regulations require the accounts to be approved by a resolution of a 

Committee it should be noted that approval in this context has, to some extent, a different 
meaning from other Committee resolutions.  The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) for 
the District Council, the Director of Resources – S151 Officer, retains responsibility for the 
preparation of the annual accounts and is required to certify that they present a true and 
fair view of the financial position of the Council at 31 March 2020.  

 
3.2 The aim of the Regulations is for Members to demonstrate ownership of the accounting 

statements.  In order to assist Members in having a chance to review the accounts before 
final adoption the Audited Draft Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 
were brought to the last committee, 30 September 2020. 

 
3.3 There is a statutory requirement for the accounts of Arkwood Developments Ltd and 

Active4Today Ltd, the Council’s two subsidiary companies, to be combined with the District 
Council’s accounts to produce Group accounts which also have to be approved by the 30 
November.   

   
4.0 Changes made to the Statements 
 
4.1 There is a requirement that the external auditor, Mazars, provides details of all of the 

errors in the financial statements that need amendment within the Report.   Their Audit 
Completion Report was presented to members in the last committee and a subsequent 
Audit Completion Report – follow up letter can be found under agenda item ‘External Audit 
Supplementary Letter to Audit Completion Report’ and Appendix A. 
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4.2 The audit identified only one significant misstatement, which was detailed as per the last 
committee report and all relevant notes where subsequently adjusted.   

 
4.3 The Audit Completion report – follow up letter identifies that 3 out of the 4 outstanding 

audit items have been completed with no matters to report.  However, at the time of 
writing this report, the audit area for Pensions is currently still ongoing.  This is due to the 
external auditors of the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund not yet replying to our auditors 
request for supplementary procedures, on their behalf, for additional verification and 
therefore our external auditors are unable to gain satisfactory assurance over the net 
pension liability figure within our accounts. 

 
4.4 As the net pension liability figure within the Councils accounts is £71.489m, this represents 

a significant amount which therefore requires the assurance from the external suppliers of 
the figure.  There will be a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ disclosed on the Pension Fund’s 
holding of property assets.  Due to the materiality of the Councils share of net pension 
liability figure, the Councils’ accounts have had the following wording added into note 4 – 
Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty 
and note 39 – Post Employment Benefits; 

 
 “The Council participates in the Nottinghamshire Pension Fund (NPF). NPF property 

valuation as at 31 March 2020 includes a 'material valuation uncertainty' clause that 
explains that, market activity is being impacted in many sectors and the property valuation 
is reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the 
RICS Red Book Global as the valuers do not consider that they can rely upon previous 
market evidence to fully inform opinions of value at the valuation date. 

 
 The Council’s share of property assets, subject to the ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 

declaration by NPF, as set out in Note 39, is £14.9m, which is material to the Council’s 
financial statements.” 

 
As the accounts have been amended to include the above wording, as per the external 
audit completion report supplementary letter under agenda item ‘External Audit 
Supplementary Letter to Audit Completion Report’, the external auditor suggests this will 
lead to an ‘emphasis of matters’ paragraph in their Audit Report.  The proposed wording 
from within the supplementary letter is;  
 
“We draw attention to Note’s X & Y of the financial statements, which describes the effects 
of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Council’s land, buildings and investment 
properties and the valuation of the Council’s share of Nottinghamshire Pension Fund’s 
property assets. As disclosed in Note X of the financial statements, the Council’s and 
Pension Fund’s valuers included a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ declaration within their 
reports as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic creating a shortage of relevant market 
evidence on which to base their judgements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.” 

 
4.5 An emphasis of matter paragraph is defined as; 

 A paragraph included in the auditor’s report that refers to a matter appropriately presented 
or disclosed in the financial statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such 
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding of the financial statements. 
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4.5 In the event that the accounts are required to be updated after the approval given within 
this report, this report recommends that delegation be given to the S151 Officer and 
Chairman of this committee to be able to approve any amendments required to the 
accounts arising from the pension assurance letter from Nottinghamshire Pension Funds 
external auditors. 

 
4.6 Due to the above the audit completion report supplementary letter also states that the 

auditors are uncertain as to whether or not they will be able to issue their audit report 
prior to the statutory deadline of 30 November. 

 
 Annual Governance Statement 
 
5.0 The Audit and Account Regulations 2015 require the Council to carry out an annual review 

of the effectiveness of its system of internal control.  Having considered the findings of the 
review members are then required to approve an Annual Governance Statement, prepared 
in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal control.  The Annual Governance 
Statement has been reviewed and updated for 2019/2020 and is included in the Statement 
of Accounts.  It is reproduced at Appendix A for ease of reference.   
 

 Letter of Representation 
 
6.0 The Council’s letter of representation to the external auditor attests to the accuracy of the 

financial statements submitted to the auditors for their analysis.  In essence the letter 
states that all of the information submitted is accurate and that all material information 
has been disclosed to the auditors.  The letter must be signed by the Chairman of the Audit 
and Accounts Committee and the Responsible Financial Officer.  A copy of the letter is 
attached for information at Appendix B. 
 

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that: 
 

(a) Members approve the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year ended 31 
March 2020; 
 

(b) Members approve the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 
2020; 

 
(c) Members give delegation to the s151 Officer and the Chairman to sign a revised set of 

accounts if required as per para 4.5; and 
 
(d) Members note that as per the previous report the s151 Officer and the Chairman 

have signed the Letter of Representation. 
 

Background Papers 
 
Nil. 
 
For further information contact Nick Wilson on extension 5317 or Andrew Snape, Assistant 
Business Manager Financial Services on extension 5523.   
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Annual Governance Statement 

1. Scope of responsibility
Newark and Sherwood District Council is responsible for ensuring that the Authority’s own and, (with the 
addition of Newark and Sherwood Homes, Active4Today Ltd and Arkwood Developments Ltd), its Group 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards; that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Newark and 
Sherwood District Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Newark and Sherwood District Council is responsible for putting 
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, including arrangements for the management of risk. 

2. The purpose of the governance framework
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the authority 
is directed and controlled. The framework also includes activities through which the authority accounts 
to, engages with, and leads the communities that it serves. It enables the authority to monitor and assess 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Newark and Sherwood District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Newark and Sherwood District Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. Since May 2013 the Council has operated governance arrangements through the 
use of a Committee system. 

3. The governance framework
The key elements of the District Council’s governance framework are as follows:

The District Council has adopted a Constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions 
are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. The Constitution is subject to periodic change either through national 
legislation or local decision and the Governance Framework may be amended accordingly.  Within the 
Constitution, the Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government, which was revised in 2016.  The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance was also reviewed 
during 2016 to ensure it complied with the requirements of the revised Framework.

The Annual Governance Statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also meets 
the requirements of Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require an 
authority to conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control 
and include a statement reporting on the review with any published Statement of Accounts (England).  

The Council adopted a new Community Plan for the 2019/20 financial year which was approved at 
Council on 7th March 2019. The new Community Plan spans the medium term from 2019 through to 
2023 and sets out 11 Objectives (https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/councilpriorities/). The
 delivery of these objectives is being conducted in accordance with the Governance framework. 

During 2019/20 the Council facilitated policy and decision-making through a Committee system. 
Meetings are open to the public except where exempt or confidential matters are being considered. In 
addition, the Council’s Constitution gives delegated authority for senior officers of the Council to make 
decisions in certain specified circumstances.  

The District Council has a cross-service Risk Management Group that meets regularly to identify and 
evaluate all significant risks. Strategic, Corporate and Operational Risk Registers are in place and 
appropriate staff have been trained in the assessment, management and monitoring of risks.  In 
addition to this, a Fraud Risk Register is in place and a full refresh took place during 2019/20 facilitated by 
the Council’s Internal Audit contractors Assurance Lincolnshire. This was due to be presented to the Audit 
and Accounts Committee at its meeting in April, but due to the Coronavirus Pandemic, this meeting was 
cancelled.

Through reviews by external auditors, external agencies, internal auditors, and its performance team the 
District Council constantly seeks ways of ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of 
resources, and for securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, hav-
ing regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

Services are delivered by trained and experienced officers. All posts have a detailed job description and 
person specification. Training needs are identified through the Performance Appraisal Scheme, which 
was reviewed and updated in 2019. 

The statutory role of Monitoring Officer is undertaken by the Director of Governance and Organisational 
Development. It is the function of the Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with established policies, 
procedures, laws and regulations. After consulting with the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer 
will report to the full Council if she considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness or maladministration. The standards of behaviour for members and employees are defined 
through Codes of Conduct and the Code of Corporate Governance. The Council also has an Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption Strategy and a Whistleblowing Policy that enables concerns to be raised confidentially 
by employees or persons doing business with the Council. A complaints system is also operated by the 
Council to enable comments on services to be received and investigated.

The Director of Resources post is combined with the Deputy Chief Executive position and has the s151 
Officer responsibilities attached to it.  The s151 Officer is responsible for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs including maintenance of financial records, presentation of statutory accounts 
and budgets, provision of effective internal audit and financial advice to Council. The Council’s financial 
management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the 
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government.

The Council communicates with its community and stakeholders by means of a periodic publication, 
“Voice”, through its website and through social media and by specific consultation. It undertook a
 household survey of all the residents and businesses in the District in 2018/19 – which led to the review 
and adoption of its Community Plan.
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4. Review of effectiveness
Newark and Sherwood District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Audit 
Manager’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates.  Business managers are required to provide assurance to the s151 officer that 
service areas are compliant with the Council’s governance arrangements.

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of inter-
nal control includes:

The Monitoring Officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its 
aims and principles are given full effect. The Council reviews the Constitution through a dedicated 
working party comprising, inter alia, all the group leaders, on a regular basis, and has formed a 
Councillors’ Commission to consider any changes resulting from recent legislation and to consider 
changes to facilitate more effective governance of the Council.

Overview and Scrutiny - During 2019/20 the overview & scrutiny function was undertaken through 
Committees with overview & scrutiny principles being embedded in the remits of the Policy and Finance 
Committee and the three functional committees as well as the Audit and Accounts Committee. 
Councillors’ Commission - The Council reviews the Constitution through a dedicated working party, (the 
Councillor’s Commission), which comprises senior councillors across all political groups, including all the 
group leaders. It meets on a regular basis to consider any changes resulting from recent legislation, and 
to consider proposals to facilitate more effective governance of the Council.

In October 2019, the Council undertook a governance review facilitated by an external peer team led by 
the Local Government Association. The review focussed on three broad areas: what was working well; 
what could be improved; and what should the Council do next. The report from the peer review made 
recommendations for the Council to explore the opportunity to improve governance further by looking 
at a future governance system and structures that delivers:

• a greater focus on outcomes for the community;
• clearer political ownership and accountability for policy and decision making, including opportunities
to challenge;
• consideration of where and how policy should be developed;
• greater political and managerial oversight of council performance;
• reducing duplication and inefficiencies;
• improving the speed and transparency of decision-making;
• further and ongoing community and stakeholder engagement, building on the success of the
Corporate Plan process

The Councillors’ Commission was tasked with taking the review forward in December 2019. It was agreed 
that the next step would be for councillors and officers to visit a small number of councils with differing 
governance of cabinet/committee arrangements to learn from their experiences. Although these visits 
were arranged to take place in March and April – these have been put on hold due to the pandemic. 

The Monitoring Officer -. Recent changes have been made to the Constitution, specifically the 
procedures for council/committee meetings and decision making arising from new Government
 Regulations to enable remotely held meetings due to the social distancing rules because of Covid-19. In 
addition, the Council has commissioned Assurance Lincolnshire, the Council’s internal auditors, to 
undertake an ethics and culture health check. Assurance Lincolnshire have developed a model to 
review the ethical culture within a local authority to test out how well its rules, procedures and 
behaviours around good ethical governance are embedded within the organisation. The model has been 
developed to get ‘under the surface’ and examine the principles and standards that underpin the way in 
which officers and members interact with others to support excellent service delivery. It is anticipated 
that this work will be completed during the current year. The review is being overseen by the Monitoring 
Officer and the Audit and Accounts Committee. 

Internal Audit - is responsible for reviewing the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control.  

An annual audit plan is approved by the s151 Officer together with the Senior Leadership Team and 
reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report 
of each audit to be submitted to the relevant Chief Officer and Business Manager. The report includes 
recommendations for improvements that are included within an action plan and require agreement 
or rejection by service managers. The Audit and Accounts Committee receives executive summaries of 
all internal audit reports and is advised of progress in implementing recommendations. Internal Audit 
reports are considered by the Council’s Senior Leadership Team. The Head of Internal Audit issues an 
annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and control 
framework.  For the 2019/20 financial year, the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit is that the Council is 
performing adequately across the areas of Financial Control, Governance, Risk and Internal Control. Five 
reports gave limited assurance (three during 2018/19) relating to:

• Building Control – Client Side – Since 2016, the Council, together with Rushcliffe Borough Council and
South Kesteven District Council, have been working collaboratively on the delivery of a Building Control
service. This report identified improvements relating to contract and relationship management;

• Community Centres – The Council currently has 4 Community Centres under its ownership. This audit
identified improvements relating to structure and performance measures to ensure that the Council un-
derstands the value that the Community Centres are adding and the mitigate any further risks;

• ICT Incident Management – This report highlighted improvements relating to ICT incident reporting,
handling and lessons learnt in order to efficiently and effectively deal with reported ICT issues.

• Key Controls – Health and Safety – As part of the Council’s key control testing an area of weakness was
recognised within Health and Safety reporting. The report identified improvements relating to reviewing
risk assessments.

• Key Controls – Absence Management – As part of the Council’s key control testing an area of weakness
was recognised within absence management. The report identified improvements relating to reporting
of information and review of the current policies.

Recommendations are being implemented to address the weaknesses identified by Internal Audit.

In addition, a management review was carried out of phase 1 of the Sherwood Forest Arts and Crafts 
Centre in Edwinstowe, which involved the conversion of a derelict building on Forest Corner. The review 
identified a number of weaknesses in project management and budgetary control. Management have 
carried out further follow up reviews and appropriate action is being taken to address the issues and 
weaknesses identified.
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The internal audit function is carried out by Assurance Lincolnshire.  During November 2019, a report 
reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function was considered by the Audit and Accounts 
Committee. The results of this review concluded that the Internal Audit function is currently working 
effectively. Assurance Lincolnshire conforms to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. An External 
Quality Assessment was undertaken IN September 2016 and preparations have started for the next 
required assessment in 2021. No areas of non-compliance with the standards that would affect the 
overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity was identified.

Risk management policies and procedures are in place with the objective of ensuring that the risks facing 
the authority in achieving its objectives are evaluated, regularly reviewed and mitigation strategies 
developed.

Additionally to the issues identified in the table below, the current key issue for the Council is COVID-19. 
The Council is working closely with central government, the health service and the local resilience forum 
to support businesses and residents across the District as follows:

• Supporting businesses – Rate relief coupled with grants for businesses in the retail, hospitality and
leisure sectors have to date helped around 2,200 businesses

• Supporting residents – the Council is making contact with vulnerable residents and tenants and is
working with partners to proactively support rough sleepers. Residents who have serious underlying
health conditions have been identified and there are processes in place to support this highly vulnerable
group

In moving to the recovery phase, the Council has initiated a recovery cell (as part of its Emergency 
Planning policy) in order to focus initially on community resilience and economic impact, alongside day 
to day service provision. This group will also consider how lessons can be learned from the response to 
the pandemic and how opportunities can be explored and impacts be mitigated. The Council plans 
recognise that recovery is best achieved with multi agency collaboration in accordance with the 
guidance and responsibilities of the Civil Contingencies Act. The Council is fully engaged in recovery 
planning and delivery at a local, regional and national level.

Virtual Council meetings are taking place to maintain open and transparent decision making whilst 
observing social distancing. Further information regarding this can be found on the Council’s social 
media accounts and at www.democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

Conclusion

The Council has assessed the governance arrangements in place throughout 2019/20 and whilst it is 
considered that the current arrangements provide a satisfactory level of assurance, work is continuously 
underway to ensure that the arrangements remain fit for purpose in an ever changing external 
environment.

5. Significant governance issues

Issue Action Responsible 
Officer

Re-integration of Housing 
Management Function

During 2018/19 the Council 
reviewed its arrangements 
regarding the Housing 
Management function, 
culminating in the “in principle” 
decision to bring the service 
in-house for direct service 
provision by the Council, 
subject

The Council brought back its Housing 
Service on the 1st February 2020. As 
part of this, the Council has established 
a review of tenant engagement. It is a 
regulatory requirement of housing 
providers to deliver effective 
opportunities for tenants to influence 
the design and delivery of housing 
services and their homes and to hold 
their landlord to account. This review 
will establish the preferred approach to 
ensure customers (future, present and 
past) views are used to scrutinise and 
shape services.

A Housing Advisory Group was 
established by the Homes and Commu-
nities Committee and its first meeting 
was held on 25th February 2020. 

The role of the Housing Advisory Group 
is to create an informal forum through 
which the comments/views of the 
tenant representatives can be heard on 
a range of tenant-related matters and 
then be incorporated into the 
consideration of these items by the 
Homes & Communities Committee. The 
Housing Advisory Group, is effectively 
a working party of the Committee, and 
does not have any delegated 
authority or decision-making powers. It 
will cease following the 
implementation of its work and 
conclusions around the review of tenant 
involvement and engagement.

Development Company

The Council has approved the 
formation of a wholly owned 
development company, 
Arkwood Developments 
Limited. The Company’s pri-
mary objective is to develop 
market housing for sale or 
rent. The Company may also 
bring 
forward commercial build.

The Company was incorporated in 2018 
and robust governance 
arrangements are in place. 

The Company’s Business Plan and a 
Business case for its first development 
site on land at Bowbridge Road have 
been approved by the Council through 
its shareholder and Policy and Finance 
Committees. Equity capital and loan 
funding has been approved and released 
to the Company.Progress of the comp
any in meeting the objectives set out in 
the Shareholders Agreement will be 
monitored by the Shareholders’ 
Committee, which has delegated powers 
granted by full Council and by the Policy 
and Finance Committee.

Karen White Director- 
Governance and 
Organisational 
Development

Suzanne Shead Director– 
Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing
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We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for proper governance 
arrangements to be in place. We will undertake ongoing monitoring of the implementation of any 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and as part of our next annual review.

Signed

J. Ro binson
Chief Executive
25th November 2020

D. Lloyd
Leader of the Council
25th November 2020
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Castle House 
Great North Road 

Newark 
Nottinghamshire 

NG24 1BY 

www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 
 

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 
 

 

Mazars LLP 
Park View House 
58 The Ropewalk 
Nottingham 
NG1 5DW 
 

Telephone: 01636 655303 
Email: Sanjiv.Kohli@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk 

 
 

 Date 25th November 2020 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Newark and Sherwood District Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2020 
 
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
Newark and Sherwood District Council (the Council and Group) for the year ended 31 March 
2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true 
and fair view in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (the Code) and applicable law. 
 
I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management 
and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, inspection of 
supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that I can properly make each of the 
following representations to you. 
 
My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information 
 
I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation 
of the financial statements in accordance with the Code and applicable law. 
 
My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information 
 
I have provided you with: 
 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other material; 

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and 
• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council (and Group) you determined it was 

necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence. 
 

I confirm as Director of Resources that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of 
any relevant audit information and to establish that you, as auditors, are aware of this 
information. 

Agenda Page 53



SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 
  

 
As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are 
unaware. 
 
Accounting records 
 
I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been 
recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. All other 
records and related information, including minutes of all Council and committee meetings, have 
been made available to you. 
 
Accounting policies 
 
I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with 
Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and consider these policies to faithfully represent 
the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Council and Group’s financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows. 
 
Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value 
 
I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council (and Group) in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured at current or fair value, are reasonable. 
 
Contingencies 
 
There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be 
accrued where: 
 

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been 
impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; and 

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
 
There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both 
the conditions specified above are not met, there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss 
greater than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date. 
 
There are no contingent gains which should be disclosed. 
 
All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council 
(and Group) have been brought to your attention. All known actual or possible litigation and 
claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been 
disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable 
law. 
 
Laws and regulations 
 
I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known 
or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, together with the actual or contingent 
consequences which may arise therefrom. 
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The Council (and Group) has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would 
have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance. 
 
Fraud and error 
 
I acknowledge my responsibility as Director of Resources for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 
 
I have disclosed to you: 
 

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud; 

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council and Group involving: 
o management and those charged with governance; 
o employees who have significant roles in internal control; and 
o others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 
affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators or others. 
 
Related party transactions 
 
I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code and applicable law. 
 
I have disclosed identity of the Council’s and Group’s related parties and all related party 
relationships and transactions of which I am aware.  
 
Impairment review 
 
To the best of my knowledge, there is nothing to indicate that there is a permanent reduction in 
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets below their 
carrying value at the balance sheet date. An impairment review is therefore not considered 
necessary. 
 
Charges on assets 
 
All the Council’s assets are free from any charges exercisable by third parties except as disclosed 
within the financial statements. 
 
Future commitments 
 
I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying 
value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise to additional liabilities. 
 
Subsequent events 
 
I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code 
and applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
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Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision 
of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you 
accordingly. 
 
Covid-19 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 Virus 
pandemic on the Council, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, and 
that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that assessment. 
 
Brexit 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United 
Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the end of the 
Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Statement of Accounts fairly reflects that 
assessment. 
 
Going concern 
 
To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council and Group will not 
continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to which I have paid particular 
attention in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve 
months from the date of approval of the accounts. 
 
Ultimate parent company 
 
I confirm that the ultimate parent company for the Council is Newark and Sherwood District 
Council. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
Sanjiv Kohli 
Deputy Chief Executive and 
Director of Resources 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Sylvia Michael 
Chair – Audit and Accounts Committee 
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Statement of Accounts Contents

John Robinson
Chief Executive
Welcome to our Statement of Accounts which 
details our financial performance.

Over the past year, the Council has continued to 
maintain a tight grip on its spending whilst 
delivering on its top priorities which include 
increasing the supply of housing, reducing crime 
and anti-social behaviour, enhancing and 
protecting the local environment and improving 
the quality of life for the most vulnerable members 
of our community.

Towards the end of the financial year, the Council 
also ‘took back’ management of its housing stock 
from Newark and Sherwood Homes, in order to 
generate savings that could be re-invested to 
improve tenants’ homes and neighbourhoods. 

This year’s statement has been put together during 
the period of the COVID-19 pandemic which has 
profound financial implications on top of the public 
health crisis. It will therefore be important that the 
Council continues to seek out ongoing 
efficiencies, maximise the returns on its 
investments and assets, levers in external funding 
and adopts an increasingly commercial outlook 
and approach to its operations. 

Though the outlook is increasingly uncertain and 
challenging, careful but also creative use of our 
resources will enable us to achieve what is an 
exciting and ambitious capital programme and 
revenue budget, aligned to our new Community 
Plan. I’m extremely grateful to our excellent 
financial services team and to the Audit and 
Accounts Committee who play a key role in 
ensuring effective financial governance.

Foreward

Councillor Sylvia Michael
Chairman Audits and Accounts Committee

Newark and Sherwood District Council has
adopted a series of values which guide, and drive, 
the way we design and deliver our services.

Our major consultation exercise in 2018 
generated more than 11,000 responses from the 
public and has since enabled us to directly focus 
on the things that matter most to those who live 
and work in Newark and Sherwood.

We now find ourselves in the second year of our 
Community Plan and remain as committed as 
ever to improving residents’ quality of life and 
enable those who live, work and invest in Newark 
and Sherwood to prosper and fulfil their 
potential.

These values and the priorities that our 
communities have directed, enable the Council to 
ensure that spend and investments are aligned to 
what residents want and need.

In my role as Chairman of the Council’s Audit and 
Accounts Committee, I am aware of the future 
challenges that the council faces. We have
listened to what our residents have said and that 
is what gives this administration its driving am-
bition - to tackle those challenges and continue 
delivering and maintaining high quality services.

As can be shown in this report, the council can 
demonstrate value for money, spend linked to 
priorities and performance, and a sound financial 
landscape going forward.

4 5
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38. Balance Sheet

39. Cash Flow Statement

40. Notes to the Accounts
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Introduction by S151 Officer
Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Resources 
(S151 Officer)

I am pleased to introduce our Statement of 
Accounts for 2019/20.

2019/20 saw the first year of our new 
Community Plan which will span the next four 
years until 2023. This report represents the year 
end performance of the first year of this plan.

The purpose of these accounts is to present a 
true and fair view of the financial results of our 
activities for the year and the value of our assets 
and liabilities at the end of the financial year.

This narrative report is set out in eight parts.

Part one - An introduction to Newark and Sherwood 

 Part two - Newark and Sherwood District Council - what are we here for

Part three - How the Council works

 Part four -  The Community Plan delivery

 Part five - Financial performance for the year 2019/20 summarising the information within the main 
Statement of Accounts document.

 Part six - Looking forward at the adopted Community Plan, Covid-19 and Medium Term Financial Plan

Part seven - Identified corporate risks.

 Part eight - Explanation of the Financial Statements to help navigate through what is at times quite a 
technical document.

In considering this report, it should be noted that the favourable variance reported against service 
budgets which we use internally to monitor our financial performance is not directly comparable to 
the surplus disclosed in the Statement of Accounts. This is mainly due to the accounting adjustments 
required to comply with reporting requirements, which do not impact on the amount of our spending 
to be met by local taxpayers. The key differences relate to the way in which we account for items such 
as depreciation, impairment, reserves, provisions and carry-forwards. Each of these items is explained 
further in our accounting policies and the glossary.

Sanjiv Kohli
Deputy Chief Executive and Director Of Resources (S151 Officer)
Newark and Sherwood District Council6

Part one - Introduction to Newark and Sherwood 
The district in numbers

Newark and Sherwood is 
one of seven districts in 
Nottinghamshire.

Resident population is 
61,707 (50.7%) female and 
59,859 (49.3%) male

Newark and Sherwood 
has an area of 65,132 
hectares

13,650 households in the 
district have dependent 
children of all ages. That 
represents 28.00% of the 
district’s households

The predominant age 
band in 2017 was ‘all 
persons aged 50 to 54’ 
with 9,422 people out of 
the total population of 
121,566

48,773 households, which 
represent 14.59% of 
Nottinghamshire’s 
334,303 households

The information above comes from the Local Government Association’s “Basic facts about Newark 
and Sherwood District” report. This is available online at https://bit.ly/2TELBfk

The report was generated using data from:

Nomis; Annual Population Survey
Nomis; mid-year population estimates
Office for National Statistics; Census 2011
Office for National Statistics; Mid-year estimates

Newark was crowned the 
tidiest place in the East 
Midlands.

7
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Our area

Home to the legendary Robin Hood and ancient Sherwood Forest, the district of      
Newark and Sherwood is rich in history and community. Vibrant market towns, former 
mining areas and dozens of picturesque villages all have their unique stories to tell.
The cities of Nottingham (to the West) and Lincoln (to the East) are within half an hour’s 
travel. The A1 national highway runs through the district and there is an East Coast 
Main Line railway station at Newark, with regular trains to London taking just over an 
hour to reach the capital. The neighbouring areas of Yorkshire, the Peak District and the 
east coast resorts are also easily accessible.

With low cost housing, excellent communication links and an enviable range of local 
attractions, including Newark Castle, Palace Theatre, Sherwood Forest and the National 
Civil War Centre, Newark and Sherwood is a popular place in which to live and invest, 
and is a perfect base for exploring more of the Heart of England.

Southwell Minster, Southwell
8

Part two - Newark and Sherwood District Council’s 
Purpose – what we’re here for

We want to serve our local community the best way we possibly can. As public servants 
we place a great emphasis on adopting a public sector ethos and seek to embody this in 
the way that we interact with you and with each other. As part of the Community Plan 
re-fresh we have revisited the Council’s Purpose and Values to make it clear what we are 
here to do and how we will go about it. 

‘Serving people, Improving lives’

Ambitious and forward thinking
Focused on achieving the very best and always looking to improve and innovate.

Caring and compassoinate
Sensitive to the different needs and circumstances of others; seeks to empower people to 
fulfil their potential.

Commercial and business-like
Careful and creative with resources; securing value for money.

Professional and trustworthy
Consistently delivering on promises; providing good quality and demonstrating integrity.

Welcoming and responsive
Approachable, open to feedback and challenge and swift to act.

Our Values

Newark and Sherwood already has much to be proud of. With its captivating history,                                                    
beautiful countryside, characterful market towns, world renowned businesses and 
an enviable location at the crossroads of the country’s transport network. We want 
to do all we can to enable local residents and businesses to flourish and fulfil their 
potential as well as encouraging more visitors to enjoy all that Newark and          
Sherwood has to offer. In order to achieve these, we will be locally focused and  
nationally connected - driven by what matters most to the people we serve and with 
a perspective and relationships stretching well beyond our boundaries.

9
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Part three - How the Council works

Chart Title

1 2 3 4

Conservatives

Labour

Independent

Liberal Democrat

Residents of Newark and Sherwood are represented by 39 elected members. The political make-up of the 
Council from May 2019 is shown below.

Councillors are elected by the community to decide how the Council should carry out its various 
activities. They represent public interest as well as individuals living within the ward in which he or she 
has been elected to serve a term of office. They have regular contact with the general public through 
Council meetings, telephone calls or surgeries. Surgeries provide an opportunity for any ward resident to 
go and talk to their councillor face to face and these take place on a regular basis.

Councillors appoint a Leader and Deputy Leader to provide political leadership and direction for the 
Council as a whole. 

Each year, Councillors also appoint a Chairman to undertake civic responsibilities on behalf of the whole 
Council.

Find out more about our Councillors here:  https://bit.ly/2ZJqZ9L

Find the Member representative for each ward here: https://bit.ly/2XzSUpE
 

All Councillors meet together as the Full Council and these meetings are open to the public.

69%
18%

8%
5%

10

How the council works
The Council has four operational committees:

Economic Development Committee
The Economic Development Committee assists with  policy 
development, implementation and review in respect of all areas 
falling within its remit including: Economic Regeneration and 
Transport; Fuel Poverty Strategy; Home Energy Conservation and 
Energy Conservation Plan; Energy management; Climate change 
including Mitigation (CO2 reduction); and Land Use Planning. 

Policy and Finance Committee
The Policy & Finance Committee makes key strategic 
decisions (other than those which must be determined 
by Council) including all decisions which have a major 
impact on a number of Council services or on the Council 
as a whole.

Councillor David Lloyd, 
Chairman of Policy and Finance and Leader of the Council 

Councillor Keith Girling, 
Chairman of Economic Development and Deputy Leader of the Council 

Homes and Communities Committee
The Homes & Communities Committee assists with policy 
development, implementation and review in respect of all areas 
falling within its remit including developing and adopting policies 
and procedures in accordance with the Council’s: Community 
Safety Strategy; the Council’s Emergency Plan and Responses to 
Flooding; and in relation to Housing.

Councillor Timothy Wendels, 
Chairman of Homes and Communities 11
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The Leisure and Environment Committee
The Leisure & Environment Committee assists with policy devel-
opment, implementation and review in respect of all areas falling 
within its remit including developing and adopting policies and 
procedures in accordance with the Council’s Cleaner, Safer, Greener 
Strategy and the Council’s Leisure and Culture Strategy.

The Council also has four regulatory committees:

Audit and Accounts Committee
The Audit and Accounts Committee oversees the Council’s           
internal control framework and approve the council’s published 
accounts.

Councillor Mrs Sylvia Michael,
Chairman of Audit and Accounts

General Purposes
The General Purposes Committee considers applications for hackney 
carriage and private hire licences.  It also deals with licensing functions 
other than those falling within the remit of the Licensing Committee 
and functions relating to parishes, elections and electoral registration.

Councillor Mrs Rita Crowe,
Chairman of General Purposes

Councillor Roger Jackson,
Chairman of Leisure and Environment

12

Licensing Committee
The Licensing Committee is required under the Licensing Act 
2003 to discharge licensing functions such as issuing licences for 
the sale of alcohol and late night refreshments.

Councillor Mrs Rita Crowe,
Chairman of Licensing

Planning Committee
This is a formal meeting of councillors who make decisions on certain 
planning applications.  

For each application forwarded to the committee and officer written 
report is attached. Copies of the reports are available five working 
days before   the date of committee (copies are not made available 
to the public at the meeting). Our planning committee is made up of 
15 members of the Council. Some officers of the council also attend, 
including Business Managers, Planning Officers and Legal Representa-
tive

Councillor Roger Blaney,
Chairman of Planning

Councillor David Lloyd, 
Chairman of Shareholders and Leader of the Council

Shareholders Committee
The Shareholder Committee oversees the strategic relations 
between the Council and its Development Company, Arkwood 
Developments Limited.

13

The Council also has a Shareholders committee:
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How the Council works - structure

 
Chief 

 Executive

Director of 
Resources an 

Deputy  
Chief Executive

 
Director of 
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and Wellbeing
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 and Growth
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Environment 
and Community 

Services
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Community            
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Housing Assets and 
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Management
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Services

 
Public 

 Protection
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Services
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Benefits

 
Asset  

Management 
and Car Parks

 
ICT 

 
Administrative 

Services

 
Customer Services 

and 
 Communications

 
Elections and  
Democratic 

Services

 
HR and Training

 
Legal Services

 
Organisational 

Improvement and 
Development

 
Economic 

Growth

 
Planning 

Development

 
Planning Policy  

and  
Infrastructure

 
Tourism

Director of 
Governance and 
Organisational 
Development

With the reintegration of Newark and Sherwood Homes into the Council from 1 February 2020, the chart 
below shows the organisational structure at the end of the financial year.

14

How the Council works 

On 26 September 2019, the Policy & Finance Committee made the decision (https://bit.ly/2zzQ4Jg)
following an extensive review and tenant consultation, to bring the housing management service 
in-house for direct service provision by the Council. This included the decision to dissolve the Council’s 
housing management company, Newark and Sherwood Homes Ltd.

The review undertaken by the Strategic Housing Liaison Panel identified sound business reasons for the 
Council to wind up Newark and Sherwood Homes Ltd and bring the service back in-house.  
The re-integration of the housing service will enable more joined up service delivery with the rest of the 
Council and deliver significant efficiencies identified for the Housing Revenue Account of £0.95m, which 
can be reinvested back into housing services.

The transfer of the housing management service to the Council successfully took place on 1 February 
2020, two months ahead of schedule. Company activities, contracts, employees, assets and liabilities 
were all included in the transfer agreement and are now under direct service provision by the Council. 
A successful appointment has been made to the Director of Housing, Health and Wellbeing post 
following an extensive recruitment process, which included a Member lead panel. The Director will lead 
on the integration of housing management service back within the Council as well as having oversight of 
the health and wellbeing, housing strategy, housing options and community relations functions. 

This set of accounts shows a consolidated position between Newark and Sherwood District Council and 
Newark and Sherwood Homes Ltd in terms of their operating activities during the year together with a 
consolidated opening and closing Balance Sheet.

15
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Part four -Community Plan delievery 
Newark and Sherwood District Council has 11 objectives guiding the work it does between 2019 and 2023.

The Council will focus efforts on reducing the amount of littering, flytipping, graffiti and dog fouling in 
the district. The Council aim to do this by  working with schools, businesses, and residents through a 
combination of support, education and enforcement activities. 

Improve the cleanliness and appearance of the local environment

What have we done so far ...
A new policy committing to the removal of most graffiti within 36 hours

An increased number of enforcement notices being issued - alongside educating and raising 
awareness through  engagment activities and media campaigns

A fly-tipping campaign

PAWS - the ongoing campaign focused on all aspects of dog 
ownership to include always picking up your dog’s faecaes

Trialling dual recycling bins in Southwell

Work to revitalise and refocus the Council’s environmental
services

We have also
Held days of actions in Newark covering: Yorke Drive, Hawtonville; and Newark Town Centre
Had a day of action covering Blidworth and Ollerton

Protect, promote and enhance the district’s natural environment
The Council is proud of the district’s heritage and wants to celebrate what it has to offer by increasing 
awareness and use of the many attractions across the district both by residents and visitors. By providing 
a joined up offer and improving brand identity the Council hopes to increase usage and overall
satisfaction.

What have we done so far ...

Made improvements to facilities at Vicar Water Country Park, with the park  being awarded Green Flag 
status for the 20th year running

Made improvements to Sconce and Devon Park 

Across the district we have offered:
2 free trees to each resident and 50 free trees for Parish Councils

We have also declared a climate emergency and are working 
with the Carbon Trust to calculate the organisation’s carbon 
footprint and look at pathways to mitigation as part of a wider 
environmental strategy.

16

Improve transport infrastructure to reduce congestion and facilitate 
growth.
The Council plans to work with partner agencies to ensure the district’s interests to be represented by 
lobbying for improvements to transport infrastructure to reduce congestion, ensure communities are 
better connected, and enable housing and employment growth.

What have we done so far ...

Progress made on closing the financial/delivery gaps for the 
Ollerton Roundabout

Progress made on the Southern Link Road

Proactively pressing to secure funding to deliver the Newark
Northern A46 bypass

Working towards an upgraded A1 overbridge at Fernwood

Accelerate the supply of new homes including associated facilities
The council will work with developers, partner organisations and individuals to unlock key development 
sites to facilitate the delivery of a range of mixed tenure homes across the district. The Council will work 
directly with individuals to ensure that planning decisions are made in a timely and effective manner.

654 houses were built (155 - affordable) in 2019/20 exceeding the 
454 houses required per year to meet supply requirements

Building continues on the Middlebeck Strategic Urban 
Extension

Building to begin at Thoresby site

What have we done so far ...

Increase visits to Newark and Sherwood and the use of visitor 
attractions by local residents
The Council is proud of the district’s heritage and wants to celebrate what it has to offer by increasing 
awareness and use of the many attractions across the district both by residents and visitors. By providing 
a joined up offer and improving brand identity the council hopes to increase usage and overall 
satisfaction.

What have we done so far ...

Destination Management Plans published

Three new tourism websites launched

National Civil War Centre’s World Turned Upside Down 
exhibition opened

17
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Reduce levels of deprivation in target areas and remove barriers to 
social mobility across the district
There are pockets of severe deprivation that make it more difficult for some residents to achieve their 
potential. The Council plans to work closely with vulnerable residents to ensure they can access key 
services. The Council aims to raise aspirations and improve social mobility.

Launch of new Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleepers 
Strategy 2019-2023

Launch of a new Voluntary and Community Sector Network

Development and implementation of a local offer for care 
leavers

Partnership work continuing with the YMCA in Newark to 
enable delivery of the Activity and Community Village

Securing £106,000 for disabled facilities grants across the 
district

What have we done so far ...

Enhance and sustain town centres
The Council plans to bring about transformational change that increases overall usage of the town centre 
and strengthens its reputation and long-term viability.

What have we done so far ...

Purchase of the Buttermarket to bring the building back into
full use

Secured development of the Robin Hood Hotel

Purchasing a retail building on Stodman Street

Newark is one of 100 towns invited to progress a Town Deal

Lounges announced as commercial tenant for the Buttermarket

Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour, and increase feelings of 
safety in our communities

What have we done so far ...
Installed a mobile CCTV camera in the Winthorpe Road area
following concerns from the local community. 

Agreed a Community Alcohol Partnership in Clipstone

Renewed focus on the operational Gypsy and Traveller Group.

Celebrated Gyspy, Roma, Traveller History Month in June 2019

Employing four new Community Protection Officers with the
power to issue fixed penalty notices (FPNs)

18

The Council will work to reduce incidences of crime and anti-social behaviour. The Council will seek to
implement a programme of diversionary activities to help improve behaviour. The Council hopes to
reduce the fear of crime by increasing the visible presence of uniformed officers and maximising the use 
of CCTV.

Improve the health and wellbeing of local residents, with a particular 
focus on narrowing the gap in healthy life expectancy and other health 
outcomes

Generate more income, improve value for money and increase 
residents’ satifaction with the Council
The Council will maintain and improve service delivery standards by working with partners and/or 
re-allocating resources to deliver improved performance in line with resident feedback. The Council will 
engage with the community to implement improved self-service arrangements through digital access.

The Council plans to work with partners to ensure interventations are targeted to secure improved health 
outcomes for residents within the district. The Council will focus on increasing the number of residents 
who are physically active and ensure all residents live in warm, decent and affordable homes.

What have we done so far ...
Adopting the Newark and Sherwood Health and Wellbeing 
Partnership Plan and agreeing an action plan 

Supporting development of a social prescribing model and 
recruitment of NHS link workers

Securing planning permission for the Dukeries swimming pool

Ongoing engagement and events with communities and 
schools across the district encompassing a range of health and
wellbeing activities

What have we done so far ...

Re-integration of the housing management service. 
This is expected to generate £1million of savings to the Housing 
Revenue Account to be reinvested  in tenant services.

The expansion and improvement of Newark Lorry Park helps 
to meet the national need for more secure overnight 
lorry parking.

Increase participation with the Council and within local communities
The council will enagage with residents and community groups in as many ways as possible to ensure 
that they have a voice in the way that the council delivers services and build communities in which 
people prosper and support one another.

Introduced webcasting of council/committee meetings to 
increase citizen engagement

Launched the Parish and Town Initiative Fund

Co-produced the 2019 Parish and Town Council Conference

Held a number of thematic engagement events 

What have we done so far ...

19
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Part five - 2019/2020 Financial performance
Overall outturn
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the Council’s outturn for the authority on 
an accounting basis (to include notional entries such as depreciation and revaluations). The Expenditure-
Funding Analysis shows the actual increase in the General Reserve (held for unforeseen circumstances) 
and the Housing Revenue Account reserve. 

The Expenditure Funding Analysis shows a decrease of £1.089m in the overall General Reserves and an 
increase of £0.358m in HRA reserves. This is shown in the table below:  

Reserve Balance at 31st
March 2019 

Increase+/
Decrease- in year 

Balance at 31st
March 2020

General Fund 

General Fund 
Earmarked Reserves 

HRA

 £0.000m 

-£1.089m 

 £0.000m 

£1.500m 

 £25.124m 

£2.000m 

Newark Castle, Newark 
20

HRA Earmarked
Reserved

£4.398m  £0.358m 

£1.500m 

  £24.035m 

£2.000m 

£4.756m 

General Fund Revenue

£0.399m

 

The General Fund supports the day-to-day running of the Council’s services (excluding housing).

The Council set its General Fund budget for the 2019/20 Financial Year on 7 March 2019. This can be 
seen at: https://bit.ly/3elLyx2

This shows a total budget of £15.278m of which £13.486m was to deliver core services. The increase in 
budget for net cost of services amounted to £1.783m. This is mainly related to increases in pension in 
year costs (£1.980m). The financial standing of the Council is very robust, with sound and improving 
financial management and practices. From the table below the Council’s General Fund shows an 
decrease in reserves of £0.963m.

This has been identified as being generated due to:

 

-£1.089m

 

£2.483m

Favourable variances on services 

Additional investment interest income 

Increase in debt impairment 

Additional grant income

Additional business rates income  

Budgeted movements as identified in revenue budget aproved 
on 7 March 2019 

Usage of reserves

Total decrease in reserves

£0.833m

This decrease has been allocated in the following way: 

Budgeted movements as identified in revenue budget 
approved on 7 March 2019

Allocation towards the creation of community engagement 
fund 

Allocation towards future organisational development 
initiatives 

Usage of reserves

21

-£1.089m

£0.424m

-£0.202m

£0.034m

£0.478m

£2.483m

-£4.705m

£0.300m

-£4.705m

Total decrease in reserves
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    £0.057m

 

 

Economic Growth  
 
Commercial Teams target saving apportioned over this Committee 

Unspent employee budgets throughout the Committee 

Lower than anticipated cost of planning 

Newark Lorry Park - increased parking capacity from mid 2019/20 
 
Planning fee income exceeding budgeted target

Newark car park - reduced demand owing to Covid19 

Beacon - reduced rents owing to Covid19 

Other small variances

£0.379m

Homes and communities 

Increased income from ICT recharges to HRA & Active 4Today

Increased ICT licencing  and maintenance costs 

Other small variances

  -£0.125m

Leisure and Environment 

Commercial Teams target saving apportioned over this Committee 

Unspent employee budgets throughout the Committee 

Domestic refuse collection - reduced payment to Nottinghamshire 
County Council 

Domestic refuse collection - income increases from garden waste 
customers, bulky Items and replacement bins

Vehicle pool and workshop - increase in recharge to HRA

More efficent use of vehicles leading to favourable budget variances 

Other small variances

 

 

Policy and finance 

Unspent employee budgets throughout the Committee

Corporate vacancy savings target 3.5% of salaries

Net rent allowance

Net rent rebate 

Council Tax Service recovery of costs raised exceeds budget provision

Corporate property - Surveyors agency staff required whilst appointing 
to permanent roles

Election expenses - due to delayed election

Other small variances

 Total from all committees

£0.050m 

-£0.125m 

£0.007m 

 

 

-£0.035m

 
 

  -£0.027m

£0.008m

 

 

 

£0.035m

£0.027m

£0.122m

£0.051m

£0.024m

£0.051m

£0.399m

 £0.017m

-£0.360m

£0.104m

£0.046m

£0.048m

-£0.028m

£0.020m

£0.096m

£ 0.024m

-£0.036m

-£0.015m

22

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

 Analysis of total income 
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The HRA is a ring-fenced landlord’s account for the running of the Council’s housing stock. 

On 26 September 2019, the Policy & Finance Committee made the decision (https://bit.ly/2zzQ4Jg) following an 
extensive review and tenant consultation, to bring the housing management service in-house for direct service 
provision by the Council. As of 31 March 2019, 5,490 dwellings and an increase of 50 properties were made under 
Council developnment.

The budget was approved on 12 February 2019 (https://bit.ly/36zhKu9) . This shows the generation of £2.890m 
in income over and above expenditure that is ring-fenced to be spent on the Council’s housing stock. This over 
achievement of income will be re-invested into the Council’s housing stock as part of the Council’s 5 year 
development programme which seeks to deliver 335 additional homes to meet the housing needs of the district.

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgeted Gross Movement 
to  Major Repair Reserves 
approved on 12 February 
2019 (Depreciation 
£4.998m and MRR 
movement £2.890m)

Total increase of movement 
of transfer to Major Repairs 
Reserve

Creation of future Bad Debt 
Reserve

Total actual 2019/20 transfer 
to Major Repairs Reserve

The increase of the transfer to Major Repairs Reserve of 
£1.026m has arisen mainly due to :

Increase in interest 
payable 

Reduction in 
provision for bad 
debt

Increase in income 
from rents and 
service charges 

Reduction in 
employee costs

Other minor 
variances

The graph below shows the income that has been recognised on the comprehensive income and expenditure 
statement. This shows that income has increased in year by £3.237m between 2018/19 and 2019/20. The change in 
income recognised relates to:

Capital Income - £1.025m received 2018/2019 in capital funding from Nottinghamshire County Council as part of 
the YMCA Activity Village.

Government grants/Conts - £7.450m increase in Government grants to support Business Grants throughout 
Covid-19, along with a reduction of £2.711m in S106 and community infrasturature levy Income. As well as a 
£3.200m reduction in government fund in housing benefits and revenue grants.

Investment/intrest income - £0.508m additional intrest income from the Investment portfolio.

Key 

2018/19

2019/20

£5m
£10m

£15m

£20m
£25m

£30m

£35m
£40m

Capital  
Income 

  

Fees Charges 
and other 
services

  
Government 
grants/Conts

  

Income from 
Council Tax, 

nddr

  

Income from 
joint 

associates

Investment 
and intrest 

income

  

£7.888m 

£1.026m 

-£0.326m 

£8.565m 

£0.160m

-£0.181m

-£0.613m

-£0.221m

-£0.171m

HRA Business Plan 
adjustment -£0.023m 
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Capital Spending

Capital monies are spent on building or enhancing the Council’s asset base. There are rules and 
regulations regarding what can be classed as capital expenditure and this spend must be financed 
separately from the day to day running costs of the Council. During 2019/20 the Council spent £22.9m on 
Capital works.

Key projects were:

Investment in existing Council dwellings to maintain a decent standard. Costs incurred in 2019/20 was 
£4.947m

The Council is progressing a five year housing development programme to deliver 335 additional homes 
across the district to meet the housing needs of local residents. Phase two will deliver 50 units, with 40 
units completed in 2019/20 and the remaining 10 due for completion by June 2020. Phase three is due to 
deliver 50 to 60 units (depending on sites obtaining planning permission), with 17 units over eight sites 
started in the latter part of 2019/20. Total spend during 2019/20 £6.725m.

Boughton Extra Care Facility is progressing to deliver 40 units in addition to the new build programme 
and is due for completion in summer of 2021. Expenditure incurred in 2019/20 £1.769m.

£0.652m was spent on Disabled Facilities Grants following referrals from occupational therapists.

As part of the annual Vehicles, Plant and Equipment replacement programme, in 2019/20 incurred spend 
of £1.244m, replacing 20 vehicles ranging from small vans, to Refuse Collection Vehicles. 

The Council spent £0.571m to purchase 32 Stodman Street, Newark as a part of its Community Plan Town 
Centre objectives. 

Equity funding of £4m invested in its wholly owned Development Company – Arkwood Developments. 

The Council, in partnership with MF Strawson Ltd set up a Joint Venture company, RHH Ltd as a vehicle 
for the redevelopment of the former Robin Hood Hotel. Both parties have agreed to make a capital 
contribution by way of a loan, which has amounted to £0.708m for the Council in 2019/20.

Buttermarket, Newark
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Balance sheet

Provisions

The Council’s most significant provisions relate to the Business Rates valuation appeals. Following 
Business Rates localisation, introduced in 2013, the Council has had to set aside a provision for any future 
successful ratepayer appeals against rateable valuations. The Council currently has 47 appeals 
outstanding. For the 2017 valuation list a new check, challenge and appeal process was introduced in 
order to create a structured way of allowing ratepayers to appeal against their valuation. The council 
currently has 302 challenges outstanding. The table below shows the year-end balance of the provision 
together with the amount of the provision used in the year in respect of the successful appeals:

2018/19 2019/20

Opening business rates provision for appeals

Business rates provision used based 
on successful apeal

Provisions made

Closing business rates provision for 
appeals

Cash Flow 

Cash and Cash Equivalents have decreased by £9.140m throughout the year to £23.519m which relates 
to an increase in the capital programme for 2019.20 and therefore invoice payments to creditors.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant & Equipment increased by £17.290m. £16.990m has been added through the capital 
programme, economic use of assets has reduced the value by £6.339m, £2.124m has met the criteria to 
be transferred to assets held for sale, the Council has also disposed of assets to the value of £0.634m and 
assets have had their values increased by £9.397m.

Short term debtors

Short Term Debtors has increased from £7.772m to £15.807m (a change of £8.035m) mainly relating to 
the accrual of £7.500m income due to the Council from the Government for COVID-19 business grant 
payments.

Pension Liability

The Pension liability decreased by £3.879m from £75.368m to £71.489m culminating mainly from an 
expected increase in the council’s return of its portion of the pension fund assets in excess of interest.

Long Term Investment – Available for Sale

The Council made some long term investments during the financial year, the Council invested £4m into 
CCLA property fund and £3.5m into CCLA diversified income fund.  Also the Council invested £4m of 
capital equity into Arkwood Development Ltd.  All three investments have been revalued to their fair 
value as at 31.3.20.
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£2.851m

-£0.860m

£1.414m

£3.405m

£3.405m

-£0.535m

-£1.191m

£1.679m
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Part six - Looking forward 
Community Plan

  

 

Improve the cleanliness 
and appearance of the 

local environment

Reduce crime and 
anti-social behaviour, and 
increase feelings of safety 

in our communities

Improve transport
 infrastructure to reduce 
conestion and facilitate 

growth

Build more homes and 
provide an excellent

 housing management 
service

Increase visits to the 
district and the use of 

visitor attraction by local 
residents

Protect, promote and 
enhance the district’s 

natural environment and 
deliver the Councils

environment ambitions

Enhance and sustain Town 
Centre

Improve the quality of 
life and social mobility in 

target areas

Improve the health and 
wellbeing of local 

residents

Increase participation 
with the council and 

within the local 
communities

Continue to modernise 
working with practices and 

embed a stronger commercial 
culture to improve value for 

money, generate more 
income and increase 

residents’  satisfaction

The Community Plan 2019-2023 and was updated at the Policy and Finance Committee on the 20
February 2020. It is available on our website at https://bit.ly/36H2qM4
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Looking forward 
Beyond Covid-19
With the emergence of Covid-19 in the final quarter (January-March) of the 2019-20 financial year, and 
implications that will run far beyond, Newark and Sherwood District Council will continue to look 
carefully at the pandemic and its effect – and to respond accordingly.
 
Provision of Services

At the time of writing, a full review of service provision during the period of the pandemic is being
undertaken. However, in summary, Newark and Sherwood District Council responded to the pandemic 
by adapting a number of services:

The Government’s business grants were distributed by the Council’s Revenues and Benefits and Financial 
Services teams, along with other forms of financial support

Domestic waste collections were altered to enable staff to adhere to Government guidelines for social 
distancing whilst still providing this essential frontline service. The impact on trade and other waste 
services will be assessed

Housing services adjusted their practices to respond to the pandemic, particularly during the lockdown 
and concerning repair work in homes

HART (Humanitarian Action Response Team) was established as a new team to lead on efforts locally, 
coordinating community work to help vulnerable residents

Leisure (including parks), arts and tourism all provided different methods of service delivery

Many other services provided by the Council were also affected.

Councils Workforce -

Newark and Sherwood District Council was agile in its transition to homeworking for the majority of the 
workforce. Some staff were redeployed to support the frontline work of HART and also to support the 
Council’s emergency planning and response function more generally. Additionally, many staff members 
engaged with the Local Resilience Forum. However, the Council also utilised the Coronavirus Job Reten-
tion Scheme (furlough) for the portion of the workforce whose roles could not be performed from home. 
Sickness levels were carefully monitored by the Council’s Human Resources team and concrete plans for 
role/function resilience in the case of staff absence were in place.

With the emergence of Covid-19 in the final quarter (January-March) of the 2019-20 financial year, and 
implications that will run far beyond, Newark and Sherwood District Council will continue to look care-
fully at the pandemic and its effect – and to respond accordingly.

As part of a multi-agency response the Council worked with the Nottinghamshire Local Resilience Forum 
(LRF) to have robust plans in place for helping local people. There are 38 LRFs in England which are made 
up of emergency services, a range of government agencies, health bodies and local authorities.
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Looking forward 
Medium term financial plan
The year 2020/21 was due to be the first year of the Governments latest Comprehensive Spending 
Review period. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) that was approved in March 2019 expected 
shortfalls in funding each year post 2019/20. This was the expected impact due to the plans to reform 
local Government finance, but due to the ministerial time that was spent on Brexit, the impact of this was 
delayed by a year.

At the point of approving the MTFP for 2020/21 (9th March 2020 https://bit.ly/2Xt39xs) the scale of the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic had not yet been felt. 

This suggested that over the term of the MTFP there would be budget shortfalls in each year post 
2020/21. The table below shows the anticipated levels of expenditure, Business rates and Council Tax 
income. 

 

 

 

 

 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Net Service Expenditure 
(less capital charges)

Total Other Expenditure

Total Expenditure

Total Business Rates

Council Tax

Other Grants

Contribution (to) or 
from Reserves

 

£12.181m £12.459m £12.549m £12.624m

£1.342m £1.275m £1.302m £1.943m

£13.523m £13.734m £13.851m £14.567m

-£7.724m -£5.316m -£5.379m -£5.435m

-£7.018m -£7.245m -£7.729m-£7.484m

-£0.122m £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m

-£1.341m £1.173m £0.988m £1.403m

The MTFP identified that the additional contribution to reserves for 2020/21 would be used to contribute 
to shortfalls in 2021/22 and 2022/23 together with dividends from the Councils development 
company – Arkwood Developments Ltd, service reviews and additional commercial income as mitigating 
the future shortfalls.

Now that the impact of COVID-19 has been felt, the Government have announced that the reform to the 
local government finance system that was due during the 2020/21 financial year, will now not take place 
and the allocations will again be rolled forward into 2021/22. 

The impact of COVID-19 will have a wide range of effects for local government with additional pressures 
put on service delivery and loss of income through fees and charges for services. The length of 
co-existence with COVID-19 and social distancing will determine whether this has a lasting effect on 
Local Government finances and how the reform to the local government finance system works.

The Council will continue to monitor the national picture whilst reviewing the MTFP, to ensure that 
resources are available to deliver the services that are needed to our residents and businesses.

28

Part seven - Corporate risks

A risk management strategy is in place to identify and evaluate risk. There are clearly 
defined steps to support better decision making through the understanding of risk, 
whether a positive opportunity or threat, and the likely impact. The risk management 
processes are subject to regular review and updating. Set out below are the key risks from 
the Council’s corporate risk register.

  

 

 

 

  

  

  

Financial  Sustainability - 
General Fund 

Ensuring financial sustainability 
of the general fund to allow 
the council to undertake its 
core functions, deliver services, 
meet its corporate priorities and 
objectives

Annual review of Budgets and 
Medium Term Financial Plan.

Council approved Capital 
Programme.

Consultation & Communication
plan to manage political and 
public expectations.

Quarterly budget monitoring 
report tabled at SLT and Policy 
and Finance Committee. 

Failure to deliver growth 
infrastructure

Facilitating the provision of local 
infrastructure to ensure growth 
within the district to meet 
agreed plans and corporate
 priorities.

Lobby central government for a 
bypass for the A46

Establishment of Arkwood

Housing Growth strategy put in 
place

HRA 5 year programme

Prosperity Agenda is the main 
priority for the council including 
funding scheme for new business 
development

Risk Description Key Mitigation techniques 

Financial  Sustainability - 
HRA

Ensuring financial sustainability 
of the General Fund to allow 
the council to undertake its 
core functions, deliver services, 
meet its corporate priorities and 
objectives

Quarterly budget monitoring
report tabled at SLT and Policy 
and Finance Committee.

Quarterly Capital monitoring 
meetings.

Financial implications added to 
Committee reports by Financial 
Services.

Financial strategies and budget 
reviewed through Policy and 
Finance Committee annually
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Workforce Ensuring the Council is able 

to recruit, maintain and retain 
appropriate staffing resource 
to ensure it is able to deliver its 
services and meet its corporate 
objectives.  

Approved Community Plan and
priorities

Workforce is established at
operating in an agile working
environment.

Continual development through 
an established training and devel-
opment programme.

The Councils Commercial Projects 
Development Team has been 
created to develop and implement 
commercial opportunities for the 
council.

Visible leadership. 

Annual employee planning
process. 

Use of Apprenticeships to support 
service areas and support succes-
sion management. 

Approved corporate priorities 
within the Community Plan 
2019-23 

Loss of community 
cohesion

The risk of vulnerable
 communities with NSDC feeling 
disengaged, excluded or being 
unable to access available 
services and opportunities. 

National monitoring of all
tensions through police forces - 
updated through local 
residence forums whenever 
necessary and actions then 
dealt withby Nottinghamshire 
local resilienceforum (LRF) with 
representatives from district 
councils.

Equality Strategy, Equality 
Impact Assessments, Quarterly 
Equality Steering Group.

Community Safety Partnership 
Work

Arkwood development
company

Managing performance and the 
relationship between the Council 
and Arkwood Developments in 
accordance with the governance 
agreement.

Established a shareholder
committee and agreed
membership.

Approval to release funds for 
Arkwood sought with 
shareholder committee report
to the Policy and Finance
committee.

Monthly officer contract meet-
ings between Arkwood and 
council

  Risk Description Key Mitigation techniques
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Safeguarding Preventing failures within
safeguarding arrangements to 
ensure protection of vulnerable 
persons 

Regular liaison meetings with 
the DWP

Creation of joint office space in 
the Councils new headquarters 
at Castle House to enable 
partnership working with DWP
Briefings for stakeholders and 
landlords delivered by DWP.

Annual review and report to SLT

Corporate safeguarding group 
meet quarterly

Annual Review and Update of 
the Council’s Safeguarding Policy

Corporate Governance Risk of failure in systems of 
governance within the Council, 
Council owned/influenced 
organisations and partnerships 
or other collaborative 
arrangements. 

Internal Audit work including risk 
based Audit Plan.

Officer code of conduct.
Member induction at the start of 
each new Council cycle.

Peer Challenge undertaken 
which included a focus on 
governance with
recommendations to review and 
action plan developed.

Governance review ongoing with 
support from LGA.

Brexit
Effects of Brexit on the council’s 
ability to deliver services and to 
the sustainability of its commu-
nities.

Work with the National Farmers’ 
Union to understand the
 implications of Brexit.

An internal audit report on Brexit
preparation given substantial 
assurance. In liaison with all local 
and national agencies through 
active membership of the Local 
Resilience Forum.

Full participation and engage-
ment with the Local Resilience 
Forum.

Horizon scanning – look at the 
key messages relating to Brexit 
from Central government.

Risk Description Key Mitigation techniques
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Deliberate or unintentional 
loss/disclosure of personal, 
sensitive, confidential, business 
critical information or breach of 
information governance
legislation 

External Audit on ICT security 
annually.

Cryptshare for encrypting secure
emails and large files for email.
Airwatch MDM (Mobile Device
Management) implementation
for mobile devices. Encryption 
for laptops.

Data protection training 
including a section on 
information security and 
targeted training ongoing for 
staff located

The Council’s ability to 
effectively respond as a 
category 1 responder to a major 
emergency and maintain a 
suitable response without
affecting essential service 
delivery. 

Emergency plans in place with
county council support.

Agile working arrangements.
Local Resilience Forum and
annual risk assessment.

Facilitation of Government grant
scheme in flood affected areas
to enhance future resilience.

Agile working arrangements. 

Corporate budget available to 
support flood alleviation 
schemes.

Risk Description Key Mitigation techniques

Data management and 
security

Emergency response

Supply chain failures and
contract management

Managing contracts with key 
suppliers, including NSDC wholly 
own companies, to ensure the 
continued delivery of an 
effective service and ensure 
delivery of the council’s priorities 
and objectives..

Business continuity insurance 
where required.

Legal Services assesses all
contracts.

Senior Leadership Team 
oversight of large contracts.

Named contract manager
highlighted for each contract.

Regular monitoring of key
contracts.
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The Statement of Accounts sets out the Councils income and expenditure for the year, and its financial 
position at 31 March 2020. It comprises core and supplementary  statements, together with disclosure 
notes.
The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, which in turn is underpinned by International 
Financial Reporting Standards;

A Glossary of key terms is in The Statement of Accounts document which can be found at 
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

The core statements are:

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement records all of the Council’s income and 
expenditure for the year. The top half of the statement provides an analysis by the Councils internal 
management structure. The bottom half of the statement deals with corporate transactions and funding.   
Expenditure represents a combination of:

Services and activities that the council is required to carry out by law (statutory duties) such as street 
cleaning, planning and registration; and,

Discretionary expenditure focused on local priorities and needs.

The Movements in Reserves Statement which shows the movement in the year on the different reserves 
held by the authority, analysed into “usable reserves” (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure or 
reduce local taxation) and “unusable reserves” which must be set aside for specific purposes.

The Balance Sheet is a “snapshot” of the council’s assets, liabilities, cash balances and reserves at the year 
end date.

The Cash Flow Statement shows the reason for the changes in the Councils cash balances during the 
year, and whether the change is due to operating activities (day-to-day costs), new investment, or
financing activities (such as repayment of borrowing and other long term liabilities).

The Supplementary Financial Statements are:

The Annual Governance Statement which sets out the governance structures of the Council and its key
internal controls.

The Housing Revenue Account which separately identifies the Councils statutory landlord function
as a provider of social housing under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

The Collection Fund Account summarises the collection of council tax and business rates, and the
redistribution of some of that money to other organisations on whose behalf the council collects
these taxes.

The Group Accounts which consolidate the council’s accounts together with Active4Today Ltd and 
Arkwood Developnment Ltd, which are both wholly owned by the District Council.

Part eight - Explanation of Financial Statements
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Annual Governance Statement 

1. Scope of responsibility
Newark and Sherwood District Council is responsible for ensuring that the Authority’s own and, (with the 
addition of Newark and Sherwood Homes, Active4Today Ltd and Arkwood Developments Ltd), its Group 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards; that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Newark and 
Sherwood District Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Newark and Sherwood District Council is responsible for putting 
in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 
functions, including arrangements for the management of risk. 

2. The purpose of the governance framework
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the authority 
is directed and controlled. The framework also includes activities through which the authority accounts 
to, engages with, and leads the communities that it serves. It enables the authority to monitor and assess 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the 
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Newark and Sherwood District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Newark and Sherwood District Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. Since May 2013 the Council has operated governance arrangements through the 
use of a Committee system. 

3. The governance framework
The key elements of the District Council’s governance framework are as follows:

The District Council has adopted a Constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how decisions 
are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people. The Constitution is subject to periodic change either through national 
legislation or local decision and the Governance Framework may be amended accordingly.  Within the 
Constitution, the Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government, which was revised in 2016.  The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance was also reviewed 
during 2016 to ensure it complied with the requirements of the revised Framework.
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The Annual Governance Statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also meets 
the requirements of Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require an 
authority to conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control 
and include a statement reporting on the review with any published Statement of Accounts (England).  

The Council adopted a new Community Plan for the 2019/20 financial year which was approved at 
Council on 7th March 2019. The new Community Plan spans the medium term from 2019 through to 
2023 and sets out 11 Objectives (https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/councilpriorities/). The
 delivery of these objectives is being conducted in accordance with the Governance framework. 

During 2019/20 the Council facilitated policy and decision-making through a Committee system. 
Meetings are open to the public except where exempt or confidential matters are being considered. In 
addition, the Council’s Constitution gives delegated authority for senior officers of the Council to make 
decisions in certain specified circumstances.  

The District Council has a cross-service Risk Management Group that meets regularly to identify and 
evaluate all significant risks. Strategic, Corporate and Operational Risk Registers are in place and 
appropriate staff have been trained in the assessment, management and monitoring of risks.  In 
addition to this, a Fraud Risk Register is in place and a full refresh took place during 2019/20 facilitated by 
the Council’s Internal Audit contractors Assurance Lincolnshire. This was due to be presented to the Audit 
and Accounts Committee at its meeting in April, but due to the Coronavirus Pandemic, this meeting was 
cancelled.

Through reviews by external auditors, external agencies, internal auditors, and its performance team the 
District Council constantly seeks ways of ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of 
resources, and for securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, hav-
ing regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

Services are delivered by trained and experienced officers. All posts have a detailed job description and 
person specification. Training needs are identified through the Performance Appraisal Scheme, which 
was reviewed and updated in 2019. 

The statutory role of Monitoring Officer is undertaken by the Director of Governance and Organisational 
Development. It is the function of the Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with established policies, 
procedures, laws and regulations. After consulting with the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer 
will report to the full Council if she considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness or maladministration. The standards of behaviour for members and employees are defined 
through Codes of Conduct and the Code of Corporate Governance. The Council also has an Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption Strategy and a Whistleblowing Policy that enables concerns to be raised confidentially 
by employees or persons doing business with the Council. A complaints system is also operated by the 
Council to enable comments on services to be received and investigated.

The Director of Resources post is combined with the Deputy Chief Executive position and has the s151 
Officer responsibilities attached to it.  The s151 Officer is responsible for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs including maintenance of financial records, presentation of statutory accounts 
and budgets, provision of effective internal audit and financial advice to Council. The Council’s financial 
management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the 
Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government.

The Council communicates with its community and stakeholders by means of a periodic publication, 
“Voice”, through its website and through social media and by specific consultation. It undertook a
 household survey of all the residents and businesses in the District in 2018/19 – which led to the review 
and adoption of its Community Plan. 157
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4. Review of effectiveness
Newark and Sherwood District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Audit 
Manager’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates.  Business managers are required to provide assurance to the s151 officer that 
service areas are compliant with the Council’s governance arrangements.

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of inter-
nal control includes:

The Monitoring Officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its 
aims and principles are given full effect. The Council reviews the Constitution through a dedicated 
working party comprising, inter alia, all the group leaders, on a regular basis, and has formed a 
Councillors’ Commission to consider any changes resulting from recent legislation and to consider 
changes to facilitate more effective governance of the Council.

Overview and Scrutiny - During 2019/20 the overview & scrutiny function was undertaken through 
Committees with overview & scrutiny principles being embedded in the remits of the Policy and Finance 
Committee and the three functional committees as well as the Audit and Accounts Committee. 
Councillors’ Commission - The Council reviews the Constitution through a dedicated working party, (the 
Councillor’s Commission), which comprises senior councillors across all political groups, including all the 
group leaders. It meets on a regular basis to consider any changes resulting from recent legislation, and 
to consider proposals to facilitate more effective governance of the Council.

In October 2019, the Council undertook a governance review facilitated by an external peer team led by 
the Local Government Association. The review focussed on three broad areas: what was working well; 
what could be improved; and what should the Council do next. The report from the peer review made 
recommendations for the Council to explore the opportunity to improve governance further by looking 
at a future governance system and structures that delivers:

• a greater focus on outcomes for the community;
• clearer political ownership and accountability for policy and decision making, including opportunities
to challenge;
• consideration of where and how policy should be developed;
• greater political and managerial oversight of council performance;
• reducing duplication and inefficiencies;
• improving the speed and transparency of decision-making;
• further and ongoing community and stakeholder engagement, building on the success of the
Corporate Plan process

The Councillors’ Commission was tasked with taking the review forward in December 2019. It was agreed 
that the next step would be for councillors and officers to visit a small number of councils with differing 
governance of cabinet/committee arrangements to learn from their experiences. Although these visits 
were arranged to take place in March and April – these have been put on hold due to the pandemic. 
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The Monitoring Officer -. Recent changes have been made to the Constitution, specifically the 
procedures for council/committee meetings and decision making arising from new Government
 Regulations to enable remotely held meetings due to the social distancing rules because of Covid-19. In 
addition, the Council has commissioned Assurance Lincolnshire, the Council’s internal auditors, to 
undertake an ethics and culture health check. Assurance Lincolnshire have developed a model to 
review the ethical culture within a local authority to test out how well its rules, procedures and 
behaviours around good ethical governance are embedded within the organisation. The model has been 
developed to get ‘under the surface’ and examine the principles and standards that underpin the way in 
which officers and members interact with others to support excellent service delivery. It is anticipated 
that this work will be completed during the current year. The review is being overseen by the Monitoring 
Officer and the Audit and Accounts Committee. 

Internal Audit - is responsible for reviewing the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control.  

An annual audit plan is approved by the s151 Officer together with the Senior Leadership Team and 
reported to the Audit and Accounts Committee. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report 
of each audit to be submitted to the relevant Chief Officer and Business Manager. The report includes 
recommendations for improvements that are included within an action plan and require agreement 
or rejection by service managers. The Audit and Accounts Committee receives executive summaries of 
all internal audit reports and is advised of progress in implementing recommendations. Internal Audit 
reports are considered by the Council’s Senior Leadership Team. The Head of Internal Audit issues an 
annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and control 
framework.  For the 2019/20 financial year, the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit is that the Council is 
performing adequately across the areas of Financial Control, Governance, Risk and Internal Control. Five 
reports gave limited assurance (three during 2018/19) relating to:

• Building Control – Client Side – Since 2016, the Council, together with Rushcliffe Borough Council and
South Kesteven District Council, have been working collaboratively on the delivery of a Building Control
service. This report identified improvements relating to contract and relationship management;

• Community Centres – The Council currently has 4 Community Centres under its ownership. This audit
identified improvements relating to structure and performance measures to ensure that the Council un-
derstands the value that the Community Centres are adding and the mitigate any further risks;

• ICT Incident Management – This report highlighted improvements relating to ICT incident reporting,
handling and lessons learnt in order to efficiently and effectively deal with reported ICT issues.

• Key Controls – Health and Safety – As part of the Council’s key control testing an area of weakness was
recognised within Health and Safety reporting. The report identified improvements relating to reviewing
risk assessments.

• Key Controls – Absence Management – As part of the Council’s key control testing an area of weakness
was recognised within absence management. The report identified improvements relating to reporting
of information and review of the current policies.

Recommendations are being implemented to address the weaknesses identified by Internal Audit.

In addition, a management review was carried out of phase 1 of the Sherwood Forest Arts and Crafts 
Centre in Edwinstowe, which involved the conversion of a derelict building on Forest Corner. The review 
identified a number of weaknesses in project management and budgetary control. Management have 
carried out further follow up reviews and appropriate action is being taken to address the issues and 
weaknesses identified. 159

A
genda P

age 136



The internal audit function is carried out by Assurance Lincolnshire.  During November 2019, a report 
reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function was considered by the Audit and Accounts 
Committee. The results of this review concluded that the Internal Audit function is currently working 
effectively. Assurance Lincolnshire conforms to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. An External 
Quality Assessment was undertaken IN September 2016 and preparations have started for the next 
required assessment in 2021. No areas of non-compliance with the standards that would affect the 
overall scope or operation of the internal audit activity was identified.

Risk management policies and procedures are in place with the objective of ensuring that the risks facing 
the authority in achieving its objectives are evaluated, regularly reviewed and mitigation strategies 
developed.

Additionally to the issues identified in the table below, the current key issue for the Council is COVID-19. 
The Council is working closely with central government, the health service and the local resilience forum 
to support businesses and residents across the District as follows:

• Supporting businesses – Rate relief coupled with grants for businesses in the retail, hospitality and
leisure sectors have to date helped around 2,200 businesses

• Supporting residents – the Council is making contact with vulnerable residents and tenants and is
working with partners to proactively support rough sleepers. Residents who have serious underlying
health conditions have been identified and there are processes in place to support this highly vulnerable
group

In moving to the recovery phase, the Council has initiated a recovery cell (as part of its Emergency 
Planning policy) in order to focus initially on community resilience and economic impact, alongside day 
to day service provision. This group will also consider how lessons can be learned from the response to 
the pandemic and how opportunities can be explored and impacts be mitigated. The Council plans 
recognise that recovery is best achieved with multi agency collaboration in accordance with the 
guidance and responsibilities of the Civil Contingencies Act. The Council is fully engaged in recovery 
planning and delivery at a local, regional and national level.

Virtual Council meetings are taking place to maintain open and transparent decision making whilst 
observing social distancing. Further information regarding this can be found on the Council’s social 
media accounts and at www.democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

Conclusion

The Council has assessed the governance arrangements in place throughout 2019/20 and whilst it is 
considered that the current arrangements provide a satisfactory level of assurance, work is continuously 
underway to ensure that the arrangements remain fit for purpose in an ever changing external 
environment.
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5. Significant governance issues

Issue Action Responsible 
Officer

Re-integration of Housing 
Management Function

During 2018/19 the Council 
reviewed its arrangements 
regarding the Housing 
Management function, 
culminating in the “in principle” 
decision to bring the service 
in-house for direct service 
provision by the Council, 
subject

The Council brought back its Housing 
Service on the 1st February 2020. As 
part of this, the Council has established 
a review of tenant engagement. It is a 
regulatory requirement of housing 
providers to deliver effective 
opportunities for tenants to influence 
the design and delivery of housing 
services and their homes and to hold 
their landlord to account. This review 
will establish the preferred approach to 
ensure customers (future, present and 
past) views are used to scrutinise and 
shape services.

A Housing Advisory Group was 
established by the Homes and Commu-
nities Committee and its first meeting 
was held on 25th February 2020. 

The role of the Housing Advisory Group 
is to create an informal forum through 
which the comments/views of the 
tenant representatives can be heard on 
a range of tenant-related matters and 
then be incorporated into the 
consideration of these items by the 
Homes & Communities Committee. The 
Housing Advisory Group, is effectively 
a working party of the Committee, and 
does not have any delegated 
authority or decision-making powers. It 
will cease following the 
implementation of its work and 
conclusions around the review of tenant 
involvement and engagement.

Development Company

The Council has approved the 
formation of a wholly owned 
development company, 
Arkwood Developments 
Limited. The Company’s pri-
mary objective is to develop 
market housing for sale or 
rent. The Company may also 
bring 
forward commercial build.

The Company was incorporated in 2018 
and robust governance 
arrangements are in place. 

The Company’s Business Plan and a 
Business case for its first development 
site on land at Bowbridge Road have 
been approved by the Council through 
its shareholder and Policy and Finance 
Committees. Equity capital and loan 
funding has been approved and released 
to the Company.Progress of the comp
any in meeting the objectives set out in 
the Shareholders Agreement will be 
monitored by the Shareholders’ 
Committee, which has delegated powers 
granted by full Council and by the Policy 
and Finance Committee.

Karen White Director- 
Governance and 
Organisational 
Development

Suzanne Shead Director– 
Housing, Health and 
Wellbeing
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We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our 
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for proper governance 
arrangements to be in place. We will undertake ongoing monitoring of the implementation of any 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and as part of our next annual review.

Signed

J. Ro binson 
Chief Executive
25th November 2020

D. Lloyd
Leader of the Council
25th November 2020
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AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020 

 
STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
1.0  Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 To provide an update to members on the Council’s Risk Management arrangements and status of 

the Council’s Strategic Risks.    
 
2.0 Strategic Risk Management - General  
 
2.1  The lead up to and subsequent onset of the COVID 19 pandemic has affected the ability of many of 

the council services to perform as they had in previous times.   The long-term nature of the global 
pandemic has placed unprecedented demands on resourcing all council services.  It has also 
required the full focus of the senior leadership team and officers to ensure critical services are 
maintained.   

 
This emergency response has therefore directly affected the level of resource available across the 
whole authority, which in turn has dictated “lighter” management of strategic risk in the short 
term. 

  
3.0 Strategic Risk Performance 
 
3.1 Performance of all strategic risks are reported to SLT, via the Transformation and Communications 

Business Units quarterly performance assurance reporting system.  However, it should be noted 
that this process has also been delayed due to COVID 19 response. 

 
3.2 The corporate Risk Management Group was unable to meet for its March meeting, however, it has 

resumed and continues to meet on a quarterly basis.   
 

Members of this group are provided with an overview of the current status and performance of 
strategic and operational risks.  In addition members of the group raise and discuss new and/or 
emerging risks.   

 
4.0  Current Strategic Risks 
 
4.1 Strategic risks are those that have the potential to halt or interfere with the Council’s ability to 

achieve its priorities and/or deliver its statutory duties.   
 
4.2 As detailed in paragraph 3.3 a risk workshop, involving members of SLT, is planned.  This will 

consider and agree the council’s strategic risks for the forthcoming year.  When reviewing strategic 
risks consideration is given to how the whole organisation is positioned to deliver its objectives 
having regard to internal/external factors, some of which are out of the Council’s control e.g. 
pandemic, economic downturn, etc.   
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4.3 The current register is 16 months old and has 12 strategic risks.  These are listed in the table below. 
 
4.4 Ownership of each risk is assigned to a relevant director.   Owners, with the assistance of lead 

officers and Safety and Risk Management Officer are tasked with managing the risk. 
 
 

Title  Description 

SR101 Financial 
sustainability – General 
Fund 

Ensuring financial sustainability of the general fund to allow the 
council to undertake its core functions, deliver services, meet its 
corporate priorities and objectives   

SR102 Financial 
sustainability - HRA 

Financial sustainability of the HRA to ensure the council is able to 
provide, maintain and develop its housing stock.   

SR103 Safeguarding Preventing failures within safeguarding arrangements to ensure 
protection of vulnerable persons   

SR104 Failure to deliver 
growth infrastructure 

Facilitating the provision of local infrastructure to ensure growth 
within the district to meet agreed plans & corporate priorities   

SR105 Contract/supply 
failure 

Managing contracts with key suppliers, including NSDC wholly own 
companies, to ensure the continued delivery of an effective service 
and ensure delivery of the council’s priorities and objectives.   

SR106 Workforce Ensuring the council is able to recruit, maintain and retain appropriate 
staffing resource to ensure it is able to deliver its services and meet its 
corporate objectives.   

SR107 Loss of 
community cohesion 

The risk of vulnerable communities with NSDC feeling disengaged, 
excluded or being unable to access available services and 
opportunities.   

SR108 Emergency 
response 

The Council's ability to effectively respond as a category 1 responder 
to a major emergency and maintain a suitable response without 
affecting essential service delivery.   

SR109 Corporate 
governance 

Risk of failure in systems of governance within the council, council 
owned/influenced organisations and partnerships or other 
collaborative arrangements.   

SR110 Data 
management and 
security 

Deliberate or unintentional loss/disclosure of personal, sensitive, 
confidential, business critical information or breach of information 
governance legislation.   

SR111 Arkwood 
Development 

Managing performance and the relationship between the Council and 
Arkwood Developments in accordance with the governance 
agreement.   

SR112 Brexit Effects of BREXIT on the council’s ability to deliver services and to the 
sustainability of its communities.   

 
 
4.5 Strategic risks SR104, SR108, SR110 and SR112 are currently identified as red risks.  Whilst every 

reasonable effort is made to reduce the risk to a level to ensure compliance with the corporate risk 
appetite, it should be noted that the very nature of strategic risks are complex and influenced by 
many outside factors/controls.   Some actions can be very long term and in other cases the ability 
to reduce the risk further may not be in the control of the council.   
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4.6 All twelve Strategic Risk assessments have been appended to this report. 
 
5.0 Strategic Risk Review 20/21 
 
5.1 After the initial onset of COVID 19 all strategic risks where reviewed and consideration was given to 

identifying those that were the most significant.   Therefore, subsequently the initial focus was on 
these strategic risks for a period of time.  As resources became available remaining strategic risks 
have slowly been reintroduced within the corporate review process. 

 
5.2 Normally the Council’s strategic risk register is reviewed annually each summer via a senior 

leadership strategic risk workshop.  However, due to the corporate focus on supporting the COVID 
19 response, this review was not possible and was postponed.   It was also felt, by the Senior 
Leadership team (SLT), that delaying this review may give us a better insight into the possible 
effects COVID 19 pandemic may have both globally in terms of the economy and also locally within 
our communities and hence shape future service provision. 

 
5.3 However, it is considered appropriate that a corporate review is carried out and a strategic risk 

workshop has been scheduled for 25th November 2020.   The following shall be undertaken during 
this workshop: 

 
• Full review of existing strategic risk register to decide if all current strategic risks remain 

applicable, descriptions are fit for purpose and owners are correct. 
• Horizon scanning to identify new and emerging risks.  
• Review to ensure the risk register aligns with the agreed Community Plan. 
• Integration of any relevant strategic housing risks inherited from the bringing in house of 

the housing function. 
• Setting of target risk scores for all risk to be retained or new ones. 
• Identifying and agreeing description and owner(s) of any new risks 

 
5.4 Directly following this workshop a new strategic register will be formulated and shared with SLT for 

agreement. 
 
5.5 The purpose of the above process is to identify and evaluate significant strategic risk.  However, 

this alone does not control or mitigate the risk to a tolerable level.  Therefore, once agreed by SLT 
new action plans will be developed.   This shall be reviewed at least quarterly and any failings 
noted during review shall be reported to SLT. 

 
5.6 An annual strategic risk workshop was last held with SLT in July 2019.  During this workshop the 

following actions were undertaken: 
 

• Annual review of the strategic risk register 
• Full overview of the last audit report actions 
• Evaluation of the risk review process 
• Evaluation and determination regarding management of project risks 
• Evaluation and determination of corporate risk maturity and appetite 
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6.0 Proposals 
 
6.1 It is proposed that once agreed by SLT the new strategic risk register will be provided to this 

committee for their consideration. 
 
 
7.0 Equalities Implications 
 
7.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from the details set out within this report.  

Where appropriate equalities are considered as part of the risk management process and where 
appropriate these are noted against the relevant risk and mitigation put in place to manage the risk 
along with any other risks identified. 

 
8.0 Financial Implications (FIN20-21/5040) 
 
8.1 The financial implications are considered when the Council’s corporate and service risks are 

identified, analysed, scored, managed and monitored. 
 
9.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to note the arrangements for reviewing the strategic risks 

and the proposal for bringing the new risk register back to this committee.  
 
Reason for Recommendations 
 
To update the Committee on the Council’s update on the status of the Council’s strategic risk register. 
 
Background Papers 
 
Nil. 

 
For further information please contact Richard Bates – Safety and Risk Management Officer on extension 
5593. 

 
 
Matt Finch  
Director – Communities and Environment 
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Appendix 1  
Current Strategic Risk Register 
 
 

Code & Title SR101 Financial sustainability – 

General Fund 

Owner Kohli, Sanjiv (SLT) 

Description Ensuring financial sustainability of the 

general fund to allow the council to 

undertake its core functions, deliver 

services, meet its corporate priorities 

and objectives  

Assigned To Wilson, Nick (BM - FIN) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

13-Aug-2020 31-Mar-2020 Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

Quarterly Capital monitoring meetings 

Investments approved in line with the annually agreed Treasury Management Strategy 

Annual refresh of Medium Term Financial Plan including management of reserves 

Council approved Capital programme 

Financial implications added to Committee reports by Financial Services 

Financial strategies and budget reviewed through Policy and Finance Committee annually 

Use of external Medium Term Financial Plan tool which assists with forecasting future Business 

Rates income 

Assigned project manager for each major project the Council is embarking on 

Corporate Projects Team established to identify business opportunities in service areas 

Director/Business Unit Manager quarterly meetings reviewing Directorate financial position 

Approved Commercial strategy to support objectives set out in the MTFP 

Approved Investment Plan to support the objectives set out in the Commercial Strategy 

Nottinghamshire Business Rates Pool mitigating large impacts of reductions in Business Rates. 

This is kept under review by Nottinghamshire S151 officers 

Quarterly budget monitoring report tabled at SLT and Policy and Finance Committee 

Annual Financial Regulations training in place 

Government covering 72% of income lost due to COVID19 

Allocation of £1.483m in additional funding from the £3.3bn Central Government Fund 

Working with SDCT, DC and LGA to acquire additional income support 

Government returns completed identifying direst cost of COVID 19 and losses incurred 

Sharing of information/comparison with LRF COVID finance Cell.  Also joint lobbying with the LRF 

cell for leisure centre income losses to be covered. 

Monitoring and forecasting of COVID related losses. 

Weekly COVID 19 Recovery Group updates to identify additional costs and allocation of costs 

Vulnerability Financial  

Meeting corporate objectives  

Service delivery  

Reputation  
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Governance  

Compliance  

Trigger/Event Unforeseen rise in interest rates over forecasted levels  

Changes in national policy eg. fair funding review, change to government political parties 

Banking crisis  

Over reliance and poor decision making on investments  

Member priorities diverging from corporate priorities  

Increase CPI/RPI figures  

Failure of subsidiaries  

Major contract failure  

Failure of HRA  

Reduction in Business Rates 2.  

Poor decision making and business planning  

Budgeted income levels not meeting target  

Impact on promised funding not as expected  

Change in significant income/funding  

Failure in compliance/ governance  

Fraud  

Global Pandemic 

Impact Inability to deliver services 

Inability to meet corporate priorities 

Inability to meet legislative requirements 

External auditors review 

Government taskforce 

Negative media/reputation 

Loss of ability to make local decisions 

Division between members and officers 

Greater division between political parties 

Staff morale and loss of key staff 

Fines/ enforcement 

S151 officer issues S114 notice 

GF fails due to third party failure, i.e. HRA/subsidiaries 

Impact on residents and communities 
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Code & Title SR102 Financial sustainability - HRA Owner Kohli, Sanjiv (SLT) 

Description Financial sustainability of the HRA to 

ensure the council is able to provide, 

maintain and develop its housing 

stock.  

Assigned To Wilson, Nick (BM - FIN) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

13-Aug-2020 31-Mar-2020 Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

Controls copied from General Fund Financial Sustainablilty Risk - NW to review 

Quarterly Capital monitoring meetings 

Investments approved in line with the annually agreed Treasury Management Strategy 

Annual refresh of MTFP including management of reserves 

Council approved Capital programme 

Financial implications added to Committee reports by Financial Services 

Financial strategies and budget reviewed through Policy and Finance Committee annually 

Use of external MTFP tool which assists with forecasting future Business Rates income 

Assigned project manager for each major project the Council is embarking on 

Corporate Projects Team established to identify business opportunities in service areas 

Director/Business Unit Manager quarterly meetings reviewing Directorate financial position 

Approved Commercial strategy to support objectives set out in the MTFP 

Approved Investment Plan to support the objectives set out in the Commercial Strategy 

Nottinghamshire Business Rates Pool mitigating large impacts of reductions in Business Rates. 

This is kept under review by Nottinghamshire S151 officers 

Quarterly budget monitoring report tabled at SLT and Policy and Finance Committee 

Annual Financial Regulations training in place 

Vulnerability Financial  

Meeting corporate objectives  

Service delivery  

Reputation  

Governance  

Regulation and compliance  

Trigger/Event Change in national policy 

Increase in interest rates 

Increased rent arrears 

Increased voids 

Suitability of stock meeting future standards 

Increase or change in standards required 

Current stock does not meeting housing needs 

Workforce issues 

Housing management review and implementation 

Failing to ensure compliance with relevant legislation causing regulatory bodies to intervene 

Noncompliance with rent standard 
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Meeting tenant priorities 

Ineffective strategic decision making and business planning 

Key HRA major projects failure 

Ineffective management of housing maintenance function 

Loss of critical income streams 

Fraud 

Failure to manage critical income streams/ invest 

Global Pandemic 

Supplier/contractor cost increases due to COVID 19 demand/supply issues 

Impact Inability to maintain stock to acceptable level including development of future stock  

Budget unable to address changes in national policy  

Reprioritisation of service delivery including resource delivery  

Cash reserves used to right off rent arrears and voids  

Substandard housing stock  

Loss of morale and high staff turnover  

Fines, notices, court cases and legal fees  

Moratorium of services  

Dissatisfaction with service delivery  

Greater scrutiny on service slowing decision making  

Poor local housing policy  

Project failure  

Contract disputes  

S151 officer issues S114 notice  

Failure to service debt  

Legislative requirements not met  

Impact on residents and tenants  
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Code & Title SR103 Safeguarding Owner Finch, Matthew (SLT) 

Description Preventing failures within safeguarding 

arrangements to ensure protection of 

vulnerable persons   

Assigned To Batty, Alan (BM - PPR) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

27-Jul-2020 31-Mar-2020 Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

LEAD OFFICER: Director of Communities & Environment - M Finch 

  

Countywide safeguarding policy adopted – and reviewed / updated March 2018 

Disciplinary policy 

Annual Review and Update of the Council’s Safeguarding Policy 

Key Staff already undertaken E-Learning 

BMs and safeguarding specific training 

PREVENT introduction to safeguarding training rolled out to all staff 

Staff Induction training organised 

Member training 

Officer represented on the Notts Safeguarding Children’s Board and Notts Safeguarding Adults 

Local procedures in place 

Corporate safeguarding group meet quarterly 

Safeguarding Support Officers in place 

Shared safeguarding email 

Annual completion of Section 11 return 

Annual review and report to SLT 

DBS notification process 

Internal Audit 

Notts wide network for referring information relating to PREVENT 

Participating in serious case reviews as required 

Learning from serious case reviews 

Annual assurance report to committee with exception reporting if require 

Undertake domestic homicide reviews as directed by CSP 

  

RECENTLY COMPLETED ACTIONS FOR REVIEW 

Develop and review current action plan from corporate group objectives plan 

Elected member training as part of the induction process following elections 

Update report to SLT on Child Safeguarding arrangements at county level 

Vulnerability Compliance /Legislation  

Reputation  

Financial  

Resourcing  

Partnerships  

Governance  

Vulnerable persons   
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Trigger/Event Reduction of Managers means that relevant officers may not be available  

Lack of Training  

Turnover of staff resulting in loss of continuity  

Failure to identify a serious case  

Resurrection of a historic case  

Lack of resources to respond to the safeguarding process (identification through to investigation 

and report)  

Inappropriate response to a case  

Lack of corporate awareness and culture (members and officers)  

lack of communication / Partnership failure  

Non adherence to corporate policy, not escalating and not reporting   

Impact Foreseeable and avoidable harm is suffered by a vulnerable person  

Serious case review by Nottinghamshire safeguarding board  

Litigation (criminal and civil)  

Disruption caused by targeting by group/individual  

Possible effect on future insurance costs depending on liability and claims history  

Personal Liability  

Staff Morale  

Radicalisation  

Reputational damage with community e.g. negative media  

Resourcing any additional works  

Child exploitation, domestic abuse, radicalisation, modern day slavery  

Organisational abuse (e.g. older people in care homes)   
 
  

Agenda Page 148



Code & Title SR104 Failure to deliver growth 

infrastructure 

Owner Lamb, Matt (SLT) 

Description Facilitating the provision of local 

infrastructure to ensure growth within 

the district to meet agreed plans & 

corporate priorities   

Assigned To Business Manager (BM - HSR); Hughes, 

Lisa (BM - PDV); Norton, Matthew (BM 

- PPO) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

20-Jul-2020   Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

Community Plan 

Infrastructure delivery plan 

CIL charging schedule and infrastructure list 

Development plan (Amended Core Strategy and Allocations and Development Management DPD) 

Local Development Framework Task Group 

Economic Development Committee and Full Council 

Planning Committee 

High performing planning service 

Active Lobbying 

Engagement with Developers, Stakeholders & Partners 

Economic Growth Strategy 

Vulnerability Inability to deliver infrastructure to support growth  

Political  

Reputation  

Financial  

Partners and stakeholders   

Trigger/Event Government change in policy  

Government funding withdrawn  

Funding reduced  

Funding bid failure  

Housing development stalls  

Change in leadership  

Poor strategic decision making  

Change in partnership priorities  

Withdrawal of Partners  

Failure of other related major infrastructure projects   

Impact Infrastructure not delivered  

Inappropriate infrastructure delivered  

Growth within district affected  

Inadequate service provision  

Government sanctions for inability to deliver housing growth  

Housing development stalls  

Social Inequality  
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Large Employer relocating outside district  

Inward investment stalls   
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Code & Title SR105 Contract/supply failure Owner Johnson, Deb (BM - TRC); Cook, 

Natalie (BM_TRC) 

Description Managing contracts with key suppliers, 

including NSDC wholly own 

companies, to ensure the continued 

delivery of an effective service and 

ensure delivery of the council’s 

priorities and objectives.  

Assigned To Wilson, Nick (BM - FIN); Business 

Manager (BM - HSR); Batty, Alan (BM - 

PPR) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

28-Sep-2020 31-Mar-2020 Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

 CONTRACT INCEPTION & MANAGEMENT 

.          Contract register developed using Pro-Contract and actively managed by OD team (not fully 

populated or embedded yet see action) 

.          Contact renewal early warning provided by OD at quarterly meetings 

.          Procurement advice provided through Welland procurement 

.          Call off contract arrangements/template devised 

.          SLA template devised for consistency 

.          SLAs all reviewed 

.          SLA register devised and actively managed by OD 

.          Comprehensive audit undertaken of contracts 

  

  

  

WHOLLY OWNED COMPANIES 

.          Management agreements regularly reviewed 

.          Contract managers named for each 

.          Regular contract management meetings in place 

.          Active partnership approach embedded 

  

  

TRAINING 

.          Session delivered to BMs on contract management 

.          Session delivered to members on contract management 

RECENTLY COMPLETED ACTIONS FOR REVIEW 

Legal advice on developing contracet templates 

Vulnerability Service delivery  

Financial  

Compliance (Regulatory, Health & Safety, Legislative)  

Governance  

Resources  

Reputational  
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Trigger/Event CONTRACT INCEPTION 

.          Lack of understanding of requirements and different provision mechanisms available 

.          Lack of commercial approach and knowledge 

.          Inadequate/ambiguous specification 

.          Inadequate/ambiguous control/performance measures 

.          Inadequate/ambiguous exit arrangements 

.          Failure to engage relevant specialists in contract design 

.          Contract is not signed and saved in corporate register 

.          Limited market supply 

.          Over reliance on single supplier(s) 

.          Lack of competence in procurement 

.          Lack of resource dedicated to procurement 

.          Lack of preplanning for contracts 

.          Lack of appropriate exit strategies 

  

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

.          No assigned contract manager 

.          Contract manager is not appropriately trained/skilled 

.          Contract manager resource is insufficient 

.          Ineffective performance monitoring and reviews 

.          Evergreen contracts in place 

.          Change control/variations are not appropriately managed 

.          Lack of ongoing challenge throughout the contract 

.          Loss of key personnel/ key resilience 

.          Relationship breakdown 

.          Contractor fails to deliver/ isn't able to deliver (bankruptcy) 

  

  

  

WHOLLY OWNED COMPANIES 

.          Management agreement not robust 

.          Governance and oversight not appropriate 

.          Inadequate/ambiguous governance arrangement 

.          Contract management resource is insufficient/ unsuitable 

.          Inadequate/ambiguous control/performance measures 

.          Relationship breakdown and – objectives do not align 

.          Lack of ongoing challenge throughout the contract 

.          Board directors do not perform within required parameters 

.          Lack of appropriate review of purpose of contract 

  

  

  

OTHER 

.          Financial management not embedded as part of contract management process 

.          Impact of Brexit (link to STRAT SR012 Brexit) 

.          Business continuity/Emergency incident 

.          Contracts not entered on contract register 

.          Provision commences before contract is in place 

.          Lack of appropriate overview of contract management 

 . Pandemic 
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.          Link to SR106 - Workforce 

Impact FINANCIAL IMPACT  

.          Additional costs to council (hidden costs, increased costs)  

.          Best value not achieved  

.          Fines  

   

   

SERVICE DELIVERY IMPACT  

.          Provision is not timely/delayed  

.          Poor/declining quality of service/provision  

.          Increased unplanned demand  

.          Inability to scale up/scale down provision to meet demand  

.          Service failure  

.          Not aligned to corporate objectives  

   

LEGISLATIVE IMPACT  

.          Data loss/GDPR compromised  

.          Council’s legislative obligations not met  

.          Providers are not able to be challenged as contract not in place when service is commenced  

   

REPUTATIONAL IMPACT  

.          Customer/service user complaints increase  

.          Member complaints increase  

.          Negative media coverage  

   

RESOURCE  

.          Contract manager resource requirement is increased (leading to impact on other duties)  

.          Other officer resource required to manage impacts (leading to impact on other duties)  
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Code & Title SR106 Workforce Owner White, Karen (SLT) 

Description Ensuring the council is able to recruit, 

maintain and retain appropriate 

staffing resource to ensure it is able to 

deliver its services and meet its 

corporate objectives.   

Assigned To Glass, Caroline (BM - HR & Training) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

18-Dec-2019 31-Mar-2020 Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

Business Managers have individual development plans to help them manage change and risk.  

Senior HR Officers provide support to Business Managers to manage staffing issues, e.g. sickness 

absence, capability etc.  

Effective communication arrangements are in place.  

Rolling programme of review for HR policies to ensure they remain robust and fit for purpose.  

Selima system provides Business Managers with ownership / control over staff sickness/Holiday 

approval etc. and provides corporate overview HR working closely with Business Managers to 

support organisational change.  

Partnership approach with recognised trade unions to support organisational change.  

Counselling/therapy and welfare support services in place for staff.  

Visible leadership.  

Annual employee planning process.  

Training and development programme to support ongoing development of skills and 

competencies and BM and other staff change management such as recruitment.  

Review of training requirements linked to appraisal process to ensure that appropriate 

development is sourced and implemented for staff to include facilitation of succession 

management.  

Incentivised terms and conditions, e.g. agile and flexible working  

Use of Apprenticeships to support service areas and support succession management.  

Approved corporate priorities within the Community Plan 2019-23  

Annual financial planning Project team and plan in place for housing implementation   

Vulnerability Service delivery and resources  

Financial  

Compliance  

Governance  

Reputational  

Competence and Capability  

Leadership   

Trigger/Event Key staff leaving e.g. with specific qualifications and/or experience and membership of 

professional body  

Number of staff leaving from one area/high turnover  

Inability to recruitment to key posts  

Lack of development opportunity  
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Lack of team cohesion  

Lack of alignment with corporate values/behaviours/culture  

Pressure of work  

Demand in a specific skill set  

Uncompetitive in the job market place  

Poor industrial relations  

Working environment  

Key member of staff goes on long term sick  

Organisational restructure   

Impact Service delivery impact  

Reputational impact through poor service  

Reputation as an employer resulting in inability to recruit staff  

Loss of capacity/under resourced  

Loss of expertise and corporate memory  

High recruitment costs  

Additional time required to support introduction of new staff and development thereof  

Additional training costs  

Impact on morale, culture and team performance  

Increased levels of staff absence  

Loss of opportunity through loss of networks  

Inability to operate in accordance with statutory requirements  

Increase in accidents  

Impact of potential civil claim (e.g. employment tribunal. insurance) or criminal actions  

Increased demand on corporate services (e.g. HR)   
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Code & Title SR107 Loss of community cohesion Owner Finch, Matthew (SLT) 

Description The risk of vulnerable communities 

with NSDC feeling disengaged, 

excluded or being unable to access 

available services and opportunities.   

Assigned To Baker, Jill (BM - CSC); Monger, Leanne 

(BM - HHC); Batty, Alan (BM - PPR) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

09-Dec-2019 31-Mar-2020 Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

Diversionary activities  

Days of Action  

Development of community database  

Residents surveys  

Diverting resources into vulnerable communities  

Supporting national initiatives, e.g. Hate Crime Awareness Week  

Community Engagement Strategy  

Actions within the Community Plan working around vulnerable communities  

Place based community relations.  

Cultural orientation training  

LMAPS (local multi agency partnership)  

Community Safety Partnership Work  

Severe weather and new winter shelter.  

Tolney Lane working group.   

Vulnerability Disengagement  

Partners and stakeholders  

Reputation  

Community leadership  

Vulnerable persons   

Trigger/Event Lack of understanding of communities' needs and consequent actions  

Not meeting expectations of communities  

New unforeseen incident or situation  

Poor judgement in making decisions  

Loss of key partner in delivering key service  

Change in partners funding/delivery priorities  

Unilateral decisions by partners  

National decision or event  

Internal community issue  

Lack of engagement with key community leaders outside of democratically elected  

Non representative community leader  

Withdrawal or reduction of services   

Impact Diversion of resources to address problems  

Isolation of vulnerable groups  

Loss of confidence in the council and other agencies  
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Reputation  

Engaging with the wrong people  

Physical unrest  

Civil disobedience  

Divided communities  

Economic loss  

Hate Crime   
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Code & Title SR108 Emergency response Owner Finch, Matthew (SLT) 

Description The Council's ability to effectively 

respond as a category 1 responder to 

a major emergency and maintain a 

suitable response without affecting 

essential service delivery.  

Assigned To Richardson, Dave (BM - ICT); Batty, 

Alan (BM - PPR) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

18-Dec-2019   Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

LEAD OFFICER - Matthew Finch 

Emergency Plan/ Business Continuity  

Emergency plans in place and securely stored on Resilience Direct 

Incident specific emergency plans in place. 

The plan is regularly reviewed and tested. 

Periodic review of key services by EPO e.g. Emergency Planning and Business Continuity. 

Management shows support for BCM through regular discussions in key meetings. Business 

Continuity is a regular agenda item. 

Management shows support to appropriately prepare, maintain and exercise a Business Continuity 

Plan by assigning adequate resources, people and budgeted funds. 

Periodic review of documents e.g. Emergency Plan, Business Continuity Plan. 

Business Continuity Audit Review. 

There is a Business Continuity Management (BCM) Policy and it is updated periodically. - 

Managers and staff have been made aware of BCP and BCM and their responsibilities. 

Managers have been consulted in developing the plan and key individuals who input is more 

important than others have been identified. 

The Business Continuity Plan identifies all critical areas of the authority 

There is an up to date Business Continuity Plan. 

  

Financial  

Corporate budget available to support flood alleviation schemes. 

Council maintaining budget figure and reserve up to Belwin amount to cover emergency incidents. 

Facilitation of government grant scheme in flood affected areas to enhance future resilience. 

  

Equipment/ Resources  

Flood stores in some communities with provisions to self help and therefore not be as reliant on 

council. 

Agile working arrangements. 

Cyber security arrangements 

Use and Audit of Resilience Direct as a Document Management System/repository 

Load key documents onto Resilience Direct 

Annual stock take of equipment in our Emergency Stores. 

exercise carried out gap analysis of the testing. 

Training & LRF Training 
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Improved understanding of snow implications and therefore better plans in place. 

Memorandum of Understanding for mutual aid. 

Local Resilience Forum and annual risk assessment. 

Produced BCP BCM training timetable 

Offering of Health & Wellbeing advice e.g. offering flu vaccinations 

  

Partners/Public 

Work with EA (Environment Agency) on flood resilience work has mitigated/reduced the risk in 

some areas. 

Improved monitoring systems by EA for earlier warning for floods. 

Raised awareness of flood risk, therefore increased understanding self help and increasing 

resilience. 

  

Develop emergency response management tool i.e. Meritech (AB) 

Deliver One off workshop for BMs on BCP 

Implement the training of BCP & BCM and general training for all staff - Production of induction 

training package 

RECENTLY COMPLETED ACTIONS FOR REVIEW 

Identify users of the emergency response managament tool (Meritech) and delivery. 

Meritech emergency planning module system training and testing 

Provide initial report to SLT re: Business Impact Analysis carried out 

Report to SLT re updated emergency plan to be 

SLT to decide how to deal with allowing JDs to be amended (including their own) to include an 

explicit responsibility for BC 

Promotion to LRF of 20 ways in 30 days in the Notts area 

Testing to take place of the Control Room at Castle House 

Vulnerability Resourcing  

Reputation  

Expectations  

Partners  

Financial  

Suitability of response  

Service delivery  

Trigger/Event Extreme weather event of greater frequency and severity.  

Unpredictable district/regional/national emergency events.  

Council headquarters or key facilities are damaged.  

Pandemic Flu  

Cyber Attack  

Counter terrorist Attack  

Partners not playing part/full role  

Failure of resources / suppliers / supply chain  

Availability and resilience of key personnel  

A "no deal" Brexit (further information see Strategic Risk Brexit)  

Insufficient time given to BMs/SLT to deliver appropriately considered BCPs  

Impact Drain on services and resources to provide an immediate and appropriate response.  

Managing and resourcing the longer term recovery process  

Business Continuity issues at Castle House and other council facilities - centres could be flooded, 

staff unable to get into work - loss of resources i.e. vehicles, premises.  
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Reputational damage due to perceived failure to respond to emergency or maintain services  

Reputational damage to the District and attraction to place to live/work  

Failure to maintain critical services day to day  

Manage financial requirements of the emergency event  

Financial issues of being unable to claim back funding spent on assisting communities  

Financial implication of up front costs required during an emergency.  

Less likely to receive long term support to obtain government flood grants compared with high 

density areas due to cost benefit ratio.  

Effect on communities (commercial or domestic)  

Loss of key/ critical systems  

Inability to support critical projects and projects at a critical stage  
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Code & Title SR109 Corporate governance Owner White, Karen (SLT) 

Description Risk of failure in systems of 

governance within the council, council 

owned/influenced organisations and 

partnerships or other collaborative 

arrangements.  

Assigned To Hill, Nigel (BM - EDS); Wilson, Nick (BM 

- FIN) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

27-Dec-2019   Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

 

LEAD OFFICER - Karen White 

Code of corporate governance created, maintained and monitored in accordance with CIPFA 

guidance.  

. Corporate Governance self-assessment against the code of Corporate Governance undertaken 

periodically.  

. Periodic review of governance by 3 statutory officers.  

  

Annual review of Constitution which includes fit for purpose and up to date:  

. Officer code of conduct.  

. Officer registers of interests - Related third party transactions.  

. Section 151 officer/Monitoring officer/Head of Paid Service.  

. Gifts and hospitality - policy and register place.  

. Council Financial regulations and procedures,  

. Contract procedure rules  

. Whistle blowing policy  

. Anti-fraud and corruptions strategy  

  

Annual governance statement reviewed annually and reported to Audit and Accounts Committee. 

Annual Governance Statement goes to Feb meeting of Committee  

Creation of annual combined assurance report in conjunction with SLT and BMs.  

  

Internal Audit work including risk based Audit Plan.  

Effective use of External Auditor.  

Scrutiny by Audit and Accounts Committee  

  

Staff and member training in place  

. Training on governance issues including anti-fraud and financial regulations.  

. Counter fraud training delivered.  

. Member induction at the start of each new Council cycle.  

  

Complaints:  

. Localised standards framework and effective arrangements for dealing with complaints overseen 

by Policy and Finance Committee.  
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. Internal complaints procedure.  

  

Fraud  

. Annual internal review of the Fraud Risk register to carry out proactive work, check on internal 

controls and is reported to members  

. Participation with National Fraud Initiative process  

. Options appraisal for counter fraud and implementation of preferred option.  

  

Appropriate insurance cover including Fidelity Guarantee.  

  

Oversight of Active4Today, Newark and Sherwood Homes, Arkwood and East Midlands Building 

Control.  

. Appropriate monitoring of performance of the third party or alternative service delivery methods.  

  

HR policies in place  

Recruitment process controls, e.g. References, Immigration, DBS.  

  

Horizon scanning at Business Manager briefings and effective communication between SLT and 

business managers.  

 

Measures in place to ensure IR35 compliance  

Schedules review of Corporate Governance (Q4 19/20  

 

Governance review ongoing with support from LGA   

Vulnerability Service delivery  

Governance  

Fraud  

Poor decision making/leadership  

Reputation  

Financial  

Legal compliance  

Partners/stakeholders  

Trigger/Event Failure to communicate, define, review and uphold governance standards policies to ensure fitness 

for purpose.  

Failure of staff and councillors to understand their governance roles and responsibilities.  

Failure to observe good governance.  

Failure to adequately manage risk or monitor performance.  

Failure in Policy adherence (All policies).  

Malicious event eg. Fraud, money laundering, etc.  

Reduction in capacity and loss of key personnel and resources  

Failure to adequately oversee governance standards of partnerships and other entities that the 

Council is involved in.  

Failure of governance in partnership organisations  

Impact Financial resource loss.  

Service delivery issues.  

Criminal or civil liability.  

Government or peer intervention.  

Reputational risk to the Council.  
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Negative media coverage.  

Policies could be open to challenge.  

Excessive legal costs incurred.  

Poor or inadequate decision making.  

Poor staff morale.  

High staff turnover.  

Regulator finding fault eg. Internal Audit, External Audit, Ombudsman.  

Community disengagement.  

Capacity redirected to address failures.  

Loss of opportunity and ability to meet corporate priorities  

Inappropriate use  

Fraud and corrupt practice identified.  

Fraud and corruption practices not identified or dealt with leading to an incident of fraud and 

corruption.  

Failure of partnerships  
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Code & Title SR110 Data management and security Owner Kohli, Sanjiv (SLT) 

Description Deliberate or unintentional 

loss/disclosure of personal, sensitive, 

confidential,  business critical 

information or breach of information 

governance legislation  

Assigned To Baker, Jill (BM - CSC); Wilson, Nick (BM 

- FIN); Richardson, Dave (BM - ICT) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

24-Aug-2020 31-Mar-2020 Control Pending 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

LEAD OFFICER - Sanjiv Kohli 

  

Training/ Guidance/ Compliance/ Agreements 

Data protection training including a section on information security and targeted training ongoing 

for staff located elsewhere and forms part of the induction process.  

Guidance and training available for elected members. 3 GDPR sessions provided for newly elected 

members.  

  

Guidance on security breach procedures for Business Managers as Information Asset Owners.  

Ongoing training  for all staff taking payments in line with PCI-DSS requirements.  

Relevant training for ICT staff.  

Weekly review of ICO guidance.  

Compliance with the governments security arrangements.  

PSN compliant data & internet connections implemented. 

Compliance with new Cabinet Office email standards achieved. 

Information governance check on furniture that is being disposed of.  

Information E Training completed by all staff. 

Cyber Security now standing agenda item on monthly business unit management meetings.  

Annual review of Information Asset Register.  

Annual mandatory GDPR and cyber/phising online training for all staff and councillors.   

Governance arrangements established through CIGG with monthly review. 

  

ICT/Equipment   

External Audit on ICT security annually. 

Encryption for mobile devices. 

VASCO tokens and Google Authenticator. 

Quarterly ICT security checks internally. 

Penetration test annually for external company - monthly scans of servers for weaknesses, 

monthly server updates and monthly scans of Microsoft Office and Windows. 

Perimeter software - eg. mailmarshall & webmarshall.  

Hardening test on new virtual servers.  

Documents scanned reducing the need for paper. 

Secure server room.  

East Midlands WARP membership - alerting networking facility regarding any breaches.  
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Monthly updates of Adobe products.  

Program in place to ensure the continual maintenance & upgrade of the ICT environment. 

Secure portal for Members to access the Extranet. 

Airwatch MDM (Mobile Device Management) implementation for mobile devices.  

DMark, DKim SPF and TLS  secure email authentication software.  

Cryptshare for encrypting secure emails and large files for email.  

Report & record all cyber-attacks/attempts and escalate to CMT where appropriate  Users own 

devices cannot connect to network  

‘Consent’ tick box on appropriate forms. 

  

Policies/Audit 

Information management framework incorporating Security Policy and Security Breach Policy.  

Annual SIRO audit. 

Retention of document policy.  

Data Protection policy. 

Confidential waste handling procedure. 

Review of policies and procedures to ensure compliance with latest Payment Card Industry- Data 

Security Standard (PCI-DSS) 

Data security part of consideration as part of future strategic projects.  

All aspects of GDPR action plan completed including compulsory e-learning for all staff.  

SIRO audit completed confirming processes in place for identifying risks associated with any new 

project/process.  

CIGG meeting every two months to review any new risks. 

Periodic PCI/DSS compliance checks - see Corporate risk for further details.  

Data Privacy Impact Assessment. 

  

Partners/ Stakeholders/ Staff 

Non-disclosure agreements in place for third party access.  

Use of data processing and agreements with partners. 

CIO/SIRO/DPO appointed. 

CIGG in place. 

Use of licensed Confidential waste handler. 

Letters sent to all third parties who process personal data on behalf of NSDC advising of additional 

responsibilities under GDPR and data processing agreements in place. 

Actions arising from report to SLT on third party users implemented. 

RECENTLY COMPLETED ACTIONS FOR REVIEW 

Developing Comms strategy to deal with a data breach 

Vulnerability Loss of vulnerable, personal, sensitive valuable data  

Legal compliance   

Reputation  

Financial   

Partners/stakeholders   

Disruption of service from a cyber attack  

Trigger/Event Personal, confidential or corporately sensitive/business critical information disclosed 

unintentionally or through error of judgement when responding to requests for information, data 

breach - intentional (malicious) or unintentional.   

Theft or loss of equipment/papers/data belonging to the council, partners or third party 

companies.   

Cyber attack:  (either targeted such as denial of service or unintentional access to link on another 
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website.   

Agile Working ie. mobile/remote/home working/home printing/disposal of printed data/ 

/Outreach posts.  

Reducing resources with less capacity for processing data.  

Collaborative working, sharing, outsourcing and partnership working (including external printing 

and hybrid mail)/involvement in other peoples' data  Use of BYOD (Bring your own device).  

Government integration agenda e.g. Increased working between public bodies  Use of 

suppliers/third parties, etc.  

Decommissioning of property.  

Partnership working and sharing new service locations/data sharing issues.  

Partner's/contractor's/host's poor data management and information security leading to data 

breach/loss.   

Devolution/change in service delivery model.   

Loss of key resources.  

Third party access to IT systems.  

New and inexperienced staff/elected members with access to data.  

Termination of PSN/GCSX standards by the Cabinet Office limiting options for securely sharing 

with some Public Sector organisations.  

Failure to comply with relevant standards and legislation including PCI-DSS/Cyber Essentials/NCSC 

best practice/PSN.  

Unsupported software/unforseen loss of support  

Housing management transfer  

Adoption of unsupported/dated systems from third parties  

Impact Individual loss/damage to an individual where the Council inappropriately released their personal 

data eg. civil claims.  

Damage to reputation of the Council/trust by the public.  

Breach of Access to Information legislation bringing about financial/legal damage - imposed on 

the Council by the Information Commissioner and other Statutory Bodies.  

Financial/ resource impact of Information Commissioner investigation.  

Disciplinary action taken against a member of staff and elected members if a breach is found to be 

deliberate/malicious.  

Operational and resource issues eg. service interruption - where focus has to be taken away from 

service delivery to dealing with the breach.  

Individual loss/damage to an individual where the Council inappropriately released their personal 

data eg. civil claims.  

Drain on resources to process and enable conformity in legislation.  

Greater demand on existing resource  

Impact on Agile working - lack of ability to work remotely and available physical resource  

Cyber attack leading to system downtime/damage/loss of data (Ransom Ware) and financial loss/ 

resource drain  

Loss of provision to customers and partners eg. NSH, Active4Today, DWP, CCTV (under current 

arrangements) leading to disputes over SLAs and contracts and potential loss of income, e.g. 

partner rent for Castle House.  

Negative media coverage  

Less control over data as service delivery models become more complex  

Loss of partner data where the council is the data processor - subsequent impact on partner's 

reputation.  

Loss of confidence with the Council  

Loss of confidence with partners and stakeholders  
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Withdrawal of service from partners and stakeholder  

Increased demand on existing services  
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Code & Title SR111 Arkwood Development Owner White, Karen (SLT) 

Description Managing performance and the 

relationship between the Council and 

Arkwood Developments in accordance 

with the governance agreement.  

Assigned To Wilson, Nick (BM - FIN) 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

08-Oct-2019   Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

LEAD OFFICER - Karen.  

Support: N Cook  

  

Shareholder Committee established and membership agreed 

Shareholder meetings scheduled 

Shareholder Committee Members training session completed on 17/1/18 

Company's Articles and shareholder agreement in place 

Shareholder Committee approve business plan for company and business case for each 

development site 

Monthly officer contract meetings between Arkwood and council 

Internal Audit Report giving substantial assurance 

Inclusion of risk register by company with business cases 

RECENTLY COMPLETED ACTIONS FOR REVIEW 

SLAs for HR, Finance, ICT, Information Governance and Administration to be agreed between 

company and council by end of financial year 19/20. 

Vulnerability Financial  

Reputation  

Service Delivery  

Conflict of interest  

Trigger/Event Financial   

Loan repayments from the company are not made  

Company failure to deliver approved Business Plan  

Company failure to pay monies to the Council e.g. land transactions costs, SLA costs  

Company failure to pay monies in a timely way  

Company failure to manage cash flow  

  

Reputational  

Poor leadership  

Company insolvency  

Poor quality development leading to customer dissatisfaction  

Secretary of State call in planning decisions made by council on company developments  

  

Compliance Issues  

Operational failure leading to non compliance/legislative failure  
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Compliance failure by the Company (ie. legislative & policy)  

  

Lack of Delivery   

Failure to adhere to business plan  

Lack of awareness of company purpose  

Company failure to secure planning consent on developments   

  

Market & External Factors   

Brexit - market volatility  

Downturn in economy  

Failure to understand and develop to meet market needs  

Changes in local and national policy & legislation e.g. restraints in legislation from Council  

Lack of skills to deliver developments to quality and on time (e.g. skills shortage)  

Market and external construction prices leading to increased cost of build  

  

Resource Demand  

Insufficient resourcing (e.g. internal capacity to deliver)  

Over resourcing  

Incorrect or over demanding SLA's  

Failure to deliver Council objectives due to increased amount of time spent by board of directors 

on company rather than substantive role  

  

Relationship with Company   

Lack of communication between Company and Council  

Lack of regular updates/ assurance from company  

Conflict of interest - failure of the council to demonstrate the company's independence  

Impact Financial  

Return on investment to the council not realised  

Lack of sustainability and viability of company  

Council not achieving aims & objectives as set out in Council’s Commercial strategy  

  

Resource Demand  

Substantive council roles of directors compromised  

Council resource overstretched – poor quality service to council or company  

  

Reputational  

Adverse impact on reputation  

Inability to contribute to local plan housing numbers  

Impact on reputation with key partners and stakeholders  

  

Market & External Factors  

Lack of housing that meets market demand  

  

Partners/Relationships  

Relationship breakdown between council and company  
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Code & Title SR112 Brexit Owner Finch, Matthew (SLT) 

Description Effects of BREXIT on the council’s 

ability to deliver services and to the 

sustainability of its communities.  

Assigned To Churchill, Robert (BM - AMP); Baker, 

Jill (BM - CSC); Wilson, Nick (BM - FIN); 

Monger, Leanne (BM - HHC); Business 

Manager (BM - HSR); Richardson, Dave 

(BM - ICT); Norton, Matthew (BM - 

PPO); Batty, Alan (BM - PPR); Ward, Phil 

(BM - R&B); Marshall, Kate 1 Admin; 

Piper, Tracey 1 Admin 

Original Risk 

Matrix 

Current Risk 

Matrix 

Target Risk Matrix Reviewed Date Target Date Management 

   

18-Dec-2019   Controlled 

            

Controls/Actions 

In Place 

LEAD OFFICER - M Finch  

Horizon scanning – look at the key messages relating to Brexit from Central government.  

Quarterly update reviews with BM’s to update a register of risks and associated mitigating actions 

to be fed into the strategic risk and maintained in risk log.  

Update Reports to SLT.  

Plans in place to manage impact on the Lorry Park  

Market trend analysis report developed to highlight differences between East and West regions of 

NSDC and reporting to Growth and Prosperity meetings.  

Communications plan informing media responses  

Responsive risk review in light of central government information.  

Full participation and engagement with the Local Resilience Forum.  

Full participation and engagement with LRF  

Monitor Risk log quarterly with BM's  

Responsive risk review in light of central government info  

Develop market trend analysis report to highlight differences between East and West regions of 

NSDC (quarterly). Agree key indices to report to Growth & Prosperity meetings to inform a joined 

up strategic approach around "Prosperity" )  

Updates to be provided by CMT following attendance at conferences (e.g. Solace) regarding 

implications of Brexit (CMT)  

Working more closely with NFU to understand implications of Brexit, e.g staffing/funding (JRS)  

SLT have discussed details and considered wider risks/mitigation  

Communication updates from Food Standards Agency  

Evaluation of data undertaken and no data shared across borders.   

Vulnerability Financial  

Reputation  

Resource demand  

Service delivery  

Communities  

Trigger/Event Economic downturn  

Cost of goods and services increase  
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Lack of investment from businesses in the lead up to Brexit due to uncertainty in the economy  

Weak currency due to ‘drawn out negotiations of Brexit’  

   

Regulatory impact  

New legislation/guidance that will be enforced as part of Brexit will cause major delays   

   

Financial Implications  

Lack of funding for initiatives which would previously have qualified for EU funding  

   

Uncertainty   

Brexit negotiations resulting in uncertainty (e.g. No Deal)  

Delaying Article 50 leading to uncertainty  

Leadership contest causing further delay on outcome of Brexit  

   

Reputational   

Lack of planning  

  

Resource Demand  

Lack of resource (financial and staffing) to maintain services resulting from Brexit  

  

Service Delivery  

Lack of awareness of the implications of any Brexit scenario (not sharing crucial data internally)  

Lack of business continuity planning for any Brexit scenario  

Delays in announcements on wider Domestic policies such as social care, public transport, 

homelessness, waste strategy due to Brexit negotiations still ongoing  

Cyber attack  

  

Protests and other actions planned  

Further electoral activity  

Impact Economic Development  

Cost of living – food prices higher than the price of inflation. Businesses that are offering offers 

are not making profits.  

House prices increases as cost of materials increase making housing unaffordable  

Increase in zero hours contracts  

   

Uncertainty  

Civil Unrest  

Long extension to negotiations may cause local unrest  

  

Financial Implications  

Certain initiatives funded by the EU will no longer continue  

Impact on farming/agriculture (Funding)  

Impact on HRA development programme  

Increased use of temporary accommodation and possible legal action to remove households who 

may no longer qualify for access to the service  

Additional training required to ensure staff are up to speed with any legal changes following Brexit 

(e.g. changes in eligibility criteria for housing)  

  

Service Delivery  
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Increase in homelessness  

Increase in those relying on universal credit  

Legislative changes impact heavily on how the waste management service is delivered  

Blocades may result in lorry park experiencing more demand  

Potential for fuel shortages  

Increase in negative decisions and households no longer eligible for services  

   

Resource Demand  

Lack of workforce in specific roles such as social care, service industry  

Skills shortage in key industries  

Multi-tier eligibility assessments required of individuals from EEA depending on status and arrival 

date in UK  

Increase in referrals to county council for households no longer eligible for public services  

Re-assessment of allocations scheme and eligibility criteria  

   

Impact on residents  

Potential for unrest and increase in hate crime  

Demographic changes due to shifts in immigration and migration  

  

Democratic implications  

Lack of engagement  
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AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of the internal audit progress report (Annex A) is to provide a summary of 

Internal Audit work undertaken during 2020/21 against the agreed audit plan and any 
remaining reports from 2019/20. 

 
2.0 Background Information 
 
2.1 The Audit Plan for 2020/21 was agreed at the Audit and Accounts Committee in February 

2020 and throughout the year reports on the progress made and changes to the plan are 
brought to this Committee. 

 
2.2 The report contains details of actions within reports which have a Limited assurance rating, 

Managers will be in attendance to provide an update on the implementation of actions and 
respond to any questions. 

 
2.3 The report also contains details of outstanding recommendations including those where 

the Committee is asked to approve an extension.  
 
3.0 Proposals 
 
3.1 To receive and comment upon the latest Internal Audit Progress Report which covers the 

period up to 31 October 2020. 
 
4.0 Equalities Implications 
 
4.1 Equality impact assessments are produced by each of the service areas that are audited, 

and where appropriate these will be taken into account during the course of an audit. 
 
5.0 Community Plan- alignment to objectives  
 
5.1  The Internal Audit Plan underpins the delivery of the Community Plan. Through assurance 

gained from Internal Audit, Council can be satisfied that internal processes are working in a 
controlled manner, achieving the aims and objectives set out within the Community Plan. 

 
6.0 Financial Implications (FIN20-21/4912) 
 
6.1 Financial implications that arise within each of the individual audits will be highlighted 

during the review and brought to Members attention within the recommendations and 
management actions. 

 
7.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
7.1 That the Audit and Accounts Committee consider and comment upon the latest internal 

audit progress report and approve the extensions to the implementation dates. 
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Background Papers 
 
Nil.  
 
For further information please contact Lucy Pledge on 01522 553692.  
 
 
Nick Wilson  
Business Manager Financial Services 
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Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

For all your assurance needs 

Im age Courtesy of the Officia l UK Puzzle 
Club 

Newark and Sherwood District 

Council November 2020 
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This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of  Newark and Sherwood District 

Council. Details may be made available to specif ied external organisations, including external auditors, but otherw ise the 

report should not be used or referred to in w hole or in part w ithout prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is 

accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

  

 The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our w ork – there may be 

w eaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that w e are not aw are of because they 

did not form part of our w ork programme, w ere excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or w ere not 

bought to our attention.  The opinion is based solely the w ork undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan. 

Contents 

Lucy Pledge  - Head of Internal Audit & 

Risk Management  

lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Amanda Hunt – Principal 

amanda.hunt@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Emma Bee – Audit Manager 

emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 Key Messages   

Introduction  

Summary  

Assurances  

Page 3 Internal Audit work completed 

Overview of Assurances  

Audit Reports at Draft  

Work in Progress  

Performance 

Page 11 Appendices 

1 Assurance Definitions & recommendation ranking 

2 Details of Overdue Actions  

3 Outstanding Actions for Limited Reports 

4 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 – Progress to Date  

 Page 6 Other Matters of Interest 

Risk in Focus 2021 

Internal Audit in Lockdown 

Guide for audit and risk committees on financial reporting and 

management during COVID-19 

IIA Update to the Three Lines of Defense Model 

Redmond Review 
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2 

 

0 
HIGH 

ASSURANCE 

0 
SUBSTANTIAL 
ASSURANCE 

0 
LIMITED 

ASSURANCE 

0 
LOW 

ASSURANCE 

 
 

 

Key Messages  
 

We are currently working on 13 audits at the moment with 4 

of these at draft report stage and the remaining 9 in progress. 

We have not issued any further reports this period.  

 

Further details of our progress can be found within the body 

of the report and in Appendix 4. 

 

Overall there are agreed 23 actions remaining to be 

implemented  (7 High and 16 Medium).  There are 8 actions 

which are overdue, 3 of which have requested extensions and 

we are awaiting Management approval for these.  There is 

one action which requires Committee approval for an 

extension, this is shown in red in appendix 2. 

 

Appendix 2 shows all of the overdue actions excluding those 

for the Limited reports.  All outstanding actions relating to 

Limited reports are shown in Appendix 3. 

 

Managers will provide the Committee with an update on the 

implementation of the recommendations within Appendix 3 

(Limited Reports):- 

 

Key Controls – Nick Wilson – Business Manager Financial 

Services 

Building Control – Business Manager  Planning Development 

- Lisa Hughes 

Community Centres - Andy Hardy – Health Improvement and 

Community Relations Manager/Suzanne Shead – Director 

Housing, Health  and Wellbeing 

 

 

 

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full 

implementation of the agreed management action plan.  The definitions for each level are 

show n in Appendix 1.  

0 
OTHER 

Introduction 
 The purpose of this report is to: 

  

• Provide details of the audit work during the period 1st July 2020 to 31st October 2020 

• Advise on progress of the 2020/21 plan 

• Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Committee role 
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Introduction 
  

 

Combined Assurance 

 

Our Annual Combined Assurance process is underway with engagement and discussions 

taking place with relevant staff  across all Council. Critical activities, key risks, key 

partnerships and key projects will be identified and assessed  through our systematic risk 

scoring process and rated Red, Amber or Green (RAG) to create a clear visual map of 

assurances across the organisation.  The results of this will be reported to senior 

management and the  Audit Committee through the Combined Assurance Report. It will 

also support the Audit Team in planning next year’s Audit coverage based on key areas of  

risk and concern.  

Key Messages Continued 
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Audits reports at draft  
 

We have 4 audits at draft report stage: 

 

• Commercialisation 

• Key Controls NSH* 

• Buttermarket 

• Budgetary Control 

 

*This review was completed prior to the 

Company being dissolved.  However the 

aspects covered are those which have 

transferred over to the Council and therefore 

the points raised remain valid.  It has been 

agreed that this report will now be treated as 

a Council report in terms of the manner in 

which it is agreed, reported and followed up.  

 

Work in Progress  
 

We have the following audits in progress:- 

 

• Follow-ups 2020/21 – In progress, 2 

interim Memos issued. 

• General Ledger/Financial Reporting – 

Testing 

• Information Governance – Terms of 

Reference 

• Newark Castle – Testing 

• Apprenticeships – Testing 

• Robin Hood Hotel – Testing 

• ICT Physical and Environmental Security 

– Terms of Reference 

• Deliver an HRA affordable Housing 

Growth 5 year programme – planning 

• Ensuring Homes are safe and Decent - 

Planning 

 

 

Other Significant work 
  

Combined  assurance work is now 

underway.  Initial information is being 

collated and meetings are booked in with 

relevant staff. 

 

We are also involved in reviewing the 

grants for the flood incidents in November 

2019 and February 2020.  We are looking 

at compliance with the conditions of the 

grant  and ensuring that the due diligence 

checks are carried out prior to making the 

payments. 

 

 

 

4 Draft 

Reports 

9 Audits in 

Progress 
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Benchmarking  

Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  

The statistics below show our performance on key indicators year to 

date.  

Performance on Key Indicators 

Rated our 

service Good 

to Excellent 

5 

82% 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Span
(Target
80%)

Draft Issue
(Target
100%)

Final Issue
(Target
100%)

2019/20 2020/21

27% Plan 

Completed 

Audit KPI’s 

achieved 

100%  
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Other Matters of Interest 
 

A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members 

6 

Risk in Focus 2021 

 

This IIA document highlights key risks for organisations moving forward, and states that Covid-

19 has shaped a number of the risk profiles: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

As we can see there is only one 

new risk for 2021 – Disasters and 

Crisis Response. Several other 

established risks have also 

increased as result of the 

pandemic.  

 

The top ten topics raised by this 

work can be seen to the right. 

  

We will use this information along 

with the Combined Assurance work 

to form next years Audit Plan. The 

document can be provided in full on 

request. 
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Other Matters of Interest 
 

A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members 

7 

Internal Audit in Lockdown - The impact of the coronavirus pandemic on internal audit 

teams in the UK and Ireland 

 

This IIA document  provides an insight of how Chief Audit Executives are coping with working in 

the current environment, and their thoughts on the long term impacts. Data was gathered 

through surveys and interviews.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The document can be provided in full on request. 
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Other Matters of Interest 
 

A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members 

8 

Guide for audit and risk committees on financial reporting and management during 

COVID-19 

 

This best practice document was produced by the National Audit Office. It aims to help audit 

and risk committee members discharge their responsibilities and to examine the impacts on 

their organisations of the COVID-19 outbreak. This includes the key areas: 

 

1. annual reports; 

2. financial reporting; 

3. the control environment 

4. regularity of expenditure 

 

It provides the audit committees with reasoning as to how Covid-19 may have affected certain 

procedures, how the Authorities may have adjusted their processes to mitigate these issues, 

and most importantly the key questions the Committee can ask to gain assurance in these 

areas. 

 

The document can be provided in full on request. 

 

 

IIA Update to the Three Lines of Defense Model 

 

The Three Lines Model helps organizations identify structures and processes that best assist 

the achievement of objectives and facilitate strong governance and risk management. The 

model applies to all organizations and is optimized by: 

 

• Adopting a principles-based approach and adapting the model to suit organizational 

objectives and circumstances. 

• Focusing on the contribution risk management makes to achieving objectives and creating 

value, as well as to matters of “defense” and protecting value. 

• Clearly understanding the roles and responsibilities represented in the model and the 

relationships among them. 

• Implementing measures to ensure activities and objectives are aligned with the prioritized 

interests of stakeholders. 

 

We already apply this methodology when doing our Annual Combined Assurance work. The 

document can be provided in full on request. 
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Other Matters of Interest 
 

A summary of matters that will be of particular interest to Audit 

Committee Members 

9 

Redmond Review 

 

There has been an independent review into the oversight of Local Audit and the transparency of 

Local Authority financial reporting. This was published in September 2020. Key findings include: 

 

• concerns expressed regarding the state of the local audit market and the ultimate 

effectiveness of the work undertaken by audit firms. 

• the current fee structure does not enable auditors to fulfill the role in an entirely satisfactory 

way 

• there is merit in authorities examining the composition of Audit Committees in order to ensure 

that the required knowledge and expertise are always present when considering reports, 

together with the requirement that at least an annual audit report to be submitted to Full 

Council. 

• a key recommendation is to create a new regulatory body responsible for procurement, 

contract management, regulation, and oversight of local audit. It is recognised that the new 

body will liaise with the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) with regard to its role in setting 

auditing standards. 

 

The document can be viewed online - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-

authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 185



Appendix 1 Assurance Definitions 

10 

High 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 

of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 

risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance.   

  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  

Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 

operating effectively. 

Substantial 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 

substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 

arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 

or performance. 

  

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 

to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 

adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 

activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.   

Limited  Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited 

level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management 

of risks and operation of controls and / or performance.  

 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 

operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 

unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 

risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 

achieve its objectives. 

  

Low 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 

concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 

and operation of controls and / or performance. 

  

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 

risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 

appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 

of the activity not achieving its objectives is high. 
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Appendix 2 Details of Overdue Actions 

Outstanding Audit Actions for all audits at 1 November 2020 

All Actions remaining to be implemented 

High Priority Actions remaining to be implemented 

Medium Priority Actions remaining to be implemented 

Overall Overdue 

 11 

Overdue Overall 

7 

16 

0

5

10

15

20

High Medium
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Appendix 2 Details of Overdue Actions  

12 

 

 

 Outstanding Audit Actions at 1 November 2020 
 

Audit Priority Agreed Action Original 

Due 

Date 

Owner Current 

Due 

Date 

Response 

Domestic 
Refuse 

Medium 2.1 Recycling 
information has been 
issued to every 
property in the district. 
Areas with particular 
contamination issues 
will be targeted with 
face to face visits and 
pre-round checks. 

31/03/20
20 

Matt Adey 31/08/20
20 

Most recent 
Jun 2020 – Matt Finch 
response - I note Matt Adey 
has identified an extension 
to the end of August which I 
think is very optimistic. To 
my mind, this isn’t a priority 
whilst we’re working in such 
an altered state with two in 
a cab etc.  
 
Jun 2020 - Targeted actions 
included in the 
Environmental Services 
Action Plan.  
Implementation of these 
was due to begin in April 
2020 following on from the 
restructure of the Business 
Unit and frontline collection 
rounds. 
The responses required to 
safely continue to operate 
frontline services during the 
Covid19 pandemic and the 
restriction of on site actions 
has delayed things further. 
We do not expect to resume 
on street work until the 
restrictions are lifted. 
 
Oct 2020 - This would still 
not be classed as a priority 
in the current climate and 
door to door visits are not 
yet commencing. We will 
continue desktop analysis of 
problem areas and look for 
alternative methods to 
improve the contamination 
rate. 
Requested extension to 31st 
August 2021 reducing if 
alternative methods can be 
identified. 
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Appendix 2 Details of Overdue Actions  

13 

 

 

 Outstanding Audit Actions at 1 November 2020 
 

Audit Priority Agreed Action Original 

Due 

Date 

Owner Current 

Due 

Date 

Response 

NSDC 
Companies 

Medium 6.1 The Council is not 
intending to set up 
any more companies 
in the near future 
therefore we do not 
feel that it is 
necessary to compile 
comprehensive 
guidance . 
Following on from the 
training session in 
finding 3 we will draw 
up brief guidance/ 
checklist covering the 
role of the client 
officer and also 
consider including the 
monitoring roles of 
others within the 
Council e.g. building 
maintenance 
responsibilities, 
Health and Safety etc.  
 

31/03/20
20 

Sue 
Bearman 

30/06/20
20 

Mar 2020 - Not yet actioned 
- extend the timeline for this 
to 31 June 2020 to produce 
brief guidance/checklist - 
KW authorised extension.  
 
No further responses 
received. 

NSDC 
2018/19-06 - 
Economic 
Development
  

Medium 
 

3.1 A separate 
strategy will be 
produced separately 
now that I have 
received the research 
document from 
Nottingham Trent 
University which I was 
waiting for. 

31/12/20
18 

Neil Cuttell 30/09/20
20 

Most recent. 
Jun 2020 - New Business 
Manager has just started, 
the formation of the new 
team is the update at 
present. 
·Oct 2020 - The Economic 
Growth Strategy 2021-2025 
is being considered 
consultation at present. This 
will go to the November 
2020 Committee of 
Economic Development for 
approval 
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Appendix 2 Details of Overdue Actions  

13 

 

 

 Outstanding Audit Actions at 1 November 2020 
 

Audit Priority Agreed Action Original 

Due 

Date 

Owner Current 

Due 

Date 

Response 

NSDC 
2019/20-01 - 
Key Control 
Testing 

Medium Accepted - this was 
something that we 
were already aware of 
and had made a start 
on when the audit 
took place.  

01/10/20
20 

Caroline 
Glass 

01/10/20
20 

Oct 2020: - Policy is 
currently under review.  
Toolkit will then need 
revising. Please amend due 
date to 31.3.21. 

NSDC 
2019/20-01 - 
Key Control 
Testing 

Medium We have identified 
this as a training need 
across the Council and 
have approached 
providers to source 
training to all NSDC 
managers, any other 
staff who author 
reports or lead on 
projects and senior HR 
officers on how to 
undertake meaningful 
Equality Impact 
Assessments.  

01/09/20
20 

Caroline 
Glass 

01/09/20
20 

·Oct 2020 - EIA training – this 
was delayed by Covid and is 
now taking place on 28 
October 2020.  A key group 
of staff will undertake the 
training with a view to rolling 
out across the organisation 
between November and 
March 2021 (Covid-
permitting) 
·Due Covid the trainer had to 
rewrite the programme to 
deliver electronically.  
Training now to be delivered 
on 12 Nov to key officers 
who will then roll out across 
the council to all report 
writers (Extension to 
November 2020) 

NSDC 
2019/20-01 - 
Key Control 
Testing 

Medium Accepted. Going 
forward, we will 
report on all  equality 
and diversity actions 
to the Policy & 
Finance Committee 
after year end.  
 

01/09/20
20 

Caroline 
Glass 

01/09/20
20 

Oct 2020 update:- 
Summarised:- 
·Given the Coronavirus 
outbreak most equalities 
work was placed on hold and 
so no report went to P&F.  
This will be actioned once 
we get back on an even keel 
(Extension will be required). 

The remaining actions are included within Appendix 3 so has not been duplicated 

here.   
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The following reports have been included in this or previous progress 
reports and these are the actions remaining to be implemented 

Audit Priority Agreed Action Original 

Due 

Date 

Owner Current 

Due 

Date 

Response 

Appendix 3 Details of Outstanding Actions for 

Limited Reports 

Key 
Controls 
2018/19 

Medium 5.1 A relevant target 
and/or report will be 
devised and agreed 
with the Director of 
Resources.  
 

31/07/20
19 

Nick 
Wilson 

30/06/20
20 

Aug 2020 - Verbal update.  First 
report to be taken to SLT in Oct - 
end of quarter report.  This will 
include all debts not just Sundry 
debtors. There will also be a 
focus on debt overall as services 
may be meeting current target 
for the year but not looking at 
the debt we didn’t get in 
previous years. Meeting is in 
diaries but has not yet taken 
place so not yet complete.  
 
Oct 2020 - The first report is due 
to be taken to SLT on the 20th 
October in conjunction with the 
debt position for Council Tax, 
NNDR and Rents. Discussions 
have been had across those 
disciplines and the report will be 
built and tabled at that meeting. 
This will then occur quarterly 
from there. 

Building 
Control 
2019/20 

High 4.3 The new 
Business Manager 
will 
create an annual 
report for the 
Partnership Board  

30/04/20
21 

Lisa 
Hughes 

30/04/20
21 

Jun 2020 - Report has been 
prepared for Policy & Finance 
Committee (P&F).  Further 
report will be required before or 
just after then end of the 
current financial year.  
 

Sept 2020 - Report was not 
presented to P&F due to Covid-
19 impacts.  Report will be 
presented to September's P&F. 
 
Oct 2020 - Report prepared for 
November's P&F 
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Audit Priority Agreed Action Original 

Due 

Date 

Owner Current 

Due Date 

Response 

Community 
Centres 
2019/20 

Medium To create a service 
plan for the 
Community Centres. 
Outlining targets and 
what they want to 
achieve within the 
community.  
 
To produce a low 
level report annually, 
providing an 
overview of what 
has been achieved 
over the year. Can 
be used to provide 
information for 
councillors should 
this be requested.  
 

28/03/20
20 

Andy 
Hardy 

28/03/2020 Mar 2020 - The community 
centres run their own 
programmes which support the 
local community and deliver an 
income stream to the centre to 
offset operating  costs.  A report 
can be presented to L&E 
Committee in June to provide an 
overview of what each 
centre/hall has done over the 
previous 12 months. 
 
Jun 2020 - An annual report can 
be presented to L&E Committee 
with an overview of each of the 
centres owned by the Council 
and managed independently.  A 
Committee date target is 
required. 
 
Oct 2020 - a wider report is 
required about the current 
position and future plans for our 
4 community centres with 
recommendations for SLT and 
L&E approval which will also 
ensure delivery of this audit 
action to report annually on 
these matters. 

Appendix 3 Details of Outstanding Actions for 

Limited Reports 
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Appendix 4 2020/21Audit Plan to date 

16 

Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start 

Actual 
Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating/ 

Position 

Key Control 

Testing 

Delivery of key control 

testing to enable Head of 

Internal Audit to form an 

opinion on the Council’s 

financial control 

environment. 

Nov-20 

Budgetary 

Control 

/Management 

To provide assurance 

that the budgets are set 

in accordance with the 

financial strategy and 

Council priorities with 

accurate reporting and 

monitoring. 

Aug-20 Aug-20 Draft 

Report 

General 

Ledger/Financial 

reporting 

To review the general 

ledger to provide 

assurance that 

transactions within it are 

accurate and agree with 

the feeder systems.  

Access to the ledger is 

appropriately restricted. 

Jul-20 Aug-20 Testing 

NNDR NNDR is billed correctly, 

collected promptly and all 

discounts are 

appropriately awarded. 

Jun-20 Jun-20 Aug-20 Substantial 

Council Tax Council Tax is billed and 

collected in accordance 

with the agreed charge 

for the property and 

location and all discounts 

are appropriately 

awarded. 

Jan-21 

Information 

Governance 

There are effective 

processes in place for 

the management of 

information throughout 

the Council. 

Aug-20 Aug-20 Terms of 

Reference 
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Appendix 4 2020/21 Audit Plan to date 

17 

Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start 

Actual 
Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating/ 

Position 

Newark Castle 

  

Review of the key 

processes in place for 

income, security, 

maintenance and 

management of the 

Castle. 

Aug-20 Aug-20 Testing 

Deliver a HRA 

affordable 

housing growth 5 

year programme 

To provide assurance 

that the Council has a 

plan in place for the 

delivery of affordable 

housing which is realistic, 

adequately resourced 

and will meet the 

requirements laid down. 

Sep-20 Planning 

Ensuring homes 

are safe and 

decent 

To provide assurance 

that the Council is 

meeting its obligations to 

it’s tenants in the 

provision of safe and 

decent homes. 

Sep-20 Planning 

Strategic Asset 

Management 

To provide assurance 

over the arrangements in 

place for the operational 

management of the 

Council’s land and 

buildings and the 

maintenance 

/improvement thereof. 

 

Jan-21 

Contract 

management - 

General 

There are effective 

arrangements in place 

which ensure that all 

contracts are recorded, 

allocated contract 

managers and there are 

processes in place which 

ensure that they are 

managed effectively. 

Sep-20 
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Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start 

Actual 
Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating/ 

Position 

Enforcement To provide assurance 

that there are effective 

processes in place for 

development 

enforcement action which 

are complied with. 

May-20 May-20 Aug-20 Substantial 

Debt There are effective and 

joined up arrangements 

for the management of 

debts owed to the 

Council.  Such processes 

are documented, 

consistent and shared 

prior to allowing further 

credit wherever possible. 

Feb-21 

Apprenticeships To ensure that there is 

compliance against the 

scheme requirements, 

maximisation of take-up 

and consideration is 

given to the retention and 

integration of apprentices 

into the workforce once 

they have completed 

their apprenticeship. 

Aug-20 Testing 

Robin Hood 

Hotel 

  

There are appropriate 

governance 

arrangements in place for 

the Robin Hood Hotel 

company with oversight 

maintained of the 

construction project. 

Jun-20 Aug-20 Testing 

ICT Physical and 

Environmental 

Security 

Looking at the security of 

Castle House, satellite 

locations (Brunel drive 

cited as a concern), the 

Beacon and locations 

where any off-site back-

ups are stored. 

Aug-20 Sept-20 

 

Terms of 

Reference 
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Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start 

Actual 
Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating/ 

Position 

ICT Capability 

and Capacity 

Skills audit and training 

needs assessment . 
Oct-20 

Follow-ups 

Follow-up of 

recommendations made 

for the progress report 

and on a sample basis.   

Various In 

progress 

Combined 

Assurance 

Updating the assurance 

map and completing the 

Combined Assurance 

report. 

Oct-20 In 

progress 

Gilstrap 

Independent Examination 

of the Gilstrap accounts 

in accordance with S145 

of the Charities Act 2011. 

Aug-20 Document 

requested 

Mansfield 

Crematorium 

Completion of the audit 

of the Mansfield 

Crematorium Accounts 

Apr-20 Apr-20 Apr-20 Complete 

Newark 

Cattlemarket 

Completion of the rent 

calculation for 2018/19 

Jun-20 Jun-20 Jun-20 Complete 

2019/20 

Strategic Risks 

Strategic risks are 

identified, managed and 

linked to the corporate 

priorities of the Council.  

There is a process in 

place which ensure that 

they remain current and 

action plans ensure that 

risk mitigation actions are 

implemented as planned. 

Feb-20 Jul-20 Postponed 

Reinstated 
- Testing 

2019/20 

Homelessness 

To provide assurance 

that the homelessness 

service is meeting it’s 

objectives and priorities  

and complies with 

legislation. 

Jan-20 Postponed 

 

2019/20 

Corporate 

Governance 

In 

Progress 
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Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start 

Actual 
Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating/ 

Position 

2019/20 Public 

Protection 

To provide assurance 

that the Council is 

complying with it’s duties 

in respect of public 

protection including a 

clear strategy and 

partnership working.  

Income due through the 

issue of Fixed Penalty 

Notices is collected and 

used as prescribed. 

Mar-20 Postponed 

 

2019/20 Key 

Controls 

Delivery of Key Control, 

testing to enable the 

Head of Audit to form an 

opinion on the Council’s  

financial control 

environment. 

Nov-19 Oct-19 Aug-20 Substantial 

2019/20 

Buttermarket 

To provide assurance 

that there is effective 

management of the 

Buttermarket to ensure 

that it meets the 

objectives of the Council. 

Sep-19 Oct-19 Draft 

Report 

2019/20 

Commercialisatio

n 

There is a clear strategy 

and action plan in place 

covering the Council’s 

commercial aspirations 

and this conforms with 

the relevant legislation. 

Apr-19 Jul-19 

 

Draft 

Report  
(Put on hold 

for priority 
work) 

2019/20 

Performance 

To follow-up the 

recommendations made 

within the previous report 

which received Limited 

assurance rating. 

Sep-19  Mar-20 Aug-20 Substantial 

2019/20 Follow-

ups 

Follow-up of the 

implementation of 

recommendations made  

on a sample basis. 

Various – 

throughout 
the year 

Various Aug-20 Substantial 
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AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE   
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2020-21 MID YEAR REPORT 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1. This report provides an update on the Council’s treasury activity and prudential indicators 
for the first half of 2020/21.   

2. Summary of Treasury Balances as at 30 September 2020 

2.1. Below is a summary of the Councils borrowing position as at 30 September 2020, further 
information at section 6. 

 

Balance on 
01/04/2020 

£m 
 

Balance on 
30/09/2020 

£m 

92.427 Total Borrowings 99.638 

0.224 Total Other Long Term Liabilities 0.224 

92.651 TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT 99.862 

2.2. Below is a summary of the Councils investment position as at 30 September 2020, further 
information at section 7. 

 

Balance on 
01/04/2020 

£m 
 

Balance on 
30/09/2020 

£m 

30.959 Total Short term Investments 49.522 

7.500 Total Long term Investments 7.500 

92.651 TOTAL INVESTMENTS 57.022 

 
2.3. Below is a summary of the Councils capital expenditure position as at 30 September 2020, 

further breakdown at section 5. 
 

Capital Expenditure 2020/21 
Initial Capital 

Budget 
£m 

Current 
Expenditure 
30/09/2020 

£m 

2020/21 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

General Fund Expenditure 29.227 1.645 32.537 

HRA Expenditure 23.909 4.179 24.379 

Total Capital Expenditure 53.136 5.824 56.916 

2.4. Breach of Indicator, the Council can confirm no prudential indicators where breached during 
the first six months of financial period 2020/21, further breakdown at section 9. 
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3. Introduction 
 

3.1. This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (revised 2017).  The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  

 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets out 
the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities. 

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - for 
the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report, (stewardship report), 
covering activities during the previous year. 

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury 
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of 
treasury management decisions. 

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and 
policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the Audit and 
Accounts Committee. 

3.2. This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following: 

• An economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year; 
• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy; 
• The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the Capital Strategy, and prudential 

indicators; 
• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2020/21; 
• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2020/21; 
• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2020/21; 
• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2020/21. 

3.3. Treasury Management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks”. 

3.4. The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, 
essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its capital 
spending operations.  This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or 
short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt 
previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 
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4. Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Annual Investment Strategy update 

 
4.1. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2020/21 was approved by Full 

Council on 9 March 2020.  There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report 
update the position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes 
already approved.   

 

5. The Council’s Capital Position 

 
This part of the report is structured to update: 
• The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 
• How these plans are being financed; 
• The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 

indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and 
• Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

5.1. The table below shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since 
the Capital Programme was agreed within the Capital Programme budget on 9 March 2020. 

  

Capital Expenditure 2020/21 
Capital Budget 

approved  
9 March 2020 

£m 

Current 
Expenditure 

 
 

£m 

2020/21 
Revised 
Estimate 

 
£m 

General Fund Expenditure 29.227 1.645 32.537 

HRA Expenditure 23.909 4.179 24.379 

Total Capital Expenditure 53.136 5.824 56.916 

Financed by:       

Capital Receipts 5.298   4.863 

Capital Grants & Contributions  9.203   8.809 

Capital Reserves 12.111   12.965 

Revenue 2.787   3.620 

Total Financing 29.399   30.257 

Borrowing Requirement 23.737   26.659 

The financing of the Capital Programme will be determined by the S151 Officer at the year-
end based on best use of resources. 

The increase from the Budget approved 9 March 2020 relates to approved capital carry 
forward requests and approved variations to the capital programme.  
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6. Borrowing Strategy 

6.1. At 30 September 2020 the Council held £99m of loans, as part of its strategy for funding 
previous years’ capital programmes. 

6.2. Borrowing Activity in 2020/21  

 General Fund HRA 

 
Balance on 
01/04/2020 

£m 

Balance on 
30/09/2020 

£m 

Balance on 
01/04/2020 

£m 

Balance on 
30/09/2020 

£m 

Short Term Borrowing  1.071 0.795 4.026 4.014 

Long Term Borrowing 3.300 3.300 84.030 91.530 

TOTAL BORROWING 4.371 4.095 88.056 95.543 

Other Long Term Liabilities 0.224 0.224 0 0 

TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT 4.595 4.319 88.056 95.543 

CFR 26.262 44.778 106.638 110.211 

Under / (over) borrowing 21.667 40.459 18.582 14.668 

6.3. As the Council is in a significant under borrowed position, as per the table in 6.2, there may 
be a requirement during the remainder of the financial year where new borrowing is 
required.  Below is a breakdown of new borrowing taken during financial year 2020/21 
which was within the approved Treasury Management Borrowing Strategy framework and 
has been reviewed by the S151 Officer for cost effectiveness as whether to borrow shorter 
term or long term in relation to interest rate forecasts. 

Institution From To Amount Rate 

PWLB 01/04/2020 31/03/2038 £3,000,000 1.46% 

PWLB 01/04/2020 31/03/2045 £4,500,000 1.55% 

6.4. LOBOs: The Council holds £3.5m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans where 
the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, following 
which the Council has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no 
additional cost.  All of the £3.5m of LOBOS had options during the last 6 months, none of 
which were exercised by the lender. The Council acknowledges there is an element of 
refinancing risk even though in the current interest rate environment lenders are unlikely to 
exercise their options. 

6.5. Internal borrowing:  For the Council, the use of internal resources in lieu of borrowing has 
continued to be the most cost effective means of funding of capital expenditure that has not 
been funded from grants and other resources.  This has lowered overall treasury risk by 
reducing both external debt and temporary investments.  However this position will not be 
sustainable over the medium term as the Council needs to use reserves for the purpose they 
were set aside for, and external borrowing may need to be undertaken. 

6.6. Debt rescheduling:  The premium charge for early repayment of PWLB debt remains 
relatively expensive for the loans in the Council’s portfolio and therefore unattractive for 
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debt rescheduling activity.  No rescheduling activity was undertaken or is proposed during 
the rest of the financial year as a consequence. 

7. Investment Activity 

7.1. The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to security and 
liquidity and the Council’s aim is to achieve a return commensurate with these principles.   

7.2. Investment Activity in 2020/21  

Type of Investment 
Balance on 
01/04/2020 

£m 

Balance on 
30/09/2020 

£m 

Average 
Interest 

Rate 

Short term Investments       

Fixed Term Deposits:        

Santander 5.000 5.000 0.55% 

Lloyds 95 Day Notice 0 5.000 0.20% 

Local Authority Investment 3.000 8.000 1.00% 

Close Brothers 0 2.000 0.45% 

Money Market Funds:        

Goldman Sachs 6.800 4.572 0.01% 

Deutsche Bank 5.159 1.060 0.01% 

Invesco 8.500 12.000 0.04% 

CCLA 2.500 7.240 0.13% 

Bank Call Account:       

Handelsbanken 0 4.650 0.05% 

Total Short Term Investments 30.959 49.522   

Long term Investments       

CCLA Property Fund 4.000 4.000 3.64% 

CCLA Diversified Income Fund 3.500 3.500 3.80% 

Total Long Term Investments 7.500 7.500   

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 38.459 57.022   

Increase/ (Decrease) in Investments   18.563   

7.3. Both the CIPFA Code and government guidance require the Council to invest its funds 
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its treasury investments before 
seeking the optimum rate of return, or yield.  The Council’s objective when investing money 
is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring 
losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.  

7.4. The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2019/20 is currently forecasting an £0.302m 
unfavourable variance. As shown by the interest rate forecasts in section 2, it is now 
impossible to earn the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all 
investment rates are barely above zero now that Bank Rate is at 0.10%, while some entities, 
including more recently the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility (DMADF), are 
offering negative rates of return in some shorter time periods. Given this risk environment 
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and the fact that increases in Bank Rate are unlikely to occur before the end of the current 
forecast horizon of 31st March 2023, investment returns are expected to remain low. 

 

8. Non-Treasury Investments 

8.1. The definition of investments in CIPFA’s revised Treasury Management Code now covers all 
the financial assets of the Council as well as other non-financial assets which the Council 
holds primarily for financial return or regeneration purposes.  This is replicated in MHCLG’s 
Investment Guidance, in which the definition of investments is further broadened to also 
include all such assets held partially for financial return or regeneration purposes.  

8.2. Breakdown below of current Non-Treasury Investments held; 
 

Counterparty Balance at 
30/09/2020 

Growth Investment Fund £40,935 

Loans to Housing Associations £19,222 

Loans to Parish Councils £15,958 

Loans to RHH Ltd £707,890 

These investments are due to generate £0.031m of investment income for the Council after 
taking account of direct costs, representing a rate of return of 5.14%.    

9. Prudential Indicators 

Breach of Indicators 

9.1. There have been no breaches of the prudential indicators in the first six months of the 
financial year 2020/21. 

Limit To Borrowing Activity 

9.2. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt.  The Local Government Act 
2003 requires the Council to set an Affordable Borrowing Limit, irrespective of their indebted 
status.  This is a statutory limit which should not be breached.  The Operational Boundary is 
based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit but reflects the most likely, prudent 
but not worst case scenario without the additional headroom included within the Authorised 
Limit.  The s151 Officer confirms that there were no breaches to the Authorised Limit and 
the Operational Boundary during 2020/21. 

 

Approved 
Operational 

Boundary 
2020/21 

£m 

Authorised 
Limit 

2020/21 
£m 

Actual 
External 

Debt 
30/09/2020 

£m 

Compliance 

Borrowing 161.9 168.5 99.6  Yes 

Other Long Term Liabilities 0.4 0.6 0.2  Yes 

Total 162.3 169.1 99.9  Yes 
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9.3. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing.  This indicator is to limit large concentrations 
of fixed rate debt needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates. 
 

 
Upper 
Limit 

% 

Actual at 
30/09/2020 

£m 

Actual at 
30/09/2020 

% 
Compliance 

Under 12 months 15% 4.00 4.05% Yes 

12-24 months 15% 6.30 6.37% Yes 

2-5 years 30% 16.00 16.19% Yes 

5-10 years 100% 23.77 24.05% Yes 

Over 10 years 100% 48.77 49.34% Yes 

Limits to Investing Activity 

 
9.4. Security.  The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by 

monitoring the value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio.  This is 
calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the 
arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments are 
assigned a score based on their perceived risk. 
 

Credit risk indicator Target Actual Compliance 

Portfolio average credit rating A AA+ Yes 

 
9.5. Liquidity Risk Indicator.  The Council has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to 

liquidity risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments 
within a banding period, without additional borrowing. 

 

Total cash available within; 
Limit Actual 

30/09/2020 
Compliance 

3 months 100% 52% Yes 

3 – 12 months 80% 35% Yes 

Over 12 months 40% 13% Yes 

 
9.6. Principal Sums Invested for over 364 Days.  The purpose of this indicator is to control the 

Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its 
investments 

 

 Price Risk 
Limit 

2020/21 

Actual 
Investment 
30/09/2020 

Compliance 

Limit on principal invested beyond year end £15m £7.5m Yes 
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Limits to Capital Activity 
 

9.7. Capital Financing Requirement.  The table below shows the CFR, which is the underlying 
external need to incur borrowing for a capital purpose.   

 

 2020/21 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

2020/21 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

CFR – non housing 27.151 44.778 

CFR – housing 104.835 110.211 

Total CFR 131.986 154.989 

Net movement in CFR   23.003 

9.8. Capital Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream.  Although capital expenditure is not 
charged directly to the revenue budget, interest payable on loans and MRP are charged to 
revenue, offset by any investment income receivable. The net annual charge is known as 
financing costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. the amount funded from 
Council Tax, business rates and general government grants. 

 

 2020/21 
Original 
Estimate 

£m 

2020/21 
Revised 
Estimate 

£m 

General Fund   

Financing Costs -0.291 -0.291 

Proportion of net revenue stream -1.48% -1.48% 

Housing Revenue Account   

Financing Costs 11.731 12.187 

Proportion of net rental stream 50.33% 53.78% 

 

10. Economic Background/Interest Rate Forecast 

10.1. Appendix A and Appendix B gives a summarised outlook for the economic background and 
interest rate forecast from our Treasury Consultants, Link.   

11. RECOMMENDATIONS that:- 

(a) the treasury management activity be noted and recommend to Full Council on 15 
December; and 

(b) the Prudential Indicators detailed in Section 9 of the report be noted. 
 
Background Papers 
Nil. 
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For further information, please contact Andrew Snape, Assistant Business Manager – Financial 
Services on extension 5523. 
 
N Wilson 
Business Manager Financial Services 
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APPENDIX A 

Economics Update 
 

As expected, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee kept Bank Rate unchanged on 6th August. 
It also kept unchanged the level of quantitative easing at £745bn. Its forecasts were optimistic in terms of 
three areas:  
  

 The fall in GDP in the first half of 2020 was revised from 28% to 23% (subsequently revised to -
21.8%). This is still one of the largest falls in output of any developed nation. However, it is only to 
be expected as the UK economy is heavily skewed towards consumer-facing services – an area 
which was particularly vulnerable to being damaged by lockdown. 

 The peak in the unemployment rate was revised down from 9% in Q2 to 7½% by Q4 2020.  

 It forecast that there would be excess demand in the economy by Q3 2022 causing CPI inflation to 
rise above the 2% target in Q3 2022, (based on market interest rate expectations for a further 
loosening in policy). Nevertheless, even if the Bank were to leave policy unchanged, inflation was 
still projected to be above 2% in 2023. 

  
It also squashed any idea of using negative interest rates, at least in the next six months or so. It suggested 
that while negative rates can work in some circumstances, it would be “less effective as a tool to stimulate 
the economy” at this time when banks are worried about future loan losses. It also has “other instruments 
available”, including QE and the use of forward guidance. 
 
The MPC expected the £300bn of quantitative easing purchases announced between its March and June 
meetings to continue until the “turn of the year”.  This implies that the pace of purchases will slow further 
to about £4bn a week, down from £14bn a week at the height of the crisis and £7bn more recently. 
 
In conclusion, this would indicate that the Bank could now just sit on its hands as the economy was 
recovering better than expected.  However, the MPC acknowledged that the “medium-term projections 
were a less informative guide than usual” and the minutes had multiple references to downside risks, which 
were judged to persist both in the short and medium term. One has only to look at the way in which second 
waves of the virus are now impacting many countries including Britain, to see the dangers. However, rather 
than a national lockdown, as in March, any spikes in virus infections are now likely to be dealt with by 
localised measures and this should limit the amount of economic damage caused. In addition, Brexit 
uncertainties ahead of the year-end deadline are likely to be a drag on recovery. The wind down of the 
initial generous furlough scheme through to the end of October is another development that could cause 
the Bank to review the need for more support for the economy later in the year. Admittedly, the Chancellor 
announced in late September a second six month package from 1st November of government support for 
jobs whereby it will pay up to 22% of the costs of retaining an employee working a minimum of one third of 
their normal hours. There was further help for the self-employed, freelancers and the hospitality industry.  
However, this is a much less generous scheme than the furlough package and will inevitably mean there 
will be further job losses from the 11% of the workforce still on furlough in mid September. 
 
Overall, the pace of recovery is not expected to be in the form of a rapid V shape, but a more elongated and 
prolonged one after a sharp recovery in June through to August which left the economy 11.7% smaller than 
in February. The last three months of 2020 are now likely to show no growth as consumers will probably 
remain cautious in spending and uncertainty over the outcome of the UK/EU trade negotiations concluding 
at the end of the year will also be a headwind. If the Bank felt it did need to provide further support to 
recovery, then it is likely that the tool of choice would be more QE.  
 
There will be some painful longer term adjustments as e.g. office space and travel by planes, trains and 
buses may not recover to their previous level of use for several years, or possibly ever. There is also likely to 
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be a reversal of globalisation as this crisis has shown up how vulnerable long-distance supply chains are. On 
the other hand, digital services is one area that has already seen huge growth. 
 
One key addition to the Bank’s forward guidance was a new phrase in the policy statement, namely that “it 
does not intend to tighten monetary policy until there is clear evidence that significant progress is being 
made in eliminating spare capacity and achieving the 2% target sustainably”. That seems designed to say, in 
effect, that even if inflation rises to 2% in a couple of years’ time, do not expect any action from the MPC to 
raise Bank Rate – until they can clearly see that level of inflation is going to be persistently above target if it 
takes no action to raise Bank Rate. 
 
The Financial Policy Committee (FPC) report on 6th August revised down their expected credit losses for the 
banking sector to “somewhat less than £80bn”. It stated that in its assessment “banks have buffers of 
capital more than sufficient to absorb the losses that are likely to arise under the MPC’s central projection”. 
The FPC stated that for real stress in the sector, the economic output would need to be twice as bad as the 
MPC’s projection, with unemployment rising to above 15%.  
 
US. The incoming sets of data during the first week of August were almost universally stronger than 
expected. With the number of new daily coronavirus infections beginning to abate, recovery from its 
contraction this year of 10.2% should continue over the coming months and employment growth should 
also pick up again. However, growth will be dampened by continuing outbreaks of the virus in some states 
leading to fresh localised restrictions. At its end of August meeting, the Fed tweaked its inflation target 
from 2% to maintaining an average of 2% over an unspecified time period i.e.following periods when 
inflation has been running persistently below 2%, appropriate monetary policy will likely aim to achieve 
inflation moderately above 2% for some time.  This change is aimed to provide more stimulus for economic 
growth and higher levels of employment and to avoid the danger of getting caught in a deflationary “trap” 
like Japan. It is to be noted that inflation has actually been under-shooting the 2% target significantly for 
most of the last decade so financial markets took note that higher levels of inflation are likely to be in the 
pipeline; long term bond yields duly rose after the meeting. The Fed also called on Congress to end its 
political disagreement over providing more support for the unemployed as there is a limit to what 
monetary policy can do compared to more directed central government fiscal policy. The FOMC’s updated 
economic and rate projections in mid-September showed that officials expect to leave the fed funds rate at 
near-zero until at least end-2023 and probably for another year or two beyond that. There is now some 
expectation that where the Fed has led in changing its inflation target, other major central banks will 
follow. The increase in tension over the last year between the US and China is likely to lead to a lack of 
momentum in progressing the initial positive moves to agree a phase one trade deal. 
 
EU. The economy was recovering well towards the end of Q2 after a sharp drop in GDP, (e.g. France 18.9%, 
Italy 17.6%).  However, the second wave of the virus affecting some countries could cause a significant 
slowdown in the pace of recovery, especially in countries more dependent on tourism. The fiscal support 
package, eventually agreed by the EU after prolonged disagreement between various countries, is unlikely 
to provide significant support and quickly enough to make an appreciable difference in weaker countries. 
The ECB has been struggling to get inflation up to its 2% target and it is therefore expected that it will have 
to provide more monetary policy support through more quantitative easing purchases of bonds in the 
absence of sufficient fiscal support. 
 
China.  After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1, economic recovery was strong in 
Q2 and has enabled it to recover all of the contraction in Q1. However, this was achieved by major central 
government funding of yet more infrastructure spending. After years of growth having been focused on this 
same area, any further spending in this area is likely to lead to increasingly weaker economic returns. This 
could, therefore, lead to a further misallocation of resources which will weigh on growth in future years. 
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Japan. There are some concerns that a second wave of the virus is gaining momentum and could dampen 
economic recovery from its contraction of 8.5% in GDP. It has been struggling to get out of a deflation trap 
for many years and to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get inflation up to its target of 
2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making little progress on fundamental reform of 
the economy. The resignation of Prime Minister Abe is not expected to result in any significant change in 
economic policy. 
 
World growth.  Latin America and India are currently hotspots for virus infections. World growth will be in 
recession this year. Inflation is unlikely to be a problem for some years due to the creation of excess 
production capacity and depressed demand caused by the coronavirus crisis. 
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APPENDIX B 

Interest Rate Forecasts 
 
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Group, provided the following forecasts on 11th August 2020 (PWLB 
rates are certainty rates, gilt yields plus 180bps): 
 

Link Group Interest Rate View       11.8.20

Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23

Bank Rate View 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

3 month average earnings 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 - - - - -

6 month average earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 - - - - -

12 month average earnings 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 - - - - -

5yr PWLB Rate 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.30

25yr PWLB Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70

50yr PWLB Rate 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50  
 
The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and economies around the world. 
After the Bank of England took emergency action in March to cut Bank Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 
0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its meeting on 6th August (and the subsequent September meeting), 
although some forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory could happen. However, the 
Governor of the Bank of England has made it clear that he currently thinks that such a move would do more 
damage than good and that more quantitative easing is the favoured tool if further action becomes 
necessary. As shown in the forecast table above, no increase in Bank Rate is expected within the forecast 
horizon ending on 31st March 2023 as economic recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, 
prolonged. 
 
GILT YIELDS / PWLB RATES.  There was much speculation during the second half of 2019 that bond markets 
were in a bubble which was driving bond prices up and yields down to historically very low levels. The 
context for that was heightened expectations that the US could have been heading for a recession in 2020. 
In addition, there were growing expectations of a downturn in world economic growth, especially due to 
fears around the impact of the trade war between the US and China, together with inflation generally at 
low levels in most countries and expected to remain subdued. Combined, these conditions were conducive 
to very low bond yields.  While inflation targeting by the major central banks has been successful over the 
last 30 years in lowering inflation expectations, the real equilibrium rate for central rates has fallen 
considerably due to the high level of borrowing by consumers. This means that central banks do not need 
to raise rates as much now to have a major impact on consumer spending, inflation, etc. The consequence 
of this has been the gradual lowering of the overall level of interest rates and bond yields in financial 
markets over the last 30 years.  Over the year prior to the coronavirus crisis, this has seen many bond yields 
up to 10 years turn negative in the Eurozone. In addition, there has, at times, been an inversion of bond 
yields in the US whereby 10 year yields have fallen below shorter term yields. In the past, this has been a 
precursor of a recession.  The other side of this coin is that bond prices are elevated as investors would be 
expected to be moving out of riskier assets i.e. shares, in anticipation of a downturn in corporate earnings 
and so selling out of equities.   
 
Gilt yields had therefore already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus crisis hit western 
economies during March. After gilt yields spiked up during the initial phases of the health crisis in March, 
we have seen these yields fall sharply to unprecedented lows as major western central banks took rapid 
action to deal with excessive stress in financial markets, and started massive quantitative easing purchases 
of government bonds: this also acted to put downward pressure on government bond yields at a time when 
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there has been a huge and quick expansion of government expenditure financed by issuing government 
bonds. Such unprecedented levels of issuance in “normal” times would have caused bond yields to rise 
sharply.  At the close of the day on 30th September, all gilt yields from 1 to 6 years were in negative 
territory, while even 25-year yields were at only 0.76% and 50 year at 0.60%.   
 
From the local authority borrowing perspective, HM Treasury imposed two changes of margins over gilt 
yields for PWLB rates in 2019-20 without any prior warning. The first took place on 9th October 2019, 
adding an additional 1% margin over gilts to all PWLB period rates.  That increase was then at least partially 
reversed for some forms of borrowing on 11th March 2020, but not for mainstream General Fund capital 
schemes, at the same time as the Government announced in the Budget a programme of increased 
infrastructure expenditure. It also announced that there would be a consultation with local authorities on 
possibly further amending these margins; this was to end on 4th June, but that date was subsequently put 
back to 31st July. It is clear HM Treasury will no longer allow local authorities to borrow money from the 
PWLB to purchase commercial property if the aim is solely to generate an income stream (assets for yield). 
 
Following the changes on 11th March 2020 in margins over gilt yields, the current situation is as follows: -  

• PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 200 basis points (G+200bps) 
• PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 180 basis points (G+180bps) 
• PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps) 
• PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps) 
• Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps) 

 
It is possible that the non-HRA Certainty Rate will be subject to revision downwards after the conclusion of 
the PWLB consultation; however, the timing of such a change is currently an unknown, although it would 
be likely to be within the current financial year. 
 
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 180bps), above shows, there is likely to be 
little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next two years as it will take economies, including the UK, a 
prolonged period to recover all the momentum they have lost in the sharp recession caused during the 
coronavirus shut down period. Inflation is also likely to be very low during this period and could even turn 
negative in some major western economies during 2020/21.  
 
The balance of risks to the UK 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably relatively even, but is subject 
to major uncertainty due to the virus. 

• There is relatively little UK domestic risk of increases or decreases in Bank Rate and significant 
changes in shorter term PWLB rates. The Bank of England has effectively ruled out the use of 
negative interest rates in the near term and increases in Bank Rate are likely to be some years away 
given the underlying economic expectations. However, it is always possible that safe haven flows, 
due to unexpected domestic developments and those in other major economies, could impact gilt 
yields, (and so PWLB rates), in the UK. 

 
Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include:  

• UK - second nationwide wave of virus infections requiring a national lockdown 
• UK / EU trade negotiations – if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a fresh major 

downturn in the rate of growth. 
• UK - Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to raise Bank 

Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we currently 
anticipate.  

• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. The ECB has taken monetary policy action to 
support the bonds of EU states, with the positive impact most likely for “weaker” countries. In 
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addition, the EU recently agreed a €750bn fiscal support package.  These actions will help shield 
weaker economic regions for the next year or so. However, in the case of Italy, the cost of the virus 
crisis has added to its already huge debt mountain and its slow economic growth will leave it 
vulnerable to markets returning to taking the view that its level of debt is unsupportable.  There 
remains a sharp divide between northern EU countries favouring low debt to GDP and annual 
balanced budgets and southern countries who want to see jointly issued Eurobonds to finance 
economic recovery. This divide could undermine the unity of the EU in time to come.   

• Weak capitalisation of some European banks, which could be undermined further depending on 
extent of credit losses resultant of the pandemic. 

• German minority government & general election in 2021. In the German general election of 
September 2017, Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a vulnerable minority position dependent 
on the fractious support of the SPD party, as a result of the rise in popularity of the anti-
immigration AfD party. The CDU has done badly in subsequent state elections but the SPD has done 
particularly badly. Angela Merkel has stepped down from being the CDU party leader but she 
intends to remain as Chancellor until the general election in 2021. This then leaves a major 
question mark over who will be the major guiding hand and driver of EU unity when she steps 
down.   

• Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands, Ireland and 
Belgium also have vulnerable minority governments dependent on coalitions which could prove 
fragile.  

• Austria, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary now form a strongly anti-immigration bloc within 
the EU.  There has also been a rise in anti-immigration sentiment in Germany and France. 

• Geopolitical risks, for example in China, Iran or North Korea, but also in Europe and other Middle 
Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.  

• US – the Presidential election in 2020: this could have repercussions for the US economy and SINO-
US trade relations.  

 
Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates 
 

• UK - stronger than currently expected recovery in UK economy. 
• Post-Brexit – if an agreement was reached that removed the majority of threats of economic 

disruption between the EU and the UK.  
• The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and, therefore, 

allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK economy, which then 
necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we currently expect. 
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AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
REDMOND REVIEW 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report summarises the review conducted by Sir Tony Redmond on the arrangements 

in place to support the transparency and quality of local authority financial reporting and 
external audit in England. 

 
2.0 Background Information  
 
2.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) abolished the Audit Commission 

and introduced a new audit regime for local government to replace the previous 
arrangements. 

 
2.2 In June 2019, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) invited Sir Tony Redmond, former President of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance (CIPFA) to conduct a review of the current arrangements. The 
review was to examine the arrangements in place to support the transparency and quality 
of local authority financial reporting and external audit. 

 
2.3 Broader issues of local authority finances and sustainability were outside the scope of the 

review. 
 
2.4 Between September and December 2019 stakeholder views were canvassed, including 

those representing the interests of local authorities, the accountancy profession, and local 
residents and taxpayers. A range of issues were raised in relation to the current regime. 

 
2.5 Following consideration of the evidence gathered, Sir Tony published his findings and 

recommendations in the report “Independent review into the arrangements in place to 
support the transparency and quality of local authority financial reporting and external 
audit in England” published 8 September 2020. 

 
2.6 Sir Tony has stated that “The outcome of this Review is designed to deliver a new 

framework for effective local audit and an annual financial statement which enables all 
stakeholders to hold local authorities to account for their performance together with a 
robust and effective audit reporting regime.” 

 
3.0 Review Recommendations 
 
3.1 The review recommended 23 recommendations across a range of areas which are set out 

below. 
 
 External Audit Regulation  
 
3.2 In respect of External Audit Regulation the report recommended: 
 

1. A new body, the Office of Local Audit and Regulation (OLAR), be created to 
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manage, oversee and regulate local audit with the following key responsibilities: 

 procurement of local audit contracts; 

 producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit; 

 management of local audit contracts; 

 monitoring and review of local audit performance; 

 determining the code of local audit practice; and 

 regulating the local audit sector. 
 

2. The current roles and responsibilities relating to local audit discharged by the: 
 

 Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA); 

 Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW); 

 FRC/ARGA; and 

 The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) to be transferred to the 
OLAR. 

 
3. A Liaison Committee be established comprising key stakeholders and chaired by 

MHCLG, to receive reports from the new regulator on the development of local audit. 
 

4. The governance arrangements within local authorities be reviewed by local 
councils with the purpose of: 

 an annual report being submitted to Full Council by the external auditor; 

 consideration being given to the appointment of at least one independent 
member, suitably qualified, to the Audit Committee; and 

 formalising the facility for the CEO, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) to meet with the Key Audit Partner at least annually. 
 

5. All auditors engaged in local audit be provided with the requisite skills and 
training to audit a local authority irrespective of seniority. 
 

6. The current fee structure for local audit be revised to ensure that adequate 
resources are deployed to meet the full extent of local audit requirements. 
 

7. That quality be consistent with the highest standards of audit within the revised 
fee structure. In cases where there are serious or persistent breaches of 
expected quality standards, OLAR has the scope to apply proportionate 
sanctions. 
 

8. Statute be revised so that audit firms with the requisite capacity, skills and 
experience are not excluded from bidding for local audit work. 
 

9. External Audit recognises that Internal Audit work can be a key support in 
appropriate circumstances where consistent with the Code of Audit Practice. 
 

10. The deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts be revisited with a 
view to extending it to 30 September from 31 July each year. 
 

11. The revised deadline for publication of audited local authority accounts be 
considered in consultation with NHSI(E) and DHSC, given that audit firms use 
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12. The external auditor be required to present an Annual Audit Report to the first 

Full Council meeting after 30 September each year, irrespective of whether the 
accounts have been certified; OLAR to decide the framework for this report. 
 

13. The changes implemented in the 2020 Audit Code of Practice are endorsed; 
OLAR to undertake a post implementation review to assess whether these 
changes have led to more effective external audit consideration of financial 
resilience and value for money matters. 

 
 Smaller Authorities Audit Regulation 
 
3.3 In respect of recommendations 14-16 these relate to Smaller Authorities Audit Regulation 

for which this is not applicable to this Council. 
 
 Financial Resilience of local authorities 
 
3.4 In respect of the financial resilience of local authorities the report recommended: 
 
 17. MHCLG reviews its current framework for seeking assurance that financial 

sustainability in each local authority in England is maintained. 
 

18. Key concerns relating to service and financial viability be shared between Local 
Auditors and Inspectorates including Ofsted, Care Quality Commission and 
HMICFRS prior to completion of the external auditor’s Annual Report. 

 
3.5 Transparency of Financial Reporting 
 
 In respect of transparency of financial reporting the report recommended: 
 

19. A standardised statement of service information and costs be prepared by each 
authority and be compared with the budget agreed to support the council 
tax/precept/levy and presented alongside the statutory accounts. 

 
20. The standardised statement should be subject to external audit. 
 
21. The optimum means of communicating such information to council 

taxpayers/service users be considered by each local authority to ensure access for 
all sections of the communities. 

 
22. CIPFA/LASAAC be required to review the statutory accounts, in the light of the new 

requirement to prepare the standardised statement, to determine whether there is 
scope to simplify the presentation of local authority accounts by removing 
disclosures that may no longer be considered to be necessary. 

 
3.6 The 23rd recommendation was in respect of smaller authorities and hence is not applicable 

to this Council. 
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4.0 Response 
 
4.1 Several bodies, including CIPFA, the LGA, ICAEW and audit firms have issued statements 

supportive of recommendations. 
 
4.2 The resource implications of the OLAR, the proposed new oversight body to take charge of 

local authority audit, would amount to approximately £5m per annum after taking into 
account the amount related to staff subject to transfer under TUPE arrangements. Sir Tony 
has commented that there is “no comparison” between the new regulatory body and the 
defunct Audit Commission. 

 
4.3 It has been noted that implementation of the recommendations would, in part, require 

regulatory or legislative change, and that many of the issues identified in this report 
require urgent attention, given the current concerns about local audit demonstrated in the 
review. 

 
5.0 Conclusion 
 
5.1 Based on the recommendations contained within the report, there is likely to be major 

changes to the financial reporting and external audit framework over the coming years. 
Officers will continue to monitor the external environment to ensure that if and when 
these recommendations are approved for use by the relevant organisations, the Council 
ensures the relevant provisions are in place to accommodate the change. 

 
6.0 Equalities Implications 
 
6.1 Through the many recommendations contained within the review, the heart of the report 

relates to transparency of financial reporting. It is therefore anticipated that should the 
recommendations be approved by the various different organisations, this will increase 
engagement with the stakeholders of the Council.  

 
7.0 Financial Implications (FIN20-21/4589) 
 
7.1 As the report concludes that that “the current [external audit] fee structure does not 

enable auditors to fulfil the role in an entirely satisfactory way. To address this concern an 
increase in fees must be a consideration”, there is a possibility that, where this 
recommendation is approved, an increase in the audit fee in future years may occur. 

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Members note the review concluded by Sir Tony Redmond and discuss the 
recommendations raised. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 
 
In order to understand the potential changes to support the transparency and quality of local 
authority financial reporting and external audit in England. 
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Background Papers 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-
audit-independent-review - Sir Tony Redmond Review together with the appendices to the main 
report. 
 
For further information please contact Nick Wilson, Business Manager - Financial Services on Ext 
5317 
 
Nick Wilson 
Business Manager - Financial Services 
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AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE  
25 NOVEMBER 2020                                                                                       WORK PLAN 
 

Meeting at which 
action to be 
undertaken 

Subject and Brief Description  Who will present the report Intended Outcome  

3 February 2021 Draft Treasury Strategy 2021/22 Andrew Snape Gain assurance that risks in relation to the 
Council’s treasury management activities are 
to be managed in accordance with need and 
the Council’s risk appetite 

 Draft Capital Strategy 2021/22 Andrew Snape Outlines the principles and framework that 
shape the Council’s capital proposals 

 Draft Investment Strategy 2021/22 Andrew Snape The investment strategy meets the 
requirements of statutory guidance issued 
by the government. 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2020/21 Lucy Pledge/Emma Bee 
(Assurance Lincolnshire) 

Understand the level of assurance for 
audited activities and ensure management 
progress recommended actions to mitigate 
identified risks 

 Annual Audit Letter 2019/20 Jon Machej Gain assurance on the Council’s Statement 
of Accounts and arrangements for achieving 
Value for Money 

 Review of significant internal control issues highlighted in 
the Annual Governance Statement 

Nick Wilson Gain assurance that the Council is making 
progress on any governance issues that were 
raised in the AGS 

 Draft Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 Lucy Pledge/Emma Bee 
(Assurance Lincolnshire) 

Ensure that an appropriate plan is in place 
which will provide assurance on the 
Council’s activities 

 Partnership Register Natalie Cook In order to gain assurance that the Council is 
managing the partnerships that it is involved 
within effectively 

 Responses to questions raised at previous meeting Nick Wilson  

 Audit Committee Work Programme Nick Wilson 
 

 

21 April 2021 Statement of Accounting Policies 2020/21 Andrew Snape Gain assurance that the Council has 
appropriate accounting policies in place that 
reflect the way items are treated in the 
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annual Statement of Accounts 

 IAS19 Pension Assumptions 2020/21 Andrew Snape Gain assurance that the pension 
assumptions used by the actuary to produce 
the figures in the Statement of Accounts are 
appropriate for the Council’s circumstances 

 Property, Plant and Equipment Valuation Assumptions 
2020/21 

Andrew Snape Gain assurance that the assumptions used 
by the Council’s valuers to produce the 
figures in the Statement of Accounts are 
appropriate for the Council’s circumstances 

 Counter-Fraud Activity Report Nick Wilson Gain assurance that counter-fraud activity is 
appropriately targeted and effective 

 Risk Management report  Richard Bates Gain assurance that appropriate risk 
management arrangements are in place 

 External Audit Plan for 2020/21 Accounts TBC (Mazars) Ensure that an appropriate plan is in place 
which will provide assurance on the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts, Value for 
Money arrangements and Grant claims 

 Fraud Risk Assessment Nick Wilson Gain assurance that the Council understands 
its fraud risks and that actions are put in 
place to address them 

 Responses to questions raised at previous meeting Nick Wilson  

 Audit Committee Work Programme Nick Wilson 
 

 

July 2021 Treasury Management Outturn Report 2020/21 
 

Andrew Snape Gain assurance that treasury management 
activities were in line with the Treasury 
Management Strategy for the past financial 
year 

 External Audit - Audit Completion Report 2020/21 TBC (Mazars) To gain assurance that the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts are a true and fair 
representation of the Council’s financial 
performance for the previous financial year 
and financial standing as at the Balance 
Sheet date, and that the Council has 
effective arrangements for achieving Value 
for Money 

 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 & Annual Governance 
Statement 

Nick Wilson Gain assurance on the integrity of financial 
reporting 
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By considering the assurance gained through 
its activities throughout the previous year, to 
give assurance that the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement accurately 
represents governance arrangements, that 
future risks are identified, and that 
arrangements in place support the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives 

 Annual Internal Audit Report 2020/21 Lucy Pledge/Emma Bee 
(Assurance Lincolnshire) 

Gain assurance that the Council’s Annual 
Governance Statement accurately 
represents governance arrangements, that 
future risks are identified and that 
governance arrangements support the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22 Lucy Pledge/Emma Bee 
(Assurance Lincolnshire) 

Understand the level of assurance for 
audited activities and ensure management 
progress recommended actions to mitigate 
identified risks 

 Biannual Review of the Effectiveness of the Internal Audit 
Function 

Nick Wilson To consider whether the Internal Audit 
function is operating effectively and produce 
an action plan to address any required 
improvements 

 Responses to questions raised at previous meeting Nick Wilson  

 Audit Committee Work Programme Nick Wilson   
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